GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
Executive Oversight Committee
Agenda
March 8, 2018
8:00 a.m.
Meeting will be held at the Glenbard Wastewater Plant
945 Bemis Rd, Glen Ellyn, IL

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment

Consent Agenda — The following items are considered to be routine by the Executive
Oversight Committee and will be approved with a single vote in the form listed below:

Motion the EOC to approve the following items including Payroll and Vouchers for the
Month of January 2018 and February 2018 totaling $1,012,512.54 (Trustee Enright).

5.1

5.2

53

54

Executive Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes:
January 11, 2018 EOC Meeting

Vouchers Previously Reviewed by:
January 2018 and February 2018 — Trustee Enright

Approval of New Three-Year Bio-Solids Hauling Contract

During the month of January, GWA placed an advertisement for bid for a 3-year
contract for the removal and disposal of municipal bio-solids from the main
Glenbard plant. At the bid opening date on January 26, 2018 at 12:00pm, there
were six (6) registered plan holders. At the bid opening GWA received four (4)
bid packets. GWA recommends the award of the three (3) year contract for
Disposal of Municipal Bio-Solids to Synagro for the amount of $19.00 per cubic
yard for the first year.

Approval of Digester Cleaning Disposal of Municipal Sludge Contract

During the month of February, GWA placed an advertisement for bid Digester
Cleaning and Disposal of Municipal Biosolids at the main Glenbard plant.



This contract will consist of removing remaining contents of digester number two,
and cleaning the digester. Per standards, it is recommended to clean anaerobic
digesters every 7-10 years. It has been over 12 years since digester number has
been cleaned. Due to the potential of odors being created due to the work, the
Authority has provided for a $5,000 incentive if the work is to be completed prior
to March 26, 2018. Also, the Authority has the right to stop the work, and
terminate the contract if the work is not completed by April 6, 2018. GWA
recommends the award of Digester Cleaning and Disposal of Municipal Sludge to
Stewarts Spreading with a hauling rate of $0.10 gallon of liquid sludge and
$699.00 per hour of labor. GWA also requests approval to award a $5,000 stipend
if the project is completed prior to March 26, 2018.. This contract was budgeted at
$65,000 in the CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40-580150 Plant Equipment
Rehabilitation.

5.5 Approval of Payment to the Forest Preserve District of DuPage County

In April 2016, the Village of Lombard was notified that an easement agreement for
property adjacent to the Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) facility with the DuPage
County Forest Preserve District had expired. The property was subject to an easement
agreement dating back to 1966 for the property just south of the Combined Sewer
Overflow facility on Hill Avenue. In order to renew the easement, per District policy,
the Village of Lombard is responsible for paying fair market for the acreage, which is
valued at $15,000 per acre. The total cost for the easement is $142,500 and will be
paid for by the Glenbard Wastewater Authority.

Proposed Policy for GWA Engineering Shortlist

Historically GWA has generally solicited professional services using a “shortlist”
process, by which the Authority retained five to six professional firms on its list of
engineering firms that previously submitted qualifications. Prior to the professional
services being retained for a project, the Authority would request proposals, along with
specific qualifications, only from these shortlisted firms. The shortlist would be updated
from time to time based on firm’s qualifications, or amount of work performed with the
Authority.

Together with the TAC, Authority staff drafted the attached standard operating policy in
regards to contracting professional services. Main highlights are that the Authority will
revisit the shortlist every three years to ensure that firms on the list remain qualified and
interested in working with the Authority. The policy also states that prices from
professional firms will not be requested until a specific firm is selected for a particular
professional service, as is directed by state and federal statute and the ethical standards of
licensed engineers. This policy was reviewed and approved by the Authority’s attorney
for legal purposes.



Approval of contract with Strand Associates, Inc. for the 2018 Electrical Service
Distribution System Rehabilitation and Upgrades Design Engineering

In November 2017 Authority staff developed and sent out a request for qualifications and
technical proposals to our six shortlisted professional consulting firms for Design
Engineering Services pertaining to the Electrical Service, Backup, and Redundancy and
Site Lighting Project. The due date for the proposals was January 31, 2018.

The Authority received four sets of qualifications and technical proposals in response to
the RFQ/RFP that was sent out, at which point staff performed an initial review, and
narrowed it down to two firms to invite for formal interviews. A member of the TAC, as
well as Authority staff, participated in the interviews, and after a process of evaluation
and elimination selected Strand Associates to perform the design work.

It is recommended the EOC award Strand Associates the 2018 Electrical Service,
Backup, and Redundancy and Site Lighting Project Design Engineering Services in the
amount not to exceed $145,500, which includes the design services with an option to
award an additional not to exceed $2,500 for procurement services. This amount will be
taken out of the designated amount in CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40 Capital, which has
a $250,000 budget number currently.

Approval of High Strength Waste Standard Operating Procedures and Revoke
Moratorium Placed on Receiving of High Strength Waste.

Authority staff has put together a draft Standard Operating Procedures in relation to accepting
high strength waste, co-digesting the high strength waste with our municipal sludge, and other
related operational procedures. Based on the thorough investigations and time spent putting
together the Standard Operating Procedures, the Authority requests the EOC approve the
procedures, and allow the revocation of the moratorium placed on receiving High Strength
Wastes.

Approval of Amendment to Existing Engineering Services with RIN Group, Inc. for the
Installation and Analysis of the Glen Oak Lift Station Magmeter

In late 2017 the Village of Glen Ellyn officially annexed an area just West of the DuPage
River along Hill Avenue. Although unincorporated, this area was previously serviced by
Village of Lombard water and sewer. The sewer flow from this area goes to the Glen
Oak Lift Station, where it is pumped via force main into a Village of Lombard sewer just
upstream of the Authority’s North Regional Interceptor, where it’s flow was metered
along with the sewer it discharged into. Since the area is now incorporated into Glen
Ellyn, a need arose to separate the metered flow coming from the force main, as it is
needed for Village of Glen Ellyn flow billing purposes. An evaluation was performed,
and it was determined that installing a Magnetic Meter (Magmeter) in the force main was
the most suitable method to monitor the flow due to the characteristics of the collection
system in that location.



10.

11.

12.

It is recommended the EOC award RIN Group, Inc. the Amendment to the Existing
Engineering Services to include the Installation and Analysis of the Glen Oak Lift Station
Magmeter in the amount not to exceed $45,000. This amount will be taken out of the
Infrastructure Improvement budget, 40-580140, in the CY2018 Approved Budget.

Discussion
10.1  Facility Improvement Project Update

Other Business
11.1  Technical Advisory Committee Updates
11.2  Pending Agenda Items

Next EOC Meeting — The next regularly scheduled EOC Meeting is set for Thursday,
April 12, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. in the Conference Room at the Glenbard Wastewater
Authority, 945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, IL 60137,



}oday si1010al1Q
~ 8T0t Alenugayg



. S S i

8T SvED T9'Z TTTIT 7.0 SRE'T 4% 191 1S 167 1€y vZT €6'C Jwy uey
P e |
.mmww.__nm 179699 TT1°99 1 AAS vLC9 6CC’€9 67’9 £1°C9 €0'69 AAS] 6979 1999 16°LS % Em@é@m_
SLET'TE 6SE0PE 68VE 7S°¢E 0T'LE TLL9€  TL'SE €T LE L6'0F 98°'LE I€LE 6V'EY 60°Ch % UAl3 uso
8l-uer  /1-33Q  /T-AON [I-PO (1-des  /T-8ny  /T-nr Lr-unt  /1-Aew £T-ady /T-0eN /T-Q94  ZT-uef
gT-uer LT-AON L1-das LT-Inf LT-AeN LT-1eN LT-uer
_ [ = S — = _ 1 f.._. — = 1 — — 1 L 1 1 i — |.._... == : |m OO.O
" o — - — —— — — . ; 00°0T
,1 i 00'0Z
00'0€
00°0%
— - —= 00'0S
E— 0009
e
= — - - — —+ 00°0L
| JWY UleYemis — e —— - — —

— : e — e
| % PIlequIOT| comme ]
_ uostaedwon Sulug mo

nxu C>=m Cw_m.ul . U -—_-m —m NHON\mﬁON
T10Z ‘£23sn3ny ySnoJyl 600¢ ‘TT AInf sAeq ovIT 0TOT ‘0T IMdy — £00Z ‘8 Jequiaidas m>mm wmoH
:pJodas Suizesado 934y uoiSINIXD JUSLINYD :pJodal Sunesado aaly UOISINIXS SNOIABIY
8107 ‘8z Aenuga4 ys8nouyy £10Z ‘9T 41290100 sheq 9¢€T 8707 ‘8z Menugad ydnoay €10z ‘v Aenuga4 sheq 1587
A0 4 1330MULIOYS p4023y uaiin), :juold pioquajo
4
L102 9107 S107 p107 5
0%
191EMUIOLS enefmm T -
PIequa|D s £E8
v s
=, - ) S 2

suone|oIA Nwadd S3adN




dunoday 9 asuadx3 RO Jaquadag

%1098 xmmmm L %EBYOT %€9°09 %8666 %EE'TH %SS°05T %98'L %TLBET xmm.mw [ juads xﬂ._
L %00°00T oi\wooooﬁ | %0000 %00°00T %00°00T %00°00T %00°00T %00°00T %00°00T XOQ.OOH\ k Mmogu 0% B __
w0 ua8AxXQ |eAOLURY S 5994 S9JIAIDS - ..‘rlﬁ T
S a8pnis 1ulRA peaLIaAD aozueInsu| sfeajway)d ERILE saIN |duuosiad |

%0
%0¢C
%0¥
%09
%08
%001
%0¢T
%0vT

%091



0s 0s 0s$ 0$ 0s 8Tt'82E'9S

000°0STS 000'VES 000°0vZ$ 000°00%$ 000°6TTS vLS°009°LTS
uonEHlIgeyay s103[o4d uo11INIISU0) SullasRiSEag |
ue|d Ayjoeq #0015 3uljjoy | aunyonuisesyu; wawdinby uoloNIISUo)
BO11133|3 e lende) [jews did di4

T p——




Z8'T £6'C SL°0 Sv'z vSE |, mhmﬂ.cﬁ_mcm_wﬁﬂmm_sﬁun
.__lleQu LTOTAD 910ZAD STOZAD PIOCA | 35
— 50
— 1

ST
z
o
£
€
v

8T0¢ ‘1€ AMenuer
JO se sayduj ui |jejuiey |ejog

2107 ‘T€ 19qwiala( Jo se

LT0 €€°0 or'0 9z°0 £Z0 | 1oy od paresty suones i

8TOTAD LT0TAD 910CAD STOCAD PTOTAd

000
S00
0t'0
10
0z’0
5S¢0
ogo
SE0
ov°0
Al

8T0¢ ‘T€ Alenuer
“—o se JevA J9d tmumm.h._. m:o__mmv :o____m




0 | voneoynon Auadoidm |

L Suiiney m
e

z

SSION M
sjuiejdwo) JopO =

0
0c
ot
09
08
00T
oct
ot
091
081
00¢

uosiedwo) juiejdwo) jenuuy

swuiejdwo)
19mo] 19 lopo

Bunney 9SION

L L

v 0 0 0 0

TsoleSH

Do~ O N T O N - O

o
i

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

8T0C LTOT 9T0C STOZ vTIOZ Sieap

saunfuim
1507 sheg

810 (T0Z 910z  STOC 10

— n




%P0'98 %7965 %EZ V0T %€9°09 %8666 %EET6 %89°09T  %98°WL %TL'BET  %6L°68 wads 9

%00T %001 %00T %001 %00T %00T %00T %00T %00T %00T LTOZAD 30 %
PLV9STS £65°E7ZS 8TC'8LIS ETSTLTS  TLE'SCTS €9Y'6LES  B6V'SETS  90£°89TS 919'PL9S SOV'S6S'TS 3leg
0} 1ed Juads
00T‘867S 000'SLES 000°04TS 0SS‘P8ZS  00b'8TIS 000‘TTVPS  000°06S 00¥'8s€S 00T‘ZZPS 000°LP9 TS 193png LT0ZAD
1PY10 ua8AxQ [eAOWBY  9dUBUSIUIBIA S934 peSyJaAD  @JueInsu| sjealway) S92IAIDS saly|iIn |Suuosiag
pinbn 28pn|s JeIIUO)
by 9sTs 001°862$ © eyon|
8TT'8LTS 000°04TS leAoway mm@_ml
£T5TLTS 055'¥8¢S JUBUSIUIBIA (4 4
TLE'BETS 0ov‘geTs §994 peayJang i _
€9V'6LES 000°TT¥S Joueansu| m
90£‘99Z% 00t'85€S S32IAIBS 19RQUOD A |
9T5'v293 00T'2ZV$ sapn e u
SOb'S65'TS 000°L¥9T$ [suuosiad m |
2jeq 01 Jea, yuads 198png /TOZAD .
=1 : 000001
— ._ 000002
- 000°00¢
000°00%
000005
000009
000°00£
000°008
000006
000'000°T
yaioy — 000°00T‘T
- 0000021
—— 000‘00€'T
— 00000Y‘T
_ 000°00S‘T
_ - 000009°T

3unoday § asuadx3 RO JETe[NEWETq|




2 -t R r.n-ﬂlew. ©
=S O
“.ﬂ. -2 M3IADY |esodo st .|._
“ IA3Y | 1d 0$ 000°0S¢$ u3isa@ pio B3OS Er‘__ _
W= = B
' .. - |
e St
810 ‘T€ Aenuer ysnoayy 0s 000°0STS ueld Aupoey
8107 ‘T€ Aenuer ySnoayy 0S 000'vES %2035 Suljjoy
8107 ‘T€ AMenuer ySnoayy 0s 000°0vZS a.njonusesju)
8T0C ‘1€ Aenuerysnoayy 0s 000°00¥%$ uoneyjiqeyay uawdinb3 jueld
8T0T ‘T€ Atenuer ySnouyy 0S 000°6TTS s13foud |eude) |lews
19398d D03 3yl ul Loday 108l04d di4 paiepdn ass 81v'8Z€'9S v£S'009°LTS uoIdNIISUB) di4
194284 303 3y} ul Loday 103loud d14 paiepdn 2ag £S1'€85S 00090£$ 8ua3uI3u3 UoINASUO) dIH

sajepdn Alenuer

aleq o0} jJuads

lunowy

198png 1afoiyd

uonduasag



TOATVIYISNANI =
3IOA D04l

T0AS50im

- 0 6 pasjeday/pase|day Jaquinp |e10 .;
- ST 9T (lieasui/aoe)day /iieday) asuendwo)-uon Jofepy ul 5,354 Jo Jaquinpn [eo)
0 0 0 ._ofo
- T 0 oejday \.__mnmm
= 0 0 IduBUNUIRA
- - - asieydsig \p_:.:mﬂ_
0 - 0 payuapj m:o_am_os
0 - - panssj| sy,
0 ZZ  SS pag8ol/pamainay sisajiuey
6 - - Pamalndy suoday _m_.amsu:
€ 0 T suonay dn >>o__o"_ ._o_._p
0 0 0 e

14 T
0 T 0

T0A IOA 10A
IVIRILSNANI 904
LT-02q
SNOILIV HOLVNIGYOO0D 30¥NO0SIY TVLNINNOYIANI




‘Areniqag u1 a191dwo aq pinoys Jeyy uopenyis Jredas BUBYIUAY 3Y) U0 dn pamoqo e
"19]eM31SeM 03 SUNe[a. SANSSI [eJudWUISA0S SuipeSas Jeurwas e papuany e

dn 3joeq e pey jey) JueIneIsal g A € paroadsui pue pmJd YIM IR e

‘Sururen) YN Qe papusny e

JuaWRSeuR) 215e M W) 9d0S POy YIM IS e

s)10dau £]1911enb Juswadeuey
9)SeM 0M] 9} SUIPN[OUT PIMIIAI 2JoM Ansnpur wo.y anp syioda [enuue-1ueg

9409 s19umo( 03 Suto3 Surpnpur MSH 10§ 40§ Y3 Suruya 10 SaIARIE Ul paredpnaey e
‘wregold usuneanaad oy ur uoisnul 10/pue suondadsu aInny

d[qrssod oy pue o3ep 03 dn sseq eyep deay 03 gnA J0j suoneoijdde uonensigal ssauisng ayy
Jo [re pue TOA ur suonesridde £5uednado jo syeoyneo pue suoneordde jucrad [[e poMaIADY

:SIUBWWOY)

Sjuswwo) Ajyjuon J01euIpI00)
$92JN0S3Y |EIUBWUOIIAUT




VEBEVS

Ppanes s

SINOY 11EMOfIY

000
00°000°T
00°000°C
00°000°€
00'000't
00'000°S
00°000°9

00°000°L

000642

Jagwaoeg

00°0T 000642 00'2¢ST’9 4774 000 L

YMI/L0°0$ = 8TOZ UondNpoId dHD Ajyruop
UMY Z# SUIBUT emmme  YpAY T# 2UISUT SIH Z#9UISU] mmms )M T# 2UISU]

uonanpold dHI Alyauow
J9qLUIAON 1900130  J3quiardas 1sn8ny Amnr aunr Aey judy yauen

08°'0€

Adenigaq

YNV [IBAY Z# SUIBU3  Ywpf 2# 2uiBu3  Ymy |IeAY T4 uiSu3  Ym T#oWSUI  SIH leAY Z# auiBul  SIH Z# suiBu3z  suH |leay T auldul  siy T#suidu3

Asenuerf

0497 19N 01 peoy

Hoday uononpold Jemod 3 JesH pauiquod

Asenuey

000

00'S

00°0T
0074t
00°0T
00°S2
00'0g

00°5¢

sanoyn auidus



O'€T 2 S EY ry Y JUIIND
uondasul asuis a8eu ®><l 8979V ‘9OLZTS IUSWIFSIALUS UD YIDQGADL. nuuy
SSZ60°'909ES I2UD[DY IUSWADTTY

€ BEPS 00°0$ € BEPS 0003 (o} SsjplOoL [PRUUY
(OB 8L &F ) 09°8PT PES 0003 00°0s 0003 00°0$ o Jaquiasaq
(G RET vE) 09°8PTPES 00°0S 00'0$ 00°'0% 00°0% o JaquisnonN
(09 ' BPTLPE) 09°8vT vES 00'0% 00°0s 00°0% 00'0s 0 42qo31d0
{02803 #5) O09°'8PTFPES 0003 00 0S$ 00'0s 00°'0% o 19quisadas
(O 8y ¢+E) O9"'8PTPES 0005 00'0s 00'0s% 00°0$ [e] IsnSny
02 8y LivE) 09 '8FTPES 000 00°'0S 00°03% 00 0% (o] Ainr
[ei=T" 178 o 0980T PES 00 0S 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ o aunr
S 8ErTee) 09 '8FTHES 000 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0S o Aepy
(D9 B vE) 09°'BFTPES 000S 00°'0% 00 0% 00°0s o |dw
09 8L vE) 09 BFTYES 00°0S 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0S o yosuewy
[Oa8¢i vE) 09°'8YI FES 0008 00°0s 00°'0s 000s [o] Aeniagag
(9ZTOTZ EE) O09°8VT VES [VE BEPS | ooos vE8EPS 00°0S o Alenuer
BTIOZ 1D3A IDPUSIOT
IINPayss - 40O + JDIO]J S350 YN /60°0S S22 PoINnias3y
2uawAoday DIUDUIIUIDIN @ PIINPOId Burddis AnsH suono
- SSHAN 410 + 21 4D ABusuz 323[3 D04/MSH
88 199w
— e, 03336401
LCT SIDIA Uf JUSWIISIAUL UD UINIIY JUDIIND
68°125'52S 2102 40 E:ml CT9LSTLOES  3UWIS2AU UO YIPGADJ jONUUY
SBeIBAY 7S 1S°889'ET6'ES 2ounjog JuawAndsy
TOLST'LOES  (91°SS6°08S)  (SSOVELTS) 8P T6Z'ZE7S ST'ZI9T'89T$  EVT'E9L’E 0S°06E°LTSS s|o104 [pnuuy
VP T90LES (L6 TH6TS 00°S68$ 00°0$ L6'9V0°TS 00°0% 0 Jaquisoaq
v T90°LES (09°0£9°ES 00°0$ 00°0$ 09°0£9°€S 00°0$ 0 JaquaAoN
i T90LES |04 L1E°GS (ev°0S6°TS) 00°0$ £T'892°LS 00°0$ 0 13qo30
v TI0'LES |8BB'6LE9S (00°568%) 00°0% 8RVLTLS 00°0$ 4] Jlaquardag
B VRLEE) vPT90LES |25°9LT'ETS (00'00s°t€$) 00°0S TEV6L0TS 0Z'286°€TS  vv9‘6Ly 1sn8ny
zT6eT V" T90°LES |99°06T LES (00'€0s'6TS)  00°0% 9Z'90t'LTS Ov'L8V'6CS 8v/'68S 0S°2r0"88ES Aing
8€'619°0Z v T90°LES |28°089°45% OV virr'1$) 00°0S CE'ETS0ES 06°'T09'82$ BEO0‘ZLS 00'8VE6ZTS aunr
B0°ESZ'S P TO0LES |ESVIE ZrS (r¥'0TL8) (oozvs'es)  zv'seezzs GS'89S°€TS  TLETLY Aey
78°008°8 P TO0LES [92°298'SvS (00°5665) (PT°'TE0'ES)  SL°06T°TES S9'L69°LTS  €S6°ESE 1udy
(SSvpe’l) v’ 190°LES |68'OTL'62$ (8r°'sT0°48)  (0S°€€v2$)  LE6VB'EZS 0S'9TE'STS  0EE‘Q0€E yate
WEROTEL P'T90°LES |65 TS6'ETS (9S°€SE9TS)  (S9°5/8%) 05°981°s2$ DE€'S66'STS  906°6TE Aenigay
9L°1€8°Z Vv’ T90LES |02 €68°6ES (sT'egz‘1s)  (9z°'8sv'z$)  96'TeT'SES SO'TTSETS  €S2°0L2 Adenuer
LIOZ 1D3A 10pudlpg
3[npayss - 40+ (0101 SISO YIUON SIDIA Ymi/60°0s $224 Pan1aday 42321/030a
ST WwawAlnday 3UDUIIUIDWY SNnoiAdid @ painpoig buiddil pSH suoipo Buipung unio
T u.I_ AD34 dwo) Abiauz 23j3 D04/MSH
8'8193wWw 53150) DN
03326404 1buosppy

umopyeaig Alejsuojy JusW)ISaAU| UO UIN}eY




SECTION 5.0

CONSENT AGENDA



SECTION 5.1

MINUTES FROM THE
JANUARY 11, 2018
MEETING



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
Executive Oversight Committee
Minutes
January 11, 2018
Meeting held at the Glenbard Wastewater Plant
945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, IL

Members Present:

Diane McGinley President, Village of Glen Ellyn

Keith Giagnorio President, Village of Lombard

Bill Enright Trustee, Village of Glen Ellyn

Mike Fugiel Trustee, Village of Lombard

Mark Franz Village Manager, Village of Glen Ellyn

Tim Sexton Finance Director, Village of Lombard

Julius Hansen Public Works Director, Village of Glen Ellyn

Carl Goldsmith Public Works Director, Village of Lombard
Others Present:

Matthew Streicher Engineer/Assistant Director, GWA

Rick Freeman Electrical Superintendent, GWA

David Goodalis Operations Superintendent, GWA

Jon Braga Interim Maintenance Superintendent, GWA

Laurie Frieders Environmental Resources Coordinator, GWA

Christina Coyle Finance Director, Village of Glen Ellyn

Gayle Lendabarker Administrative Secretary, GWA

1 Call to Order at 8:04 a.m.
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call: President McGinley, President Giagnorio, Trustee Fugiel, Trustee Enright, Mr.
Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. Hansen answered “Present”.

4, Public Comment

5. Consent Agenda - The following items are considered to be routine by the Executive
Oversight Committee and will be approved with a single vote in the form listed below:

Motion the EOC to approve the following items including Payroll and Vouchers for the
Month of November 2017 totaling $2,454,834.03 (Trustee Enright).

Trustee Fugiel motioned and Mr. Nichaus seconded the MOTION that the Jfollowing
items on the Consent Agenda be approved. President Giagnorio, President McGinley,
Trustee Fugiel, Trustee Enright, Mr. Nichaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith, and Mr.
Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll vote. The motion carried,



EOC Meeting/January 2018

Minutes

5.1

5.2

53

54

5.5

5.6

Executive Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes:
o November 9, 2017 EOC Meeting

Vouchers previously reviewed by Trustee Enright
o November 2017

Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 3 of Flow Monitoring
Services Contract with RIN Group, Inc.

GWA requests authorization to continue into year two of the three-year
contract for Flow Monitoring Services with the RIN Group, Inc. The
amount of $116,000 shall be invoiced to Fund 270-520981 in CY2018

Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 3 of Sodium
Hypochlorite Supply Contract with Alexander Chemical Corporation.

GWA requests authorization to continue into year two of the three-year
contract for the Sodium Hypochlorite Supply Contract with Alexander
Chemical Corporation at $0.632/gallon, and shall be invoiced to Fund
270-520981 in CY2018.

Trustee Enright asked what the Sodium Hypochlorite was used for. Mr.
Streicher explained that during high flow events that the chemical is used
to disinfect by means of chlorination at the CSO plant before is it
discharged and is then dechlorinated by the Sodium Thiosulfate to keep it
Jfrom harming the habitat of the river.

Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 3 of Sodium Thiosulfate
Supply Contract with PVS Chemical.

GWA requests authorization to continue into year two of the three-year
contract for the Sodium Thiosulfate Supply Contract with PVS Chemical
at $1.72/gallon, and shall be invoiced to Fund 270-1-530440 in CY2018

Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 3 of the Janitorial
Services Contract with RCC Cleaning.

GWA requests authorization to continue into year two of the three-year
contract for Janitorial Services with RCC Cleaning for $12,240, and shall
be invoiced to Fund 270-520971 in CY2018



EOC Meeting/January 2018

Minutes

5.7

5.8

59

Request for Authorization to Enter into Year 2 of 5 of the Lease of
Atmospheric Vaporizers and Airgas Liquid Oxygen Hauling Agreement

GWA requests authorization to continue into year two of the five-year
contract for the leasing of atmospheric vaporizers and liquid oxygen
hauling with Airgas in CY2018. Liquid Oxygen hauling will be priced at
$0.258/per 100 cubic feet with a base delivery charge of $15,600, and
invoiced to Fund 270-530443 in the CY2018 Budget. Atmospheric
Vaporizers Leasing will be priced at $1,500/month, and invoiced to Fund
40 Capital Plan in the CY2018 Budget.

Reimbursement to Village of Lombard for Property Surveys

The Authority is requesting the Executive Oversight Committee authorize
payment to reimburse the Village of Lombard $26,106.78 in relation to the
Professional Survey Work done by Jorgensen & Associates for the purposes
of the Property Swap Discussions with the Forest Preserve District of DuPage
County (FPD). The property swaps proposed ownership of vacant parcels
being transferred to the FPD from the Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn, in
exchange for the FPD transferring ownership of the lagoon parcels at the CSO
plant to GWA. The proposition required updated plats of survey and legal
descriptions that were completed by the Professional Surveyor.

Trustee Enright asked for clarification on what the charges were for. Mr.
Goldsmith refreshed everyone on an original plan to transfer title of
property owned by both Villages to the DuPage Country Forest Preserve
in exchange for title to the proper that the Lagoons at the CSO plant since
the lease agreement with the Forest Preserve expired last year, after the
Forest Preserve expressed a desire to not renew a lease. Mr. Goldsmith
indicated that before any type of deal could continue, surveys of the
properties that were going to be swapped need to be brought current;
Lombard contracted with a vendor they had experience with to complete
the task. Mr. Goldsmith advised that the Forest Preserve has since
changed their mind as the pieces to be swapped were not desirable and
wishes to execute a 99-year easement agreement for the property at a one
cost of 815,000 per acre or a cost of $142,500.

Contract Laboratory Services Open Purchase Order Request

In late 2016 the Operations and Laboratory staff solicited three quotes for
laboratory professional services for three-year period starting in 2017. Per
Village of Glen Ellyn Purchasing Policy Section B.5., since this is a
recurring/ongoing service, quotes only need to be obtained once every three
years, so long as the cost remains competitive and there is no significant



EOC Meeting/January 2018

Minutes

5.10

change to the scope of goods/services. Suburban Labs projected a cost of
$25,001.50 for a one-year period based on information provided to them from
the Authority. The cost can be variable as call out work is required for the
Stormwater Facility during rain events, as well as any extra sampling that
might be required for our permit discharge or special condition on river
sampling.

This professional service is budgeted in the CY2018 O&M budget account
#270-520806 Prof. Serv. Laboratory in the amount of $30,000. The
Operations and Laboratory staff kindly requests the Executive Oversight
Committee to approve an open purchase order for a not to exceed amount of
$30,000 for CY2018 as budgeted.

Enter into Agreement with NRG for Demand Load Response Revenue

In the past, the Authority has entered into agreements for a Demand Load
Response program, where the Authority agrees to run the backup generators
under certain circumstances, and is compensated for it. Recently, the
Authority was approached by several different brokers with offers to upgrade
the generators to the required air emissions standards, in exchange for revenue
sharing with the brokers. After evaluating the proposals, and options,
Authority staff and the TAC agreed on the proposal from NRGCS. The
agreement would generate +/-$30,000 in additional revenue for the Authority,
and has been reviewed by the Authority’s attorney. Staff recommends the
EOC approve entering into a 6-year agreement with NRGCS for Demand
Load Response Participation.

6. Discussion

6.1

6.2

IEPA — Violation Notice Update

Mr. Streicher advised that the Compliance Commitment Agreement was
submitted to the IEPA January 3, 2018 and at this point in time there has
not been any type of response to the submission. My. Streicher indicated
that the items outlined in the agreement had already been completed so
GWA should be viewed as being in compliance. Mr. Streicher indicated
that the copy in the packet is what was submitted to IEPA and is awaiting
their signature.

Facility Improvement Project Update

Mr. Streicher advised that the newly installed disk filters have been online
and operating as expected, therefore the contractor has received approval
to proceed with the demolition of the six (6) remaining old sand filter beds
and installation of the three (3) remaining disk filters. Mr. Streicher added



EOC Meeting/January 2018

Minutes

that most of the non-potable and natural gas line replacement work is
nearly complete and everyone is still waiting for the Earth Retention
System submittal which was the driving factor behind the last change
order.

Trustee Enright asked if the new disk filter have been tested under a high
flow situation since it looks as if the flows through the plant have been
typical flows. Mr. Streicher advised that the filters were tested under a
simulated high flow situation by shutting off pumps and allowing the levels
to rise and the filters performed as anticipated.

Myr. Franz asked if the deadline for the installation of the second bank of
disk filters scheduled for April 2018, was going to be met? Mr. Streicher
indicated that according to the schedule submitted, completion is being
projected for March 26, 2018, and as they are simply duplicating work
already done on the first series of filters, they know how to address the
various areas that posed challenges the first time around. Mr. Franz asked
if the total project completion date was still scheduled for April 2019? Mr.
Streicher advised the date was November 19, 2019.

7. Other Business

7.1

CHP SOP Update/GWA Ad-Hoc CHP Operations Committee Applicants
Authority staff has been putting together a draft Standard Operating
Procedures in relation to accepting high strength waste, co-digesting the high
strength waste with our municipal sludge, and other related operational
procedures. Once a final draft is complete, the documents will be shared with
the only resident who applied to the Ad-Hoc committee, the School District 89
Superintendent, a County Board official, and any other interested parties in
order to obtain input. The goal of Authority staff is to bring final documents to
the February and/or March EOC meeting for final approval.

Mr. Streicher reviewed the proposed Standard Operating Procedures for
FOG process. Mr. Streicher indicated that guidance from the TAC
Committee on acquiring public input since there was only one (1)
applicant for the Ad Hoc Committee. Mr. Franz indicated that the Village
Managers will be discussing how best to acquire feedback and/or
communicate the plan to the public.

President McGinley expressed her thought that GWA and the Villages
have made every effort to include members of the public in having input
on developing the SOP’s and no one except for one (1) person spoke up;
therefore, once finalized the SOP’s should be posted on the web site and a
notification sent to everyone stating the policy is complete and available
on the web site and not spend a lot of time in search of feedback as we



EOC Meeting/January 2018
Minutes

have given members of the community plenty of time and opportunity to
participate and have received very little response.

7.2 Technical Advisory Committee Updates

Mr. Streicher did mention that another large change order on the FIP
project is in the works which relates to some electrical issues that came to
light and is being worked on.

7.3 November 18, 2017 Sanitary Sewer Overflow Update

Mpr. Streicher indicated that the type of overflow experienced is required
reporting to the IEPA and that GWA will most likely receive a violation
notice as a result. Mr. Streicher indicated, and Electrical Superintendent
Freeman elaborated, that a dual fuse failure as a result of a ComEd power
Jailure was the cause and if the raw pump station, which had originally
been scheduled to be completed on the date prior to the failure, had been
completed then the SSO would not have occurred.

7.4  Pending Agenda Items
7.5  Executive Oversight Committee 2018 Meeting Dates

8. Next EOC Meeting — The next regularly scheduled EOC Meeting is set for Thursday,
February 8, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. in the Conference Room at the Glenbard Wastewater
Authority, 945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, Illlinois.

Mr. Niehaus moved to adjourn the January 11, 2018 EOC Meeting and President
McGinley seconded the MOTION. President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Mr.
Fugiel, Mr. Enright, Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith, and Mr. Hansen
responded “Aye” during a roll vote. The motion carried. The meeting adjourned at
8:25 a.m.

0. Executive Session — Materials Provided under separate cover

Motion the EOC to adjourn to Executive Session for the purposes of approving previous
Executive Session Minutes and discussing Personnel Matters relating to specific
employees pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (C)(1) & collective negotiating matters or
deliberations on salary schedules for one or more classes of employees pursuant to 5
ILCS 12072 (C)(2).

Submitted by:




EOC Meeting/January 2018
Minutes

Gayle A. Lendabarker
GWA Administrative Secretary



SECTION 5.2

VOUCHERS
JANUARY AND
FEBRUARY 2018



pue suonnqLyuoo ueld Gz g /G ‘sBuipjoyynm xe} se yans suoonpap pajosip sskojdws
13410 pue sanp uotun ‘ssueInsul Yileay ‘suoisuad 1o} SUCKNGUIUCD SPNoUI SuoHoNpap aakojdiug ,

PSTIS'TIOTS TVLOL ANVYID
OF'TET'I6T $ 8TS0I‘SS § SI'HPE9S § OTLYET9 § me.mn..v.,.wm § 99°L0E°LS § [oadeg[ej0],
$0°659°c$ 16°LPS°ES £6°L06°¢€S 80°659°¢c$ 1°809°c$ uojod Jako|dw3 - plEYYNM XE L SIE0IPSNY/AIINGSS jejo0g
9C°0ES VS 0€08¢v$ 8S° LIPS S 96v'v$ SOl R 7 uonnquiuod Jsfojdwy - JYWI
6+'005°91$ 11°L86°STS 68 VTTLIS 78'S9%°L1S SLILTLIS «Suononpaq eafojdwg
umﬂc.ﬂuﬁman =¢k Bd 43 c— Emm ..M« I c— Em—
6I'SIY'EE S €8BIP'TE $ 98OPLGos 0L S0P TE $ 6T'IS6'15S SYIIY)) [loadeq saLopdmy 190N
8T0T "¢ YOIBIN 107 91 Aeniqag ST07 T ATeniqog 810 ‘61 Atenuel §IQZ 'S Alenuer STANIIANAIXH TTOJAVA
PI0SE TTLS T8I0, JURLIEA,  $T°08CTTLS
Y1°651°68% 8107/LT/T T-8170 Wellep) S[qeAed SHUMOIOY
€S°50T°16$ 8102/91/C [-81T0 JUBIIEA\ S[qeAR] SIUNOJOY
$0°088°v6$ S10T/1E/T T-8110 JUBLIEA\ S[qRAR{ SIUNOIDY
€1°SE8°6b1S 8102/61/1 [-81 10 JUBIRM S]qeAR] SIUN0OOY
junomy pieg e YY) STANLIANAIX A

8T0T YoIETAl Wl Supadm 3y} Lo
SHAHDNOA 40 TVAOUdIV
ALMOHLAY JALVMALSVM QIVINATO



0Z°19¢

0Z°13¢

00°580°2

00°569
00"568
007569

€T°929° €€

9%°089°9
TL PIT’%
82°TS
LE°890'%
00°56€
00°S€T
£5°9zL’g
LEBSE'T
00°00S'T

82 t8

8C°¢8

LT ZL

PLZL

0]

aI¥d ALA % LTL

- SHDOIAYHS TYNOISSHAOUL

NOTILVONAE JHAOTIWH
NOTINONGE HHAOTINA
NOIINONUGH HTHAOTIWA

NEDAXO aIndiT

NIDAXO gIndIT
SOINOALDETH -HONYNAINTYH
NEDAXO QINOIT

ININI IN0F - HONYNALNT YN
INENI IN0H - IONYNIINTYIH
NADAXO aIndIl

NADAYXO aIndId

STHINTY JOZTIOIVA OA¥D

INTWI TN0E - TONYNALNI YR

INAWG LN0F - HONYNI LNIYW

€5012S 0LT

arvd aILX 00°G80°'T
02902s 0Lz
0290€S 0L
02902S 0Le

aQI¥d QLE 8L ¥6£°%S
EPF0ES oLE
€EPFOES 0Lz
086028 0LZ
E¥H0ES 0LZ
§.602S 0LT
S.60ZS 0Le
£YH0ES oLz
EPFOES 0Le
¥00LT 087T08S 0%

aIvd dLX 8Z €8
GL602ZS 0LZ
aIv¥d aix %.°CL

SL602S 0L
INOODDY 1D

NOTLITIDSIA LNOOJOY 1D

8T0Z/Te/ZT ©L 8TOZ/T0/TO0 Z0/8T0¢ T¥OSIA OI

zxempdde
T d

8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/TO
8T/6T/TO
8T/6T/TO

8T/6T/TO
8T/61T/TO
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/TO
8T/6T/T0O
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/10

81/6T/T0

8T/6T/T10

HLVQT AHD

[ R A - I - VI -1

SNOLLYOINNWWOD TEIINN 6T8

TEDIOANT QIXZ % LTL STYIOL JOUNHIA
€98T€ *HDIOANT
6L0LG6 LTfeC/TT zZ9¢€8T
TONI ‘EOIAYES TENNOSYHJI AANNVE 880T
AIOIOANI dLX 00°580°2 STYVIOL YOANHAA
0Z%8T :HOTOANT
8L0LS6 8T/T0/T0 0Z%8T
6TH#8T HOIOANT
8LOLSE 8T/T0/T0 6T¥%8T
8T%8T :EDIOANT
8L0LS6 8T/T0/T0 8TH8T
NOIIYIDOSSY S¥A0M OITdNd NYDIYUIWY T9%
QIDOICANI QLA 8L ¥6E°%S STYIOL JOANHIA
PEOEEFD0SE  HDTOANI
LLOLSE LT/€2/21T 6SEH8T
Y6SBEFPO0SS  HOTOANT
LLOLSE 8T/90/T0 £FP8T
TIFSZ0T0966 HOIOANT
LLOLSE 8T/90/T0 9€%8T
658£FF0056 HIDTOANI
LLOLSE 8T/20/T0 SEF8T
€6%T90TL06 “HDIOANI
LLOLSE Li/ce/et 09€8T
SOL¥660L06 HDIOANT
LLOLSE LT/€2T/2T 6SE8T
9TZ6EF00G66 :HOIOANT
LLOLSE LT/0E/ZT 8SEST
T0ELESE906 “HOIOANI
LLOLSE LT/T0/TT 95€8T
TET0920L06 HDIOANT
LLOLSE €000LT0Z LT/0€/TT S5€8T
ONI ‘SVONIY 188
QEDIOANT QLA 8Z €8 STYIOL JOANIA
S0E60% EDIOANI
9L0LS6E LT/ST/ZT TSEST
ANVAWQD SADIANHAS JYIV $96
QEDIOANT QIX ¥L°ZL STYIOL HOANHA
£88666 HOTOANT
SLOLSE L1/t2/eT v5e8T
"d¥0D YOSSTIIWOD dIV I-¥ T
ON 3DHHD 0d YEHONOA AILVA ANT INHWOD04

IKxeum
TS:ST 8TQZ/L2Z/20

JH0dEd INYIIVM dIV¥d
SATT WMD



veE" 0P

00°T6T

00°T6T

8¢° 98¢

8€£°95¢

6£° %82

6€°¥8C

6€706T

6€°06T

887957

88°9S5%

LT 9V

LT 9%

00 TEL'T

00 TEL'T

6T°990'T

6T°G990°T

dEMOd DI¥IOHETH

arvd

WIINOD SANNOEH ¥ HNITIING

arvd

ININI IN0HE - TONYNTLNTVIN

arvd

S/INWIINDE CHIVTIEN ALIIVS

arvd

TILNOD SANNOUD 3 HNICTING

arvd

SOINOALOHETH -HONYNHINT VIN

arvd

SOINOILOETH ~HONYNIINIYH

arvda

SOINOULOETH ~HONYNIINT VI

arvd

SNOIIVOINONWNODHETIL

LA

ALX

arLx

ILA

aLA

arLx

aLX

a@LXx

8I/6T/TO

8T/61/T0

8T/61/T0

8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/TO

8T/6T/TO

8T/61/10

8T/6T/TO

8T/61/10

880456

THOTOANT

L80LSE

TEOIOANT

980LS6

TIOIOANT

S8B0LS6

TIOTOANT

¥80LS6

TIDTOANT

£80LG6

JIOTOANT

Z80LS6

TIOTOANT

T80LSE

TIOTOANT

080LS6

QLA

aLX

arLx

aLXx

aLx

ALA

aLA

00°28¢€

887957

T9°8¢€S

8L°08¢

88°99%

SEIDOT

T0°¢8¢

00°925°¢€

88-€TT’'C

LEFST TEDIOANT
8T/TT/T0 LEVST
ANYIWOD NOSIAH HITVIMNOWNCD

STYLOL YOANHA

08089T IDTOANI
8T/T0/10 TIF8T
‘0D OIVAATA ZAITIOD
STYLOL JOANIA

€L6T8 HDIOANI
LT/6T/TT $9€8T
SINYIIFINT OTID
STYLOL JOUNHA

665767€0%8 FHDIOANT
8T/ZT1/10 SHP8T
ALZAYS ¥ QIV ISYIJ SYINID
STYLOL JOANHA

P9EIVEETL  THOIOANI
8T/20/T0 11981
69L# NOIIVIOAEOD SYINID
STINIOL JOaNdIA

LIOEFIT HDTOANT
L1/82/21 SSH8T
ONHOAL WAHLSAS dINTI ODVOIHD
STYIOL JOANHA

0LLLOTT :HOIOANI
LT/8T/2T £2€8T
“ONI  INHWNNHACD MID
STYIOL YOUNIA

LT6TZTIOD HDIOANI
LI/6T/2CT LS%8T
TONI TYINAWNOETANA 10D
STYLOL $OaNIA

IS%8T
8T/ST/T0

‘OIOANT
TS%8T

0s

8TCT

¥¥a

894

LY

URWA

Le

60T

NOILATYDSTEA LNOODDOY 1D

8T0C/TE/ZT OI 8T0Z/TO/T0 ©0O/8T0T TWOSIA QL

Jxempdde
[4 d

TOZTZS oLz
00°2Z8¢
TL60CZS oLe
8€°952
846025 oLT
T9°8¢€S
SZCOES 0LZ
8L° 08¢
TL60ZS oLz
887957
086025 0L
T0 28¢
086029 0LZ
00°9TS’E
0860¢S 0LZ
88°€CT’Z
S6TTZS oLe
LNOCDOOY T

HILVa ¥HO

ON DHEHD

Ccd ¥d

HOMOA MIVJ ANT LNAW1D0a

HINYN
T-8TTO

TI0dEY INYAIYM dI¥d

SATT ¥MD

JOMTLA

f LINVEIVM

IAIem

TS:ST 8T02/LZ/T0



TESE09 IDIOANI
00°06T'T TYNIOVIINGD SOINONILOETH T860ZS 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 d ¥60LS6 LT/LZ/2T TE¥ST
TEF96S HOIOANT
90°8LT SOINOIILOETH - HONYNALN TN 086025 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 4 $60.L56 Lt/te/eT 60%8T
ONI NOIINETILSTIA QOSEM A0 NOISIAIG ¥ '0DSHEdT 98
19°LZ9'6% aIvd dLK 6T 480°90T THOIOANT QLA 6€°LBO’90T STYLOL YOANHA
T-TT08T0E8SBET  *HITOANT
¥0°08L'0T JIAMOd DTALDHETIH 102125 0LZ 8T/61/10 d £60LS6 8T/6T/T0 T9%8T
TIOSTOEBS8ET :HIOIOANT
¥0°096 '9¢ YEAMOd DILLDFITI T0ZTZS 0L% 8T/61/10 4 £60L56 8T/0T/T0 09%8T1
TTOBILEBSBET HEDIOANI
YT 9%0°T YEMOd DIWUIDETH 102128 Z-0LZ 8T/6T/T0 d £60LS6 8T/TT/T0 0%%8T
TTO8T6EZ8SBET HIIOANT
6% E0L YAMOA ITAIDATH TO0ZTES £€-0LZ 8T/6T/10 d €£60LS6 8T/ST/TO 6EFBT
TTO08TZESSBET “HOIOANI
¥EE€S JAMOd DIAIDATH 102TCS 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 d £€60L56 81/ST/T0 8ETBT
TTO8TEEBSBET :HDTOANT
vL° 98 YEAMOd DIYILOITH 102TZS T-0LT 8T/6T/T0 d €60LS6 8T/60/T0 89€8T
TIOSTTEBSSET *EDIOANT
8 LT AIMOd DTIIDITH T0ZTZS Z-0L2 8T/6T/10 d €60LS6 81/T0/T0 L9EBT
JT1 'SHDIA¥ES ADYHANA EOANXA LETT
LO°PT dIvd dLX LO°®T TIDIOANI QLA L0 %T STYLOL JOANHA
€8TEY IDIOANI
L0 ®T LINANI TN - IONTNILNT VI SL602S 0LZ 8T/6T/TO d 260LSE 81/80/T0 PI%8T
"ONI ‘SNOILAIOS ALINNDES HOVINA 8L
00-9¢¢€ dI¥d dii 00°9¢€ QIDIOANI QLA 00 9€€ STYIOL AOANHA
QSETO08TS :*IDIOANT
00°9€¢€ TYALOYELNCD SOINOMIDETIH 186025 042 8T/6T/T0 d T6OLSE LT/ST/CT €TP8T
*ONI HDIAYES ® SHWALSAS NOILOALIA 99
ST ¢6 arvd dix S v6T TIDIOANI QLA SE€ %61 STYLOL JOANTA
L6L6BYFL HDIOANI
GT €6 STDILON TYOTI 06L02S 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 4 060LSE Li/ee/Tt S9€8T
ONI ‘SNOILYOITENd NO0adyd Z9
657202 aIv¥d QLX 8T SO0% QIIIOANT QLA 8T G0% STYLOL JOANHA
ZS¥8T FHOTOANT
657202 SNOIIVOINAWWNODETIL S6TTECS 0LZ BT/6T/T0 d 680L56 L1/Se/2t T5H8T
0T 'SNOILVDINAWWOD H'IIVD LSYOWQD 06%
Y€ 0% dI¥d dLX 96°GL AIOIOANI QLA 96 SL STYIOL JOaNHIA
NOILATIOSHd INNOOOY 1D INNODOY TD HI¥d MHD I ON dOHHD Cd YHHONOA HEIVA ANI IN|WAD0T
HAYN OaNdA
8T0Z/TE/CT OL 8T0Z/1I0/T0 Z0/8TI0Z T¥DSId OL T-8TIT0 :INVIIYM
xrempdde | I30dTI INVIIYM dIVd TATRu
t d SATT ¥MD 16:6T 8T02/L2/20



08 vLT

PEPOTET’T

89°L9
CTELEL
T9°T6T
€076
08759

00 €LT'T

00°€LT'T

60°z6t’E

S8°6T
€Z2°2LE'E

00°00T

00°00T

08°¢CL

08 cL

TT L66'E

TT LeE'T

90°89¢'1T

TYALOVILNGD - SNOIIVIHEJO

T6602CS

aIvd aQLX 0T 96Z°'C

SOINOULOETH - HONYNIINI VI
SOINOCYIOHTH - HONVNEINT VA
SOINOILOHTE - HONYNI INT VN
SOINQILOITI~HONVNAINTYW

LNANG IN0F - IONINI LN I VN

arvda

TASNNOD TVYHINAD-TYOHT

arvd

THAITYM
YHLYM

aIiva

dd DHY-SNOILITIOSHENS -SHNd

aIvdd

SHSNHJXH HDIJAJ0

arvd

SEAVYDAN FINIDONYLSTIINT

arvd

NOTIATYDSHA INNOJDV T

8T0Z/TE/TT OL 8TOZT/TO/TO0 TO/810Z 'I¥ISIL OL

axempdde
4 d

dQLA

arLx

arLx

aLx

086025
0860CS
086029
0860CS
ETAvEAS

02" %066

ooLocs

00°99T°¢2¢

£02TZS
€0TTES

00°00T

00%0¢s

08°¢4L

00TOES

TZ LE6E'Z

0¥T08S

90°89¢€'T

oLz

awe
oLe
aLe
oLe
0LT

0Le

oLe
oLz

0Lz

oLz

0374

O00Y 1O

8T/6T/T0O

81/61/10
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/TO
8T1/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/TO

8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/TO

8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/TO

LY AHD

TOTLSE

JHOTOANT

00TLSE
00TLSE
00TLSE
00TLSE
00TLSE

THEOTOANT
660LS6
‘AL SJ0H

QHOTOANT

860L56
860LS6

TIOTIOANT

L60LS6

TIDTOANT

960L56

TIDIOANT

S60LS56

QIOTOANT

ON MOHHD

8T/T0/T0 vLE8T
ONI ‘IO0¥D
aLix 0T1°962T'2 STYIOL JOANHA

68S¥0F5996 HOIOANT

8T/TT/TO £S¥8T
0Z68%81996 -IDIOANI
8T1/80/10 STHBT
Z699F%€PS96  THOTOANT
L1/82/2t TLEBT
Z¥92998%96 HIIOANI
LT/6T/2T TLEST
69550£05996 :HEDIOANT
L1/02/2T OLEST

"ONI "JHONIVED "M™M
alx 0T H06°'6 STYLOL VOaNHEA
0T68€T  :EDIOANT
8T/£0/TO 69€81
ANV OEWHAN ‘NYISSNd ‘INZAOMIS ‘HENTISTIOD
QLX 00°399T°'¢¢ STYIOL JOANHA

80%8T :HDIOANT

8T/T0/T0 80%8T
LOV8ST :HOIOANI

8T/10/10 LOP8T

NETIE NETO 40 EOVTIIA

aLx 00°00T STYIOL YOANIA
PEFYBT HDIOANT

LT/T0/L0 PEPST

NOIIYIDOSSY SHOIVYAIO RATIVA XOJ

alX 08 ZL STYLOL IOANEA
SFLZ00-2T HOTOANT

LT/ST/TT ZEP8T

TONI NAIHETY J0d

QLX 2Z°L66'Z STYIOL YOANHIA
dZ-08Z-0GST :HDTOANI

LTOO0LTOZ LT/0E/TT £6€8T

"ONI 'NESTHIN "N°S ‘NIHOSYd "H A

dLX 90°89¢’T STYLOL ¥OUINHA

LIOQHY INVIIYM dIvd

£¥L

L6Z

TLOT

£6¢C

SZ4

L9TT

L00T

TRxew

SATT ¥MD IS:ST 810C/LZ/20



£T°09¢€

AR T AN

7S e2T

¥9°005'8T¢€

9€ €9E'P9T
8T LYT'¥S

6L TLO'Z

00°02
09" %12
8£°9S
¥6° ¢t
00-o0zZ
0o-8¢gs8
TE 608
96°6L

T6°98T1

LE"S9
00" ¥9¢-
PGS e8¥

08 %LT

T4 OHI-SNOIILIIYISENS-SANd 00902ZS LT
aIvd QLX 8E 9%T
JALYM €02Z12CS €-0LT
aQIvd QLX $9°005°8TE
TYAIONTYd JALSIOTA YT 0TTO0SS 0%
LSHYIINT ¥HLSHOIA ¥4I I 0960SS 0¥
aIvd aiLk 90°96€°'T
SHSNAJXH H0IdJ0 00T0€S 0L
SOINOYLOATH ~ TONVIH LN IV 086025 oLe
LNIWNI TO0H -AONYNALNI VA SL60ZS 0LE
SEITAdNS - SNOTIILYIHIO 066025 0LT
SHSNAJXH dOTII0 00T0ES oLE
¥D 3 ONITIING-TONYNALNIVIH 0L6029 oLe
SOINOYIDETH - AONYNI LN T VI 086029 0LT
SEITAdNS - SNOILVIHJO 066025 oLz
dIv¥d AIA 15°2TZ
INEWd IN0OH - HONYNI INTYH SL602S 0Lz
INAWJ TNOH - TONYNTINIYN GL60TS 0LT
INHEWA IN0H - AONYNH INTYIN GL60TS LT
arvd aQix 097695
NOILAI¥YOSAd INOCODY 19 INNCODY 1D

8T0Z/TE/TT OL 8TOZ/T0/TO Z0/8T0T 'I¥OSId OL

zxempdde
S d

8T/6T/T0Q

8T/6T/10

8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/T0O
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/TO
8T/6T/TO
8T/6T/10
8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/TO
8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/10

HLVd MHD

9690-8T02 :HDIOANI
S0TLS6 8T/80/T0 L¥¥8T
*ONT ‘ETTIOL ZOTT

JEOIOANT GLA 8£°9%C STIYLOL JOaNHA
T8EST :*HOIOANT

TOTLS6E LI/LZ/TT 18€8T
ANVAROD YIIVM NYOTIHWY SIONITII LPTT

QEOIOANI QLA ¥9°00S°8TIE STYIOL JOANZEA
9T :HDIOANT

6L2T LT/ST/TT 85¥%8T
9T :HDIOANT

6L2T LT/ST/TT 8S%8T

AONESHY NOILIDHLOEd ‘TUINAWNOYTANA SIONITII 8€S

QEDIOANT QIX 50°56€°C STYIOL JONHEA
TPP8T  EDIOANI

€0TLS6 8T/2T/TO #7881
T¥#8T SHOIOANT

€0TLSE 81/2T/T0 T$98T
I¥%8T EOIOANT

€0TLS6 8T/TT/T0 T¥¥8T
T#H8T HIDOIOANI

€0TLS6 8T/2T/T0 T¥98T
08E€EBT :HEDIOANT

€0TLS6 LT/€T/TT 08€8T
08€8T HOTOANI

£0TLSE LT/€T/eT 0BEBT
08€8T :EDTIOANT

€0TLS6 LI/€T/2T 08€8T
08¢8T HOIOANT

€0TLS6 LT/€t/2T 08€8T

ONI ’¥SN 10dAd INOH %ZT

QEIDIOANT AILX 1§ ZIZ STYIOL MOONHA
PLTLOT HOTIOANT

ZOTLS6 L1/LT/TtT LLERT
09TLOTHD *IDICANI

Z0TLSE 8T/0T/TO 9LE8T
09TLOT :HIDIQANI

Z0TLSE LT/9¢/2T SLEST

INFWIINOH SIYYYH ¥6L
QEOTOANI dLX 027695 SI¥LOL JOANHA
TI¥206 ‘HEOICANI
ON YDdHD Od ¥EHONOA HIVQ ANT LNIFNNO0A
HNYN JOaNHA
T-8TTO -INVIATM

IY0dHY LNVANYM dIVd Threw
ATT ¥MD ISST 8T0Z/LE/20



L% LT

PL 97T
€L LT

8T°961

8T 96T

0%°LE

0% LE

89°8%6

6T 8SL
08°8¢L
63°TTT

98¢

98°¢

00°S68

00° 568

9e°¥%¢

9e7%¢

€T1°09¢

artvd

SOINOLLOHATH - HONYNILNT YN
SOINCYLOHTH - GONVNIT.LNTYIW

aIvd

SOINOELOETH - HONYNTIN TV

arvd

INAN IN0H - HONYNA LN IV

ared

LNANI TNOH - HONYNALNT YA
INFAI INOH -TONYNI LN YA
SOINOILIETH - HONYNA LN I YW

aIvd

SHITAdNS - SNOILV¥HAO

arvd

LNAINA TNOH - TONVNALNIYN

aIvd

SESNIJXH HDIAA0

NOILATYOSHA INMNODDV T

8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 €0/8T0T TYISIA OL

Taxempdde
9 d

aQLx

dLx

arx

aLx

LA

eny'y

arLx

T8 LLT'T

086025 oLe
0860¢S 0LT
817961
086029 oLE
0V L€
SL60ES aLe
£S°EE0’T
SL602CS 0LZ
5L602ZS oLe
086029 oLz
£8°¢%
066025 0Le
00°968
SL60ECS oLe
0e €2t
00TOES 0LT
£€1°09¢

INAODOY 1D

8T/6T/T0
8T/6T/T0

8T/61/T0

8T/61/T0

8T/61/T0
8T/6T/10
BT/6T/T0

8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/T0

HIYA XHO

TIOIOANT

CTITLSE
CTTLSE

GIDTOANT

TTTLSE

TIITIOANT

0TTLSE

TIOTOANT

60TLSE
60TLSE
60TLS6

THOIOANT

80TLSE

JEOIOANT

LOTLSE

THOTOANT

90TLSE

TIOIOANT

ON 2OdHD

dLi 28 LLT'T STELOL YOUNIA
SB9YEST  HOIOANT
81/50/T0 2TH8T
0ZE€8BLZ :TDIOANT
LT/ST/ZT OT%#8T
"ONI 'ODNEN 66T
dLX 8T 96T STYIOL YOANIA
TPEOTZILIAT  EDIOANT
LT/ST/2T Z6e8T
"ONT 'dO0¥% LAIT TUYNOIIWN Z0L
QLX 0% LE STYLOL JOaNIA
S68CTO0T “HDIOANI
LT/eT/2T T6E8T
"ONTI 'STYIEW OWD TICT
aQlLi €5°E€0‘2 STYIOL JOANIA
0EZETSTS HOIOANT
LT/ST/ZT 06€8T
96SEBTLS HEDIOANT
L1/8e/2tT 88EST
ZZ%80C2ZS THDIOANI
LT/2T/CT LBEST
“00 A1ddNS TIYD-WIALSYWOW T4T
ALK €8° €% STVIOL JYOANHA
£T928 TIDICANI
LI/8e/eT 98€8T
"ONI ‘HYYMTEVH HOY S,NIT LST
QLR 00°568 STYIOL JOUNTA
€9%99¢ HEDIOANT
LT/ET/2T S8€8T
ANVAWOD JTOM-AHVAT 68TT
QLXK 0E£°€ZT STYLOIL JOANHA
IT609T¥006 :TDTOANT
LI/Ssz/eT ¥8€9T
ONI SNOILATOS SSANISAY WITTONIW WDINOY S8T
dLX £T°09¢€ STYIOL JOUNHIA
0d YHHONOA HIVJ ANT INANADOT

HYN J0aNHA
T-8TTO - INVIIYM

II0dEY INVEIYM TIVd IATewm
SATT UMD TS:ST 8T0Z/LZ/20



L6°09¢

00°6%9°6

00°6%9°'6

987 €6

48" té

00°0zZ0°'T

00°020°T

987 EvtE

987 E¥C

00°L6%’'S

00°L6%°S

80°¢8%

68°%CT
00°LE
6T 0CE

00" %02

00"%0¢

8T/6T/T0

8T/6T/TO

8T/61/T0

81/6T/TO

8T/6T/TO

8T/61/T0

8T/6T/T0O
8T/6T/10
8T/6T/TO

8T/6T/T0Q

TYALOVIINOD - IONYNALN TV 9L60ZG 0Le
aIvd dLX 00°862°6T
TYALOYIINGD SOINOILOATI 186025 0LZ
aivd dli PL-€€T
SASNAJYH AITJI0 00T0ES oLT
QI¥d Gix 00°0%0°¢T
YIINOD SANNO¥D ® ONIIING TL602S oLe
dIvd QLA 28°860°C
SHITAdNS - SNOIIVIAdO 066025 oLz
QIVd dLX 00°L6F%'S
TUAIDVAINGD SOINQUIOATH 186025 0LZ
QIvd QLA 80°Z8%
INTWd TNOH - EONYNZLNTYIN 5.602S 0Lz
INTHI INOH - EONYNE LN TVIA SL60ZS 0LT
INFWA TN0HE -~ GONTNTINT VI §L60TS 0Lz
arIv¥d dli 00°%0Z
SHSNHAXHE HDIJA0 00T0ES oLz
NOIIJI¥OSEd INAODOY ID INAOSDY IO

8T0Z/TE/TT OL 8TO0T/TO/T0 Z0/8T0T TWISIS OL

xrempdde
L d

HLYd MHD

LSCEBPSL HDIOANT
0ZTLS6 L1/62/2T 66€81
ONI SWILSAS NIATI ALIAVYS 8%
QHEOIOANI dLX 00°86Z°6T STYLOL JOANIA
ZT0S0E :*"IOIOANI
61TLSH Z000LTOT LT/82/2T 86€8T
ONI ‘dno¥s N0 ZIZT
QEIJTOANT dIX HL°€€T STYLOL JOANIA
TOE9T900T8Y8T HITOANI
8TTLS6 81/90/T0O ZHP8T
VOINEWY HILYON SATIVM TIISHEN 2T
QIDIOANT QLA 00°0%0°T STYLOL YOANIA
8%¥8T :HEDIOANTI
LTTLS6 8T/TT/T0 :344:
ANVANOD ONINVATO J¥ 92T
TIDOIOANI JIA 28°860°€ STYIOL JOaN=EA
0-€ZT9T-I :HEDIOANT
9TTLSE 8T/TT/TO $SP8T
TONI ‘SWHISAS HINSSHANd TIVANYI LEZ
QADTIOANT QLA Q0 LET’S STYIOL JOANIA
SZS00€ EOIOANT
STTLSE LT/02/2T LE6EST
OT1 ONILSHL 40 6STT
QEDOICANI dLX 80°2Z8% STYIOL YOONHIA
00-8€LBB9TT :HOIOANT
PITLSE 8T/CT/T0 9% %8T
00-6€6L89TT :HDIOANT
FTTLSE 8T/0T/T0 £Z¥8T
00-STST89TT :HDIOANT
PTTLGE LT/TC/T1 S6€8T
0D XI4dNS NV HdId ITIFOd 92T
TIDIOANT QLA 00 %02 STYIOL JOANTA
0%0698T0TE :HEDIOANT
€TTLS6 LT/0€/2T ¥6E8T
ONT ‘SEMOg XANLIA 9L8
ON MOHHD Od ¥IHONOA HIVA ANT INEWNADOT
HNYN JOaNIA
T-8TTI0 :INYIIYM
IHOATY INYHIYM aIvd IAzew

SATT ¥MD

15:9T 8102/L2/20



PE TCT TEALDRAINOD SOINONIDHTH 186025 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 & 9TTLSE 81/90/T0 0G%8T
TESE686C HDIOANT
D0 8€T TYOILOVILNOD SOINOWIDETH 186029 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 4 9TTLSE 8T/90/10 6VHST
ONI ' INIWEOUNYW ENOLSATI 0%6

$T°8€C qIvd QiX 2T°L8Z JIDIOANT QIX TT' L8T STVIOL JOQNHEA
TI6T8E0L HDIOANTI
01" 16 LMW IN0H - TONYNAIN TV SL602ZS 0.2 8T/6T/T0 d STILSE 81/%0/10 6Z¥8T
PT9E86  ‘HDIOANT
86 8% TYLLOVEINOD - GDNYNIINTYR 946025 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 d STILSHE LT/TE/2T S0%8T
SZLELEOL THDIOANT
9086 INTRI I00H - ONYNTINI VI SL602S 0LZ BI/6T/TO d SZTLSE LI/ST/ZT $0P8T
ANVAWOD XTddNS SOWVNHHEL TILZ
00°2TIS’'T aIv¥d Qli 0S°€%€’'% QIOIOANT QIA 05 E¥E’'% STYIOL JOANHTA
TZETIST :HOIOANI
00°0S¢€ YI-SHOIAYAS TYNQISSHIOUd 908025 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 4 ¥TTLSGE L1/62/2T Z0%8T
60TTST IEOIOANT
00°C9T’T GVI-SHOIANES TYNOISSTIONd 20802S 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 d HZTLSE LT/LZ/2T T0%8T
"ONI ‘SUIYOLVIOSYT NYIINANS 8€L
§9°5L2 dIvd alX L8°T89 QEDTOANT QIX L8 TS89 STYLOL YOaNIA
TETOTPS9EE  IOIOANT
6€°2C SESNAIXHE HDIJJ0 00T0€S 0LZ BT/6T/T0 4 €2TLS6E 8T/S0/T0 ¥PE8T
TETOTHFSOEE  :HDIOANT
85 LT S/INWAINDT CIIVIAY XIHJIVS §TTOES 0.2 8T/6T/T0 d £TTLSE 8T/S0/T0 TYEST
68L6T8P9€EE :HOTOANI
L6765 SHSNAJIXT HOIJIJIO 00T0ES 04T BT/6T/T0 4 €TILSE 8T/€0/10Q 9Cv8T
€6L6T8F9EE ‘HOIOANT
vE-2T9 S/INRAINDT JAIVIHT AIIIVS STZOES 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 4 €TILSE 8T/50/T0 LZH8T
€6L6TBYOEE  IDTOANTI
B0 €€ SISNAJXT HDIAJ0 00T0ES 0LZ 8T/6T/I0 d €TTLSE 8T/50/10 LZH8T
06L6T8H9EE  HDIIOANT
€6°LZ SHSNAJIYXHE HADIJII0 potoes 0LZ 81/6T/T0 & ETTILS6 8T/€0/T0 9Z%8T
ZELET8POEE  HWDIOANI
9€°TL SESNIAXT HOTJAJO 00T0ES 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 d €TILSE 8T/€0/10 SZF8T
“ONI TYIDYEWWOD ¥ JIJVAINOD SATIIVIS 6£6
00°8€6°¢€T dqrvd 4Lk 00°8¢6'ET QEDOIOANI QIX 00°8€6 €T STYIOL YOANTA
€T90598%%%5 :HDIOANI
00°889°TT TYNLIYEINOD SOINOYIDETH 186025 0LT 8T/6T/10 d ZZILSE 8T/T0/TO vZH8T
08E€TETC09S :IDIOANT
00°0s52°2 TYALOVAINGD SOINOCYIOATE 186025 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 4 TZILSE LT/eT/2T 00%8T
"ONI “AJLSNANI SNAWIIS £66
L6°09¢E dI¥d QLA L6°09¢€ QHEDOIOANTI QLA L6°09€ STYIOL JOANTA
NOLLAIYDSHEA INAOJDY IO INNOIDY 1D AI¥d MHD I ON MDHHD O0d WHHONOA ELVd ANT INIWNO0A
HAYN JOANTA
8TOZ/TE/TT OL 810Z/TO/T0 Z0O/8T0Z TUDSIA OL T-8TTO0 :INWVIIYM
Ixempdde I¥0ddEd INVANYM aIvd Z&xew

8 d 2ATT UMD TS:ST 8T02/L2/20



¥9°005°81¢€ T SAHISNVAL TIIM TELOL

6% TEL'TET SS SMDEHD QHAINI¥Ed TYIOL
INNOWY INOOD
€1°5€8'6%% STYIOL IH0dHd
GL° 869 aIvd QLA SL°869 TEDIOANT QLX S4L°869 STYLOL JOUNIA
SL0S09004LT-IT ‘:*HDIOANT
S.°869 Hd DFE-SNOIIdI¥DSINsS-SANg 009025 0,LZ 8T/6T/T0 4 6ZTLG6 LT/0E/1T 0ER8T
NOIIWIIIHES INIWNOYIANT JAIGM 00€
¢S TIS¥ gIv¥d QLX €£°021°T TEDIOANI QLA €£°02T°T STYILOL JOUNHA
909%62L6L6  *HIIOANT
6€° 92T SNOILYDINWHODHTIL S6TICS 0LZ B8T/6T/T0 d BTILSE LT/T0/2T 95%81
€6896066L6 *HDIOANI
E€ET"9ET SNOTIVOTNANWODETHL S6TTIZS 0LZ BT/6T/T0 d 8TILSE 8T/T0/T0O 90%8T
DT SEOIAYAS SSHTHNIM NOZI¥VIA 886
60°60T dIvd dLi ¥L°TSS’T UEDIOANT QLA %L TISS°T STYLOL JOONHA

TI9L9%F -EDIOANI
60°60T SHITANS - SNOILVIdEdO 066025 0LZ 8T/6T/T0 d LTTLSE LT/6T/ZT €0%8T
QL7 INIVW SHILITIOVA X1d4d0S dH 68¢
Pe 66T ar¥d arLX $E€°6ST TIOIOANT LA $E°6SC STYLOL JOuNHA

625€686C HDIOANT

NOIIAIIOSAd INNOJOY 19 INQODOVY 19 SIVd ¥HD I ON XDHHD 0d ¥IEHONOA HIVYA ANI INAWID0T
HWYN JOANHA
8T0Z/TE/2T OL 8I0T/TO/T0 TO/8I0Z T¥DSIA QL T-8TTO0 : INYIATM
zrempdde I90dTd INYINYM JIVd IATeu

6 d SATT ¥MO 1S:ST 810Z/L2/20



¥8°S€e

08°8¢€T

087 9¢T

0076¢€T

00°6€T

Z6°%8¢€’'6

Z6°v8eE’6

00 €00°'T

00°€00°T

70 95¢

91°¢e9¢
8876

00°59T

007591

ST ¥6€°CZT

TV S€T’'%
v.°852°8

SIDECO¥d TYLIAYD TTYHS 0ZTI08S 0%
aIvd QlX 08°9€T
S/INWAINDE IIVIFY XLTIVS SZTOES 0Le
aI¥d QLA 00°6€T
STYOIWAHD 0¥POES 0LZ
aIvd QLX 26 °¥8t£‘6
NV¥Id INAWHAOYdWI ALITIOVA LOOPT 08TO8S 0%
QI¥d QLA 00°£00°T
TIASNOOD TYNHENED-TYOHT 00L0ZS 0Lz
aQIvd QLX vZ' LTIL
0 - SEDTA¥HS TYNOISSHJIOAJ SS0TZS A4
0 - SHDIA¥HS TYNOISSHIONd S50TZS oLz
dIv¥d QLi 00°59T
SHSNHAXHT HOIAJIO 00T0€S 0Le
QI¥d ALX 8L ¥6€’¥S
NIDAXO arndid EYHOES 0Lz
NEDAXO aIndIt £¥F0ES 0Lz
NOILIIEDSAEQ INAODIDY 19 IN(I0DDY 19

8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8T0Z/TI0/TO Z0/8T0T "TY¥DSIA OL

xxempdde
0T d

8T/TE/T0

8T/1€/T0

8T/TC/TO

8T/T€/T0

8T/TE/TO

8T/Te/T0
8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

dI¥d AHO

9eTLSE

TIOTOANT

SETLSE

TEIOIOANT

FETLSE

qEDIOANT

£6C2T

TEOTIOANT

EETLSE

TIOTIOANT

ZETLSE
CETLSE

GIDIOANT

TETLSE

TIOIOANT

0ETLSE
0ETLSE

ON AOHHD

SOTLATIT
8T/6T/TO

“HDIOANT
0LP8T

‘ONI ‘' INHWNIHACD MDD LE
QLX 08°9€T STYIOL JOaNaEA
LLLETT *HEDIOANT
8T/20/T0 LTS8T
II SOHVd %12
aLK 00°6¢T STYLOL JOANTA
T6H0P0Y HDIOANT
8T/6T/TO 69%8T
‘AT ‘ODTYD €€
dLXx 6 ¥#8¢€‘6 STVIOL JOONHA
STZZ9ZT :EDIOANT
L0009TOT 8T/60/T0 70S8T
NOIIVIOJE0D HOLVHA ¥ IOVIE 21T
dix 00°€00'T STYIOL JOANHA
2ZT9L0Z :IEDIOCANI
8T/€z/T0 €0S8T
dT1 DINGNIOHL ¥ SENIVE 69TT
dLX %2 LTL STYIOL JOaNIA
L502€ :EDIOANT
81/02/T0 5ZS8T
056TE :ADTOANI
8T/90/T0 ¥ZS8T
TONI "EDIA¥ES TANNOSYEd NANNYH 880T
ALX 00°69T STYIOL JOaNITA
€SLLT HEDIOANT
81/8T/TO T9%8T
dNo¥H ONILMIIYH X0d 9%TT
dLX 8L ¥6€'%S STYIOL JOANIA
¥90¥PFC0S6  HEDIOANT
8T/€T/TO S9%8T
LTTYPP00SE  HDIOANT
8T/02/T0O F9%ST
ONI ‘S¥OYIV 188
Od YEHOAOA HIVA ANT INHNNDOA
HAYN JOANHA
Z-8TT0 :INVNIYM
JIOdHIY LNYIYM dTVd | xA1eu

SATT VMO

TIS:ST 8102Z/LE2/20



0" LTT
00°€sT
B8 ¥LT
89°0TE'T
LE 68T
¥Z 6€
00°5¢L

L9°26L'T

L9°T6L'T

0Z°TOT

027701

G9°062'6

6E°6TE
817 9Z%
80°9¥%S'8

6£706T

6€°06T

00" TLT

00°TLT

¥8°G¢Ee

NOTIWONAd dFAOTINH 0gsoes aLz
SHSNAJXHE HOIJJ0 00TO€S aLz
SHSNAJXH FOIJ40 00TO0€ES oLe

ININd IN0H - IDNYNEILN TV 54602S oLz
SNOILVOTNNWNODHETHL S6TTZS oLz
SHSNIHJXH HOTIJA0 0010¢ES oLT
SHITANS - SNOILVIddo 066028 0Lz
drva QLA 62 L80°90T
YHMOd OIT¥LOATAE TOZTCS T-0LT
JI¥d dTLA SE ¥6T
SHOILON TYDdT 0sL0Es GLC
AI¥d QLA LZ €06°61
SYD NED-ATIS 4 ARA) LT
SYD TVANLYN [AARA) T-042
5D TYINLYN 20Z1TZs oLe
dI¥d QLA 8L°08¢
YAILNCD SANNOID ¥ ONIJIING TL602S oLZ
arIvd QLA 00 TLT
TYALDVILNOD SOINOYIOHTH T860E2S 0LZ
aIvd dLX 10°Z8¢t
NOILATYOSHJ LNNODOY ID LNNODOY T

8T0Z/TE/TT OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 20/8T0C TYDISIZ OL

xxempdde |
T al

8T/1€/T0
8T/TE/T0
8T/TE/TO
81/TE/TO
8T/TE/TO
8T/TE/TO
8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

81/1£/T0

8T/1€/T0O
8T/TE/TO
8T/T1£/TO

8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

HIVA AHO

M LBZZ LI/LZ/2T 8TS8T
6LLT-UYMD HDIOANI
M 9822 LTI/LZ/TT LTS8T
BLLT-YMD HDIOANT
M s8¢c LT/LT/TT 9TS8T
LLLT-YMD TIDTIOANI
M ¥8TZ LT/LZ/2T STS8T
9LLI-YMD EDIOCANI
M €822 LT/LT/TT $TS8T
SLLT-YMD HOTOANTI
M Zsze LT/L2/T1 €1S8T
PLLT-UMS  EDIOANI
M 1822 LT/L2/ZT Z1s8T
ANVE QITHL HIATIA LTL
QIEJIOANT QIX 6Z°L80'S0T STYLOL YOaNIA
TI08T8Z8SBET :UDIOANT
d T¥ILS6 8T/%2/10 TTS8T
OTI ‘SEOIAYES AOWANA ADINAQ LETT
AEDIOANI TIX SE°F6T STYIOL VOUNIA
SO0ST6%HL  *HDIOANI
d 0%TILSE 81/61/10 €L¥8T
ONI ‘SNOIIVOITENd MD0ddWd z9
IFOIOANT dLA LZ €06°6T STYLOL JOANIA
T8LEZCT -HDIOANI
d 6€TLS6 81/22/T0 L0G8T
T8LEZZT :*HOIOANI
d 6ETLSE 8T/Z2/10 L0S8T
T8LETZT HEDIOANI
d 6€1LS6 81/22/1T0 L0S8T
ONI SHDIAYAS ADWHANA NOILVITALSNOD 8€TT
QEOTOANI QLX 84°08¢€ STYLOL YOANHA
STPFPE9E69L HDOTLOANI
d 8£TLS6 8T/0€/10 ZLV8T
69L# NOILVIOJAOD SYINID L%
QIOTIOANT dlX 00°TLT STYIOL JOANHTA
6F¥8SLTOONT  *dEDIOANI
d LETLSE 8T/TT/T0 TLT8T
“00 NOIILNHAHYd HIId NYLITOJOILIW OTWOIED 09TT
QIDIOANT QLA T0'Z8€ STYIOL JOANIA
I ON XDHEHD Od WIHONOA HIVA ANT INIWNND0T
ANYN JOaNdIA
2-8TT0 :LNVIdUM
IIOAHE INYIIYM dIVd xkrew

SATTT YMD

TS:ST 8T0Z/LZ/20



6T ZT

00°0S

00709

¥8°2CT

¥8-2cctT

98°6TC

9876T¢

ST LES

ST LES

LT 68L €T

L9°9TD'€
0S°CLL’'OT

€S°1ISF' ¥

00°8ST
9Z°¢6
S6°69
58°290°T
00°6%T

INHRA TN0H - SONYNALNTYIH

arvd

NOIIVONAT FHFXOTANHE

aIvd

YALEM

arvg

SDINOYIOHETH -HONYNEINT Y

ar¥d

D ¥ ONITIIAE-HONYNAILNIYN

arvd

TYNLOVALNOD - HONYNILNT VI
SHEA QVEHIAAO

arvd

NOIILVONJA HIAOTIWH
SOINOULOATH - HONYNELNT VI
TTNALIVILNOD SOINOYIDTTI
SOINOILOETH ~ FONYNALNI YN
TYNLIOVILNOD SO INCUIOHTH

aLX

alx

aLA

@LA

QLK

arLx

8T/1€/T0

8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

8T/TE/TO

8T/Te/T0
8T/1€/T0

8T/TE/TO
8T/TE/TO
8T/TE/TO
8T/TE/TO
8T/T€/T0

NOILATIOSHUT INNODIVY 1D

8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 20/8T0Z TY¥OSId OL

xxempdde
T d

S4602S LT
00° 08

0Z90z% 0L2
8E°9%2

£02TeS £-0Le
06 LoE

086025 LT
0T"962°2

0L60ZS oLe
00°99T ‘g€

9L602S oLz
0ETTCS 0LZ
€6°0L0’8

0Zg0zs oLe
086029 oue
186025 0LT
0860CS oLe
186025 0LT

INQODOY ID

HINT JHO

d 9%TLSE
TIOIOANT
d S¥TLSE
TIOTOANT
d ¥%TLG6
TIOTOANT
d E¥TLSE
THDTOANT
d Z¥TLSE
QIOTIOANT

M TetZ
M ZezZ

TEHOTOANT

M 08cZE
M Tece
M 0622
M 68c¢
M 88227

L ON 2MDHHD

9z828
8T/21/10

*HOIOANT
8LP8T

‘ONI HNYM@IVH gDV S NHIT 4ST
QLX 00°0S STYIOL JOANHIA
8LT¥ ADIOANT
8T/6T/TO 9L¥8T
SHIDNAOY JALVMALSYM A0 "NSSY SIONITII 92T
ALE 8€° 9% STYIOL HOaNIA
LL¥BT *HDTOANI
8T/%Z/T0 LL¥%8T
ANVIHOD ¥HLYM NYOIYAWY STONITII L¥TT
QLA 0§°LOE STYIOL YOANTIA
89TLBLOT :EDIOCANT
8T/0T/10 SLP8T
ANYAWOD HOVH 6TT
dli 0T°962°T STVIOL J0aNdA
PLZP6HC896  HDTIOANT
8T1/62/10 PLYBT
"ONI "SHONIVID "M°M L6T
dlA 00°99T1°2¢E STYLOL YOaNdA
6ST-LAT HEDICANI
8T/T€/T0 €258T
6ST-14I :HDIOANI
81/Te/TO €Z68T
NATIE NATO 40 HOVITIIA £62
dLX €6°0L0°8 STYIOL JOaNHA
€LLT-YMD HIIOANT
L1/Le/zt 0ET-YMD
TELT-YMD :HOIOANT
LT/te/zt 22581
€8LT-¥MD EDIOQANI
LT/LE/eT 1ZS8T
TRLT-UYMO :EDTOANT
LT/LZ/2T 02881
TELT-YMD :HOIOANI
LT/L2/2T 6TS8T
08LT-¥MD ‘HDICANTI
Od YHHONOA HIVA ANT INFWNDOT
AAYN JOANFA
Z-8TT0 :INVIIYM
I80dTY INVIEYM qIvd! Ihren

2ATT YMD|

TS:ST 810Z/LZ/Z0



0L %TS LNAWA TN0HE - ZONVNELNT VI SL60TS 0LZ 8T/TE/T0 4 PSTLSE 8T/8T/T0 98%8T
"ONI ‘'SWHISAS FUNSSTId TTYANYN LET

8T° %28 QIVd QIX 0£°66T°T QEDIOANI dLX 0£°66T’°T STYLOL JOANTA
PEPHFTEC0009d  :HOIOANI
60°ZT1¥ INHWA I00E - FONYNA INTVIN SL602S €-0LZ 8T/TE/TI0 4 £STLSE 8T/2T/T0 S8%8T
YPFTEZ0009d :HOIOANT
60°CTH INHNA IN0E ~-IONYNIINIVIN GL6024 T-04Z B8T/TE/TI0 d €STLS6 8T/TT/TO S8F8T
"ONI ‘SIIIILSNANTI NIILIVd 8TZ
9T %6¥% aivd aQlX L% 68 QEADIOANI dIA L¥ 968 STYLOL JOaNIA
T9600% :HDIOANT
9T "¥6% gY¥1 - SHITAANS ONILVIZJ0 90T0¢€S 0LZ 8T/TE/T0 d TSTLSE 8T/ST/TO $8%8T
ONI NISNODSIM J0 ‘IDN 60T
0T %09 QI¥d QIX T8 LLZ'T TEOTIOANI QLX 28" LLZ T STVIOL JOANTA
HETS98T HIIOANI
0C° %09 SOINOTLOETH - HONYNIINTYIH 086028 04T 8T/TE/T0 4 TSTLSE 8T/9T/T0 £8%8T
TONI 'O0NAEN 66T
LETQEE dIVd QLR LE'O0EE THEOIOANT QLA LE'OEE STYIOL YOUNTA
PLPVPZI-0TTI *HIIOANT
LE 0EE LNIWI IN0T -HONVYNILNIVIN SL60ES 0LZ 8T/TE/T0 d 0STLSE 8T/8T/TO Z8%8T
ONI SHTULSAANT NOIILOA 88T
¥8-9TL arvd dLA £€5°€€0°z QIDTOANT dLX £S°€€0°2 STYIOL JOaANIA
8CTOTLEYS :EDIOANI
Z0°0L INANG TN0H - FONYNIT INT YN 5460€S 0LZ 8T/TE/TI0 & 6VTLSE 8T/LT/T0O 8%8T
CESTLERS :EDIOANT
28°9%9 INHNI TADE ~ HONYNI LNTYIWN SL60ZS 0LZ 8T/T€/T0 d 6FTLSE 8T/LT/TO 09%8T
“0D XIddNS JAVO-YHALSYWOW TLT
8L°90T‘9¢ aIvd QlLix ¥T°S6T ‘92 QEDTOANT dLX ¥T G6T°9%T STYLOL FOANHA
Z0S8T EDIOANT
84°901'9¢2 SIDELOYd TYIIGYD 08108S 0% 8T/TS/TO 4 8FTLSSE €0008102 8T/8T/T0 £0S8T
TIVEROT 40 EOVTIIA S6T
00°0%2'9 aIvd dLX 00°0%Z’9 AIDIOANT TLE 00°0%Z'9 STYLOL JOANHA

S6CS  THDIOANT
00°0%Z°9 TYALOVALNOD SDINOILOITH T8602ZS 0LZ 8T/TE/TO0 d L¥PTLSE 8T/£2/T0 6L78T
ONI ZDOTONHOHL OMNIT 6%TT

6T° 21 aIvd dlLX €8 €% TEDIOANT QLXK €8° €% STYLOL JOaNHA
NOIIATIOSEd LNAODIY I INQODOY 19 HIVQ ¥HD I ON ¥OEHD O0d ¥IHONOA HIVJ ANI INANNDOJ
TWVN JOaNEA
8T0Z/T€/CT OL 8T0Z/10/T0 20/810% T¥DSTd OL Z-8TTO :LNVIIUM
arempdde LIOdTI INVIHVM gIvd TAzeu

€T d SATT ¥MD TS:ST 8T0Z/L2/Z0



L8BTTT0086 ‘HOIOANI

Z8°¢F%Y SNOTLYOINNWWODHTHL S6TTCS 042 8T/TE/T0 d 6STLSE 8T/8T/TO T0S8T
OTT SHOIAYES SSTTHIIM NOZIYHA 886
ST ¢ aIvd 4dLx 91°¥% JIOIOANT QIX 91" % STYIOL ¥OaNHA

820¢0T4A6 -HDIOANT
9T ¥ SHSNHAXA ADIJIO Q0T0ES 0LZ 8T/TIE/TO0 4 8ST1LSE 8T/ET/TO 92581
ONTI ‘HDIANES TIDUVd QILIND LL®

0S"T€8'Z arvd aQIX 0S° €HE‘F GEDIOANT QLA 0§ €FE’¥® STYIOL JOANHTA
STLIST :EDIOANT
05°0LE SYI-SHDIAIHAS TYNOISSHAOEA 908025 0.2 8T/TE/T0 4 LSTLSE 81/6C¢/T0 0TS8T
9TLIST :HOIOANT
0S°0LE HSYI-SHOIAYHES TYNOISSHAAOEd 908025 04Z 8T/TE/T0 d LSTLSE 8T/60/10 60587
LZOZST *HOTIOANI
00°6L6 GYI-SHOIAYAS TYNOISSHAOYI 908025 0.2 BT/T1E/10 d LSTLSE 81/62/T0 80¢S8T
688TI5T HOIOANT
057 0LE SVI-SHIIANES TYNOISSTIOId 908025 0LZ BT/TE/TO0 d LSILSE 8T/6T/T0 66F8T
068TST :EDIOANT
0s°0LE gYI-SHOIANAS TYNOISSEIONd 908025 0L4Z 8TI/TE/TO d LSTLSE 8T/6T/TO 86%8T
T68TST :HOIOANI
05°0LE SYI-SEOIANES TYNOISSHIONd 9080¢S 04T 8T/TE/TO 4 LSTLSE 8T/6T/T0 96%8T
“ONI ‘SHIMOLVICHVT NYSINdNS 8¢L
£€5°52¢ QIVd ALK L8°Z89 QIDIOANT QLX LB Z89 STYIOL J0OaNdIA
€8ZSTLI9€E  :TDIOANI
€L°22T~ SESNEZAXd HOIAJ0 00TOQES 0LZ BT/T€/10 d 9STLSE 8T/8T/T0 P6¥8T
S8ZSTLY9€EE  :HDIOANI
89°¢S§ SASNAJIXT HDIJI0 00TOES 04Z BT/TE/TO d 9STLSE 8T/¥z/T0 £6¥8T
ZEETLZ099EE :HDTIOANI
PLT6 SHSNAAXH FITAL0 00TOES 0LZ 8T/TE/TO & 95TLSE 8T/LT/TO ZEVBT
0E€E€TZ099¢€E HIDIOANT
SL°SS¢ SESNAdXH HOIA40 00TOES 0LZ 8T/TE/TO 4 95TLSE 8T/9T/TO T6¥S8T
£EE€ETZ099€E  *ADIOANI
S6°¥E SHSNAJXH HOIJIJA0 00T0ES 0LZ BT/TE/T0 A 9STLSE 8T/8T/T0 06%8T
TE€EETZ099€E :HDIOANI
PT €T SHSNAdIXH ADIAI0 00TOES 0LZ B8T/TE€/10 4 9STLSE 8T/9T/T0 88981
"ONI TYIDWHWWOD ® IOVAINOD STIJYIS 6¢6
0% °"T08 aIvd QLK 0% 108 QIDIOANI QLA 0% TO8 STYIOL JOONEA
NI-8TSE60T HEDIOANT
0% 108 INHNA IN0H - GONVNI INTYIN SL602S 0.2 8T/TE/T0 d SSTILS6 81/91/T0O L8%8T
“ONI WOITOALHAI NMOL-QIW- ENXIYIEI 08T
0L %TS QIvd dLX Z8°860°C THIDIOANT QLK €8°860°Z STYIOL JOUNSA
0-L6Z9T-T :HEDIOANI
NOILATYDSHA INNOJIY 19 INOODDY 19 HIVQ YHD I  ON MDHHD Od ¥WHHONOA HIVA ANTI INANADOT
HWYN MOUNIA
8T0Z/TE/2T OL 8T0Z/TO/TO Z0/8TOZ TWDSIA OL Z-8TT0 . LNTIIVM
xzempdde JAOdHY INVINYM QIVd TATeu

¥T d SATT ¥MD TS:*ST 810Z/LZ/T0



¥ TTTSURPWOY ATRW AQ POIRISUSD - JHOLHE J0 ANE +*

79°SZ9°Le T SEHASNVIL TIIM TYIOL
TP VST LY 0¢ SUDHHD GAINTAI TYIOL
INNOWY INNOD
$0°088°%6 STYIOL IJOdHI
28 TYY aIvd QLA €£°02T'T QEOIOANI QIX £€°0ZT'T STYLOL JOANAA
NOTIIATIOSId INAODOY 1D INOOJOVY T9 HIVA MHD I ON MOHEHD 0d YAHDOOOA HIVA ANT INTWOO0a
AWNYN JONHA
8T0Z/TE/CT OL 8T0Z/T0O/T0 E0/8T0Z TYOSII O Z-8TT0 :INVIIVM
Txempdde IJOdTd INVIIYM dIvVd JAzeu

ST d SATT ¥MD TS:ST 8IDE/LT/ZO



0% 885
¥s 1IZE'6

657 2q¢

657202

00 T6T

00°TeT

00°S6L°T

00°96L°T

69°850°T

69°8S0'T

¥v Z8e

A4 14

T6 " 3LT

T6°9LT

SL°Zze'et

6T LSL'S
95°088°9
00° 982

S¥D TYINIYN
SYO TVINLYN

aIvda

SNOILYO INOWNODHTAL

aIvd

VIINOD SaNNOYD ¥ ONITIIQd

arvd

SOINOELOETH -HONYNALN IV

arvd

SNOILYOINOWAODATHL

arvd

INANG IN0E ~EONYNEINI YN

arvd

INIW IN0HE - IONYNHLNIVH

arvdg

NIDAXO drnoIT
NaDAX0 dIndI1
NADAXO qInNdIT

NOILAIYOSHA LNOOJOY ID

8T0Z/T€/ZT OL 8TOZ/TO/TO T0/8T0T '"T¥DSIA O

Zrempdde |
T d|

aLX

aLX

aLx

aLX

aLx

arx

QLA

ToTICTS T-0LT
zoTTEs 0LZ
81°S0%

SETTZS 0LE
00-z8¢

TLE0TS FA
00°9zZ8’¢€

086025 oLe
88°tT1L’'e

S6TTZS 0LZ
4 414

SL602ZS oLe
T6"SLT
SL60ZS5 0LZ
8L°P6E'HS
E¥P0ES 0Lz
EPF0ES 0LT
£FF0ES oLeZ
INQODJDOY 1D

81/91/20
81/91/20

81/9T/20

8T/91/20

8T/9T/20

8T/91/20

81/9T/20

8T/91/20

8T/91/20
8T/91/20
81/91/20

HLVa HMHD

LITLS6
L9TLSE

TIOIOANT ALX

99TLS6

THOTOANT dLX

S9TLSE

TIOIOANT ALX

PITLSE

JIOIOANT dLX

E9TLSE

TEOIOANT LA

C9TLSE

JEDIOANT dLX

T9TLSE

TIHDICANT QLA

09TL56
09TLS6
09TLS6

SATT ¥MD

6908E€2ZZ HDIOANTI
8T/L0/2Z0 9€S8T
6908€Z2 :FDIOANI
8T/L0/20 9€58T
ONT SIDIA¥AS XOWANA NOILYITILSNOD BETT
8T S0¥ STYLOL TOANHA
5€98T :HEDIOANT
8T/52/T0 SE€58T
OTT ‘SNOIIVOINNWWOD HTIYD LSYOWOD 06%
00°T8E STYIOL JOUNHEA
06069T :HEJTIQANI
8T/T0/Z0 $ES8T
T00 ¥OIVAHTH XHTIOD 81ZT
00°9zZs’¢ STYIOL JOanNEA
8TT0Z0IDD HEDIOANT
8T/T0/20 £ES8T
"ONI  ‘TYINAHNOIIANE IJD Z60T
88 €TT'T STYLOL JOUNIA
0LS8T :HEDIOQANI
8T/ST/20 04S8T
SNOTINVDTINOWWOD TIIINO 618
¥%° 28T STYLOL JOAN=EA
ZEQ6SE  HDTOANT
81/20/20 ZTESBT
ONI S.aNVId=" ¥Z
T6°9LT STYIOL J0aNIA
8€98TSZTOL  :HDIOANT
8T/0€/T0 TESST
ONI SIIDOTONHDHL TYINISAANI JIIIddY 09ZT
8L ¥6E£’%S STYIOL YOANIA
80¥¥¥H00S6 :HEDOIOANT
8T/LZ/TO 0£58T
6TTI6F700S6 HDILOANI
8T/£0/20 6258T
T6%5S0€ZL06 HDIOANT
8T/€0/20 8ZS8T
ONI ‘SYDJIIv¥ 188
Od JHHONOA FIVT ANI INTWODOT
TN HOANIA
1-8T20 :INVIIVYM
LIOdTY INVIIYM AI¥d IXIew

TS:ST 81I2Z/L2/20



L6°8Z8 T

S8°L8G5'9

Z6°2¥8°¢€E
€6°¥VL’T

08" %6C

08°v6¢C

09-cve’s

00°059°%
09°€69°¢€

LS S6T’'T

98761
TLoSLT'T

00°zZ68

00°268

9T° 08

95°9¢
09° €5

29°2I9'0T

LNAWI TN0F - TONYNI INT YW

arvg

TEALOVELNOD SOINCNIDETIE
TYNLOVILNGD SOINOYIDHTH

aIvda

TENLOVILNGD - SNOILVIHJO

aIva

TISNQOD TVIINAD-TYDET
TESNNOD TVIENED-TYOH'T

arvd

TIIVM
YIITM

arvd

TEOLIYALNOD - HONYNILN TV

arvd

YIMOd DOIHIDHTH
YEMOd OTULOHTH

aivd

SYD NED-JTHS

NOTLATUOSHA INNODOY 19

8T0Z/TE€/TT O 8TOZ/TO/T0 20/8T0T TWOSIL OL

Taxempdde
4 d

aLx

aQLX

ALA

QLK

arLx

aLk

aLx

SLE0ES oLz
S8°L8S'9

T8602S 0L
T860Z9 0Lz
097698

T6602S oLe
02°%06'6

00L0ES 0LT
00L0ZS oLz
00°991T'2¢

£0CTCS aLe
€0CTCS 0LT
00°Z68

SLE0ES 0LT
6T°480°90T
TOZTZS Z-0L2
TOTIES T-0LE
LT E06°6T

yoc1Zs oLZ

LNOOJOY 1O

8T/91/20

8T/91/20
8T/9T/Z0

81/91/20

8T/91/20
8T/9T/20

8T/9T/zZ0
8T/9T/20

8T/91/20

8T/91/20
8T/9T/T0

8T/91/20

HALVA AHD

YLTLSE LT/ST/ZT S¥PS8T
ONI SONIUTIOH SHITJANS TVIHAWT T92T
QEDIOANT QLX S8°L8S°'9 STYIOL JOANHA
T-0ZT6%TT *HEDTIOANT
€LTLSE 81/60/20 TLSST
0CT6%TT HOIOANI
€LTLSE 8T/60/Z0 TLSST
NOTIVIOdY¥0D SENIHOVM SSANISNE TUNOIILVNIIINT £LL1
TEDIOANTI dLX 09°69% STYLOL JOANIA
£91€96 *HOIOANI
ZLTLSE 8T/T0/20 1%58T
ONI ’‘IO0¥D £¥L
TIDIOANI IIX 0Z %066 STYIOL JOaNHA
6086ET :*HEDIOANI
TLTLSE 8T/L0/20 P¥S8T
Y-6086€T HOTOANT
TLILSE 8T/T0/Z0 Z%S8T
QLT A40H ANV DHWEN ‘NYISSNY ‘INZOOMNS ‘ANILSATIOD ZL0T
IOTIOANT QLXK 00°93T°2¢ STYIOL JOaNaIa
8958T EDIOANI
0LTLS6 81/T0/20 8958T
L9G8T :*HEDIOANT
0LTLSE 81/T0/20 L9G8T
NXTTE NITD 40 IDYITITIA £6T
JIDIOANT QLA 00°Z68 STYLOL JOANIA
$STSH  SEDIOANI
691LS6 8T1/T0/T0 6€£58T
"ONI TOOL ¥ ENTHOVN TYIENID S60T
QHOIOANT QLA 6T°L80°'S0T STIVIOL JOANIA
IZOSTTEBS8ET :FUDIOANT
89TLS6 8T/T0/T0 £958T
TZOBTEEBSBET *HDIOANI
89TLS6 81/80/20 LESST
JT1 “SEDIAYHS ADJANT XOINAA LEIT
QEOIOANI dIA LZ €06°6T STYIOL JOUNIA
6908€£2Z :EJIOANI
LITLSE 8T/L0/c0 9€S8T
ON OFHD 0od JIHONOA HAIVA ANT INANADO0A
WYN JOANAA
T-8TZ0 :LNTIYM
TH0dHY INVINYM dI¥d xhzew

SATT ¥MD

IG:ST 8102/L2/20



ANVANOD ONINVATO J¥ 92ZT
ZL T60'T arvd 4Ix 28°860°%T TEIDIOANT LA Z8 860°C STYLOI JOANIA
0-08T9T-I :HEOTOANI
9L LLE SEINddNS - SNOILYYHAO 06602S 0LZ 8T/9T/Z0 d T8TLSE 81/90/20 $958T
0-0S%9T-I :EOIOANT
96 €11 SHITA4NS - SNOILIVYHAIO 066025 0LZ 8T/9T/Z0 d T8TLS6 8T/0€/T0 05581
"ONI 'SWILSAS HANSSTEd TIVANYY LEZ
00° 01T arvd QIx 00°07TZ THOIOANI QLA 00°0TE STYIOL JONTA
S8Z60T HEDIOANT
00°012 VALNOD SANAOYD ¥ DNIQIING TL60TS 04Z BT/ST/T0 & 08TLSE 8T/TE/TO 67581
"ONI SHEHOIA¥AS ONITIING TYNOISSHIONd HNO WYID0Id ZS6
0% 28’9 ar¥d QX 0%°ZL8°9 QIDIOANT QLA 0% ZLB'9 STYIOL JOANHEA
8%0L0ZT :HDIOANI
0%°7.8°9 STYOTHWIHD 0FH0€S 0LZ 8T/91/20 d 6LTLSE 8T/92/T0 8¥58T
ONT ENAQXTOd 522
e £TE arvd dli £5°€€0°2 TIOTOANT dIX £5°€£0°Z STYIOL JOUNIA
TLE680SS  HDTOANT
vE-€2E ¥D ¥ ONIATING-TDNYNEINTYH 0L60ZS 0LZ 8T/9T/T0 d SLILSE 8T/92/10 L%S8T
"D X1dANS YAV -EALSYMOW TLT
2£°88 arvd QLX ¥1°S6T’9¢ TADTIOANT GIK %1 S6T'9% STYIOL YOANIA
0958T EDIOANT
0881 MIIYM €02TZS 04T 8T/9T/20 d LLILSE 8T1/62/T0 0958T
6SS8T EJTIOANT
95769 AILYM £0TTITS T-0LZ 8T/9T/T0 d LLTLSE 8T/62/T0 65581
QIVENOT 40 FOVTIIA 56T
T6°69L°T aIvd QLE €6°69L°%2 TIOIOANT dIX Z6°69L°T STYIOL JOANITA
TOEST-8T :TDIOANI
26°69L'Z SOINONIDHTH - IONYNEINI VI 086025 0LT 8T/9T/20 d 9SLILSE 8T/0£/T0 9%58T
a1 IV FEF
%688 gI¥d alx 0€ €I QIOIOANT QLA 0€°€TT STYIOL JOANTIA
TESTSTP006  EDTOANT
%689 SHSNAIKA HEOILI0 00TOES 0LZ 8T/9T/Z0 4 SLTILSE 8T/5Z/T0 €FSBT
ONI SNOIINTOS SSENISNE VITONIW WOINOY S8T
L6°828°T arvd Qix L6°8Z8°T QEDJIOANT QLX L6°828°T STYIOL ¥OUNIA
6¥THFEN000T :EDIOANT
NOIIAT¥OSHA INNCDOY ID INQODDY ID HEIYA ¥HO I ON XDFHD Od ¥EHDNOA HIVA ANT INIWNOOT
HWYN AOANIA
8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8TI0T/T0/T0 ZO/8T0Z TWOSIA OL T-8TZ0 *INVINYM
arempdde | LJOdHE INGRIYM qIVd TAxew
€ a SATT ¥MO TS:ST BI0Z/LE/Z0



20°50¢

00°00¢

007002

66°9¢2C

66°SEZ

9T T6T'€

9T°TeT’'C

86°8%

86°8%

90°%L376T

90°%L9 6T

69718

65795
0TS¢

00°6%9'6

00°6%9 "6

00°020°'T

00°0z0'T

YT - SAEITddNS DNILYIIJO
arid

g¥1 ~ SEITddNS ONILYNAJO
arvd
SNOTIL¥DINNWNODITAL
arvd

DNTYHANIONA NOISHT
aivd

TYALOYILNOD ~EONYNI LN TN
arvd

ANV'I - TYSOdSIA THaqals

arvd

SHESNAJXH TOIAJO
SEASNAHAXT HOIJA0

arvd

TEOLOVALNOD SDINOHIOATH

arvd

TIINOD SANNO¥D % HNIATING

NOILATYDSHd LNAODDY IO

8T0Z/TE/2T OL 8T0Z/T0/1I0 T0/8T0¢ TTYOSIA OL

axempdde
14 d

aLix

aQLX

[(ATN

QAL

aLx

aQLX

aILX

90T0€S oLz

00° 002

90T0ES oLe

€ET0TT'T

S6TTZS oLz

9T T6T'2

9T80ZS oLe

TI"L8Z

9L60TS oLe

90°%L9'6T

0STTZS 0LT

L8°Z89

00T0ES oLe

00TOES 0LZ

00°86Z'6T

1860€S 0LZ

00°0%0°T

TL602S 0Le
INNODDY IO

8T/9T/Z0

8T/91T/20

8T/91/20

8T/9T/20

8T/9T/20

8T/9T/20

BT/91/20
8T/9T/20

BT/9T/Z0

BT/91/20

HILVd ¥HD

06TLSE

THIITOANT

68TLS6

TEOTOANT

88TLSE

qEOTIOANT

LBTLSE

TEDTIOANT

98TLG6E

TIDTOANT

S8TLSE

THOIOANI

P8TLSE
¥B8TILSE

THEOTOANT

£8TLSG6

TEOTIOANT

C8TLSE

8T/€Z/T0 T958T
“0D NOSYIANY- SNEATIM 60€
aii 00°00Z STYLOL YOANZA
50Z°0T :EDIOANT
81/%2/10 9681
"ONI ‘SNOIINTOS ONIHOIEM €69
LK €€°0ZT'T STYILOL YOaN=A
8EE6680086 HDICANI
8T/T0/Z0 695871
OTT SEDIAYAS SSATIIIM NOZINHA 886
ALX 9T°1I6T'Z STYLOL YOONHA
TETHPT HITOANT
8T/TE/TO 85587
TONI ‘SHIVIDOSSY QNV dEIIONI T00T
ALi ZT-L8T STYIOL YOOANIA
009%86 *HDOIOANT
8T/1€/10 LGS8T
ANYAWOD X1ddAS HOVNIEL TLZ
ALX 90 ¥L9'6T STYIOL JOaN=A
8¥6TT :IDIOANI
8T/80/z0 9G5G8T
TONI ‘ONICVANIS LUYMALS LS4
dIA L8°Z89 STYIOL JOaNZTA
ST6LB8BLO9EE :HIIOANT
8T/T€/TO SSS8T
CT6LBBLIEE HADIOANT
81/T0/20 ¥GS8T
TONT TYIDYIWWOD 3 IOVAINOD STIIVIS 6%6
Alx 00°862°6T STYIOL YOANHA
€T0S0E :HDIOANI
0008102 81/90/20 €558T
ONI ’'dno¥d NN 2TI2T
aQii 00 0%0°Z STYIOL JOUNIA
ZS98T :EDIOANT
8T/10/20 25681
Od JIHONOA FIVA ANT INAHAO0T
TWYN JOANHA
T-8T20 :INVNSYM
IIOJTY LNVIIYM TIVd xAxeu

SATT ¥MD

TS:ST 8TOE/LZ/Z0



€5°502°T6 It S¥D

STYLOL I30dTy
aIvd anX z0°soz

NOILITYOSEA INNODDY ID

8TOZ/TE/TT OL B8I0Z/I0/T0 Z0/8T0Z TYISTA OL

HEHD TIINING TYIOL

@IOTIOANLI QLA Z0°S0T

LNAQDOV 1D ZIVd ¥HD I ON MOHHD

STYLOL HOANHA

TOO " 8%TSLTTIS *HOIOANI

Od ¥AHONOA HIVA ANI

T-8TZ0 :INYIIVM

ITATeW
TS:9T 8T0Z/LZ/Z0

IFOIEN INVHYYM aTvd
SATT WM



00" ETT
T %c

58°985°%S

£5°8%
€0°218

T2 LZY'T
89°L86'8%
0% TTe ¢

00°95S

0079595

CL™SL

LT SL

€97 §¢

T97g¢

(A 414

T %52

SL°2Ss’s

¥6°005'S
T8 TS

NOTLINDODHE AHXOTAWH
SHSNHAXH HDIJJ0

dI¥d dLX 6Z°480°90T

YIAMOd OIAIDITH
dIMOd OTULOETH
JdM0d DIELDATH
JEM0d OI¥IDATH
YIMOd DTEIDITIT

aIvd alLx

TYALOVIINOD SOINOYIDATH

aIvd aix

SESNAIYXE HDIJAJC

dIvd aQLx

daMOd DIVIDITH

dIvd arx

S/INWAINDH QAIVILY ALAAVS

aIvd dLi

NIDAXO aIndiT

TYALOVILNGD SOINOYIOHETI

ZOHH&HMUmWQ LNNODOVY 1D

8T0Z/T€/ZT OL 8T0Z/T0/TO T0/8T0C TT¥DSId O

aaxempdde
9 d

50€0TS oLe
00T0€S 0LT
T0ZTCS oLz
T0ZTZS £€-0LT
T0ZTZS Z-0LC
T0ZTZS oLe
102TZ9 T-0LT
00985

T8602S 0Le
CLTS4

00TOES 0LZ
9654

TOZTZS oLe
T9°8¢€S
S2e0es 0LT
8L ¥6E€'%S
ePF0ES 0Lz
T860€S oLT
LNQODOY 1D

81/L2/T0
8tT/L2/20

8T/LZ/20
8T/L2/20
8T/LZ/Z0
8T/L2/20
8T/LZ/20

81/L2/20

8T/LT/T0

81/Le/z0

8T/L2/20

81/L2/20
81/L2/z0

d
d

HIVQ AHD I ON MDHEHD

LBLT-YMD :HDIOANT
Leece 81/62/T0 ET98T
9BLT-¥YMD :HDIOANI
9622 8T/62Z/10 1T98T
JNVE QEIHL HISTS LEl
QIDTIOANT ALX 62°L80°90T STYIOL JOWNIA
TZOBTZEBSYET :HITOQANT
96TLSE 8T/%¥T/20 ¥8S8T
TZOBTEC8S8ET  HDIOANT
961456 8T/%T/20 £8S8T
TZOBTLZ8SBET :HDIOANT
961LS6 8T/ST/Z0 z8ssT
TZOSTOERSBET :HDIOANT
96TLSE 8T/€T/20 18581
TZOBTB8ZRSBET :TOIOANI
96TLSH 8T/02/20 08S8T
OT1 'SHOIAYHS AOWENT ADENACQ LETT
JEDIOANT ALX STYLOL JOANZA
PEEBLOT ADIOANT
SE6TLS6E 8T/0Z2/Z20 6LS98T
ONI SYOICW DT¥IOHTA ¥EATISIHSd B/
TIDIOANT AL STYLOL YOUNAA
STY0E FDIOANI
P6TLSE 81/91/20 LLSST
"ONI SOIHAVIDOUdTS SHIOHA SSOUAD T86
THOIOANT QLA STYIOL JOANIA
SLSBT HDIOANI
€6TLSE 8T/2T/Z0 GLS8T
ANYJWOD NOSIQHE HILTYIAMNOWWOD 0§
AIDIOANT dLA STYIOL YOANIA
ZZOGESEQOF8  :HEDIOANT
Z6TLSE 8T/9T/Z0 94G8T
ALAAVS 3 QIV LSJYIJd SVINID 892
QHDIOANT QLA STYLOL YOUNHA
9EEEFF00S6 HOIOANT
T6TLS6 8I/0T/Z0 PLSET
ZZBYSL0S66  HOIOANT
TETLSE 8T/c0/z0 €L58Y
ONT 'SY¥DYIV T88
od mmmuoo>,ma<a ANT INHRNOO0Q
HNYN JOANAA
~8TZ0 :INVIIYM
IYOdHY INVIYYM aIvd IArew

SATT ¥YMD

1561 8T0T/L2/20



¥9°L8

TIS°LES

65°6T1¢C
6E"LS
£5°02¢

09" L8E

039°L8¢%

LT 68L'ET

L9°9T0'€
09°cCLL 0T

0% 6T9°€

00°669°T
ETA 214
00°T1Z
LE"BST
SL'T¥%Z
00°00¢€
09°6%T
167021
00° 96
06°¢0T
00°8%

BT0Z/TE/ZT OL B8T0Z/TO/T0 Z0/8T0Z TYISIL OL

Txempdde |
L d

Y1 - SHEITIANS ONIIVIAJO 90T0ES aLe
dI¥d dIX 0T 962'c
SDINOYLOTTH - HONVNILNI VI 08602S oLe
SOINOYLOATE - HONYNTINTYH 0860€% oLz
gD ¥ ONIATING-JONYNILNIVA 0L602TS 0LT
arivd drLX 0T %¥06°6
TASNNOD TYIINTD -TVOHT ooLozs oLT
aI¥d QLA 00°99T°'2¢
TENLOVELNOD -~ EDNVNI LN IV 9L6029 oLe
SHEL AVHHIEAO 0¢TTES oLZ
QI¥d ULA €6°0L0°8
SdITddNs - SNOILYYHIO 066029 oLe
SOINOYLOTTE - HONVYNAINI VI 086028 oLT
H4 DHI-SNOILAIT¥DSHNS -SANA 0090Zs oLe
SNOILYD INAWNODHE AL S6TTIZS oLe
g7 - SHITAANS ONIILVIAdO 90T0€S oLz
NOTIIVONAd HIACQTIWHT 0290249 oLe
SWIOJAINO S¥¥0¢€S gLz
SHSNHIXT HITJ440 00TOES oLe
NOILVONTH HTAOTIWH 0Z80<cs oLe
SHSNEdXH HDTIJJI0 00TOES oLE
SESNAJXHE HOIJL0 00T0¢ES oLe
NOIILATYDSEJ LNAODOY 'I9 LNNCDOVY TO

8T/LZ/20 d 66TLSE 8T/T€/T0 6858T
ANYAHWOD HOVH 61T

QIDIOANI JIX 01°96Z°'Z STYIOL JOUNHA
¥86L66€696 HDIOANI

8T/LZ/20 4 86TILSE 81/80/Z0 88S8T
TEL6LESOLE FDIOANT

8T/LZ/20 d 86TLSE 8T/1Z/20 L8S8T
0ET9TEP0LE6 IDTOANT

8T/L2/20 d 86TLSE 8T/02/20 9868T

“ONI ‘¥EDNIVID "M"M L6Z

QIDIOANI QLA 0Z %#06°6 STYLOL JOANIA
9Z86ET “HDIOANI

8T/LZ/20 4 LBTLSE 8T/L0/20 S8S8T

"aLT J40H ONY DEWEN ‘NYISSOA ‘IMZAOWIS ‘ANIISTIOD ZL0T

JEDIOANI QLXK 00°99T°zZE STYLOL JOANHA
09T-14I :TDIOANT

8T/LT/20 M ¥62T 8T1/L2/20 ISTETOT
09T-I4T :EIIOANT

8T/LZ/20 M %6TT 8T/L2/20 TSTETOT

NATTIE NATO 40 IOVIIIA £6C

QHEOTIOANI dIX €6°0L0'8® STYIOL JOANIA
S8LT-V¥MD :EDIOANI

8T1/L2/20 M SezT 8T/62/T0 TET-YMD
LELT-YMD “EDICANI

8T/LT/20 M LOEZ 8T/62/TO €298T
96LT-YMD :FDIOCANT

8T1/L2/20 M 90¢€Z 81/62/T0 TZ98T
S6LT-VMD :HDIOANT

8T1/LT/C0 M SOET 81/62/10 0Z98T
PELT-YMD :EDIOANT

81/LT/20 M %0€T 8T/62/T0 6T98T
E6LT-YMO HDOIOANT

8T/L2/20 M £0g€T 8T1/62/TO 8T98T
TELT-YMD HOIOANI

8T/LT/Z0 M ZogT 8T/62/T0 LT98T
TELT-YMD EDIOANT

8T/LT/20 M TOET 81/62/T0 9T98T
D6LT-YMD HDIOANT

8T/LTZ/T0 M 0CfT 8T/62/T0 ST98T
68LT-YMD :*HDIOANI

8TI/LZT/Z0 M 6622 BT/62/T0 PT981
88LT-YMD HITIOANT

8T/LT/T0 M 86ZT 8T/62/T0 £€198T

IV MHD I ON MDEHD Od FHHONOA TIVA ANT INAWNDOT

HWNYN JOANTA
Z-BTZO0 *INVIIVM
I¥0dT INVIIYM dIVd IATew

OATT ¥MD

TS:ST 8102/L2/20



ST99T62 :HOTOANTI
0z 1t% SOTINOYIOTTH - HONYNHEINTI YN 086029 0LZ 81/L2/20 90TLS6 8T/L0/20 66S8T
09SLT6C *IDIOANT
S6°89T1 SOINOYLDITH - HONVNIINI YW 086029 04T 8T/LZ/Z0 4 90TLS6E 8T/L0/20 8658T
"ONI ‘ODNEN 66T
LI ¥F aIvd QLR €S°€£0°'Z THDIOANI (LX €S°€€0'T STYLOL JOANHEA
069GE€T9S IDIOANT
L9 ¥ INARG IN0H - IONYNIINTYN S.60CS 0LZ 8T/LZ/20 S02LS6E 81/80/20 96981
“0D A1ddNS ¥EYO-UIISVIOW TLT
8L°82 arvd LA €8°¢€¥ QHEDIOANT TIX €£€8°¢€¥H STYLOL JOaNIA
L1TE8 THDIOANT
8L°8Z SAIIdANS - SNOILVHTJIO 066029 oLz 8T/LT/T0 $02LS6 81/80/20 S6S8T
‘ONI 'HIYM@IVH 3DV S.NAT LST
I%°TE9 aIvd aQLX T% " TE9 UTHOIOANI (LA T¥% TE9 STYLOL JOANHEA
€PLFO9G0EE  HIIOANT
TI%°TE9 INIWG IN0H - FONYNT NI VA SL60CS 0Le 81/L2/20 £02L56 8T/91/20 £€658T
ONI SIONAOAd NOSMYTI $9ZT
LT %wee aIv¥d dli 90°96¢£°T TEDOIOANI LA 90°96€£°T STYIOL JOaANEn
T6S8T HOIOANT
98794 SOINOYLOF IH - HONYNI LN ITWR 086026S 0.2 81/L2/20 Z0ZLS6 8T/€T/20 T6S8T
Z6S98T HDIOANT
59°2T¢C INAIWG 100HF - TONYNTIN IV SL602S oLz 81/Lz/eo z0ZLS6 BT/€T/20 26S8T
Z6S8T HDIOANT
9L°S¢ SHITIANS - SNOILYIIJO 066025 0LZ 8T/LT/Z0 Z0CLS6 8T/¢1/T0 z26S8T
ONI ‘¥Sh LO4HEd JWOH %2T
00-S¢ arv¥d aQik 00°S¢ QEDIOANI QLA 00°SE STYLOL YOANHEA
?92 HOIOANT
00°§¢ TYALOVILNOD - SONYNAINT YW 9.602S 0LZ B8T/LZ/Z0 102LS6 8T/TE/TO 16S8T
FOVIYD S.NIEISTOH 586
09°92 arIvd dli 1s°ZIe QIOIOANT QLX T& ZIT STYLOL JOANAA
0ST80T :HOIOANT
09°92Z INANA T00H - HONYNAINTYIH SL602S 0Lz 81T/Le/20 00ZLS6 81/¢g/20 06G8T
INIWAINGA SITIVH ©6/
¥9°L8 dIvd QIA 0S°LOE QEDIOANT IILX 05 L0E STYIOL J0ANIA
€679T80T :HDIOANT
NOIIJI¥OSId INOODDY 19 INOODOVY 19 AIVd MHD ON MDITHD Od YIHONOA HIVA ANT INFWNOCT
TAYN JOaNIA
8T0Z/TE/2T OL 810Z/T0/T0 Z0/8T0Z TI¥ISIA OL Z-8TEC0 :INTDIYM
Ixespdde IdOJTY INVIIYM ATYd IATRW
8 d SATT YMD TS ST 8T02/LEZ/Z0



¥STS8% -HDIOANT
SRS 4 4 gY¥'l - SETITIANS ONIIVIHJO 90TOES 0LZ 8T/LZ/Z0 4 €TIELS6 8T/L0/20 0T98T
QLT INIVYW SEILITIOVE XT1ddAS OH 68T

LT 2oL aIvd aLX LT Z9L TADIOANT ALA LT Z9L STYLOL YOANIA
00869ZT6 EDIOANI

LT°294 INANI INOH - IDNYNT IN TV SL60CS 0LZ 8T/LZ/T0 d TIZLSSE 8T/Tz/TO 6098~
"ONI 'MOTd XdS €9zt

68°6¢ aiv¥d ALX %L €€1 TEDIOANT QLA ¥L°EE€T STYLOL JOANTA
ZOE9T900T8E8T *HDIOANT
68°6¢€ SHSNEJXH HDIJJ40 00T0ES 0LZ 8T/LZ/20 4 TTIZLSE BT/90/20 80987~
YOTYEWY HIMON SYAIVM STISHN 1%
$S°8%T arvd dli Z8°860°T TEDIOANI dIX T8°860'T STYLOL ACANIA
0E6S9TI HOTOANT
T9° %L INHWI IN0H - TONYNIINITYN SL60CS 0LZ 8T/LZ/20 d 0TEZLSE 81/90/Z0 L098%
0S0L9TI :HOIOANI
T6 €L INAWI TNOH - INYNIINTYH SL60TS 0LZ 8T/LZ/TO d 0TELSE 8T/80/20 9098~
"ONI ‘SWHILSAS HUNSSHAd 'TIVANYY LET
ZT SLE arvd QLE 0€°66T'T QEDIOANTI QLA 0£°66T°T STYIOL JOANTA
€ZSTEZ0D09d :HIIOANI
€€ ZHT INAWNI IO0H - HONYNI TN TN SL60Z5 €-0LZ 81/LZ/Z0 d 60TLSE 8T/90/20 50987
$ZSTEZ0D09d :HDIOANT
6L°2ET INIWA 1005 - HONVNI LN TV SL60ZS T-0LT 8T/LZ/TO d 60ELSE BT/90/T0 $0981
"ONI ‘SEINILSNANTI NALIVA 8TZ
TE°00% qIv¥d AlX LV 68 QEDTOANI dLA L¥° $68 STYIOL JOaNHEA
S8220% HDIOANT
59°56 g9 - SAITAANS ONIIVIIJO 90T0ES 04T BT/LZ/ZTO d 80TLSE 8T/2T/Z0 €098T
LETZOY HEDIOANT
99°%0¢ Y1 - SHITIdNS ONIIVIZIO 9QTO0ES 0LZ BT/LZ/ZO d 80TLSE BT/60/20 20981
ONI NISNODSIM A0 TON 60Z
0% LZT dIvd QLX O% LET TIOIOANI AIX 0% LZT STYIOL dOANEA
T098T :dEDIOANT
LY 0L SYD TYINIYN TO0TICS 0.LZ 8T/LT/TO0 d LOTLSE 8T/6T/20 T098T
0098T :-IDIOANI
€6°99 SYD TYINLYN Z02Ies 04LZ 8T/LZT/20 d LOTLSE 8T/8T/TO 00981
ANVAWOD S¥D SIONITII NIEHINON S0%
S1°00S aIvd ALX Z8°LLT'T IDIOANT QIX 28 LLZ'T STYLOL ¥OANHA
NOILAT¥OSId LNNOJOY 1D INAQODOVY 1D EI¥d HHD I ON MDHEHD 0d WHEHONOA HIVA ANT INANNZSOT
HAYN JOaNHIA
8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 Z0/8T0Z 'TVDSIA OL 2-8TZ0 :INVIIYM
zxempdde | L9404y INVIOYM qIVd TATew

& d | SATT YMD TS:ST §T0T/L2/20



#x TITSUBWOY Axep AqQ pPOIRISUSD - LA0dHEE J0 ANH +x

L5°B0F LT a SHTISNVAL HITM TYIOL
L8° 050’89 £z SAOHEHD UHINIId 'TYIOL
IROOWY INNOD
¥% 657’68 STYLOL IJ0dHEd
S9°Z¥V e aIvd aQiX %L°1S5°'%2 QEDIOANT QLA $L°TSS'C STYIOL MOUNHA
NOIZATADSIA INNOIDY IO INNODOV 19 AIVd MHD I ON MDH Od ¥HHONOA HIVA ANT LNAWOD0A
TWNEN JOANAA
8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8TIOZ/IO/TO 20/810Z TYOSTA OL Z-8120 :INVIAVM
zrempdde INOITI INVIIYM dIvd IATeU

0T d QATT ¥MD TS:ST 8T0T/LE/ZO



SECTION 5.3

CONTRACT APPROVAL -
BIOSOLIDS HAULING - 3
YEAR AGREEMENT



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: David Goodalis, Operations Superintendent )

DATE: March?2,2018

RE: Request for Authorization
Biosolids Hauling and Disposal Contract Award

During the month of January, GWA placed an advertisement for bid for a 3-year contract for the
removal and disposal of municipal bio-solids from the main Glenbard plant. At the bid opening
date on January 26, 2018 at 12:00pm, there were six (6) registered plan holders. At the bid
opening GWA received four (4) bid packets. The results are as follows:

Bid Basis Amount: 1stYear [Bid Basis Amount: 2nd Year Dally| Bid Basis Amount: 3rd Year

Estil Y
Dally Hauling $ per Cubic Yard Hauling $ per Cubic Yard Daily Hauling $ per Cubic Yard stimated Total 3 Year

Company/contact info

Stewards Spreading $19.39 $19.97 $20.57 $431,496.00
Synagro $19.00 $19.00 $19.00 $410,400.00
Midwest Injection $32.75 N/A N/A Bidder did notfill out
required addendum
Walter & Son Waste Hauling NOBID NOBID NO BID NO BID
Telum Customized Environmental Solutions NOBID NO BID NO BID NOBID
Dahm Enterprises $19.36 $19.46 $19.94 $423,072.00

Company isa bid
collective in that they
Prime Vendor N/A N/A N/A provide a single source for,
vendors to secure bid

packages

After review of all the required documents, Syango was the lowest responsive, responsible
bidder with a hauling rate of $19.00 per cubic yard for the entire three-year contract period. In
CY2017, GWA had been paying $19.46 per cubic yard, so we will realize a cost savings of
$0.46/cubic yard (approximately $5,000/year). Syangro is a recognized company that has a
satisfactory reputation, and hauls for other local municipalities as well. The total value of the
contract dollar amount will be dependent on the amount of cubic yards of bio-solids produced
per year, and is typically budgeted at $170,000/year

GWA recommends the award of the three (3) year contract for Disposal of Municipal Bio-Solids
to Synagro for the amount of $19.00 per cubic yard for the three years.



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: David Goodalis, Operations Superintendent

DATE: March2, 2018

RE: Request for Authorization
Biosolids Hauling and Disposal Contract Award

During the month of January, GWA placed an advertisement for bid for a 3-year contract for the
removal and disposal of municipal bio-solids from the main Glenbard plant. At the bid opening
date on January 26, 2018 at 12:00pm, there were six (6) registered plan holders. At the bid
opening GWA received four (4) bid packets. The results are as follows:

Bid Basis Amount: 1st Year |Bld Basis Amount: 2nd Year Daily| Bid Basis Amount: 3rd Year

]
Daily Hauling $ per Cublc Yard Hauling $ per Cubic Yard Daily Hauling $ per Cubic Yard Estimated Total 3 Year

Company/contact info

Stewards Spreading $19.39 $19.97 $20.57 $431,496.00
Synagro $19.00 $19,00 $19.00 $410,400.00
Midwest Injection $32.75 N/A N/A Bidderdidnoriliout
reguired addendum
Walter & Son Waste Hauling NOBID NO BID NO BID NO BID
Telum Customized Environmental Solutions NO BID NO BID NOBID NO BID
Dahm Enterprises $19.36 $19.46 $19.94 $423,072.00

Company is a bid
collective in that they
Prime Vendor N/A N/A N/A provide a single source for
vendors to secure bid

packages

After review of all the required documents, Syango was the lowest responsive, responsible
bidder with a hauling rate of $19.00 per cubic yard for the entire three-year contract period. In
CY2017, GWA had been paying $19.46 per cubic yard, so we will realize a cost savings of
$0.46/cubic yard (approximately $5,000/year). Syangro is a recognized company that has a
satisfactory reputation, and hauls for other local municipalities as well. The total value of the
contract dollar amount will be dependent on the quantity of cubic yards of bio-solids produced
per year, and is typically budgeted at $170,000/year

GWA recommends the award of the three (3) year contract for Disposal of Municipal Bio-Solids
to Synagro for the amount of $19.00 per cubic yard for the three years.



1.1

12

CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS

ARTICLE ONE
CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Contractor shall remove biosolids resulting from wastewater treatment at the Glenbard
Wastewater Authority (“Owner”) treatment facility located at 945 Bemis Road in Glen Ellyn,
Ilinois (“Biosolids”) on the following basis throughout the time period of this contract:

Digested Municipal Wastewater Biosolids — Class B:

During the months of April through October, Biosolids is to be hauled Monday through
Friday from the Owner’s facility by the Contractor. The contractor shall provide five (5)
thirty-one (31) cubic foot trailers onsite at all times during these months. Hauling shall
normally take place on Monday, Wednesday and Friday, unless Owner contacts Contractor
for additional hauling on Tuesdays and/or Thursdays, with hauling beginning no earlier than
7:00 a.m. Full trailers shall be removed by 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. Owner shall
contact Contractor if pick-up time is not appropriate for the scheduled day. Additionally, the
speed limit on Bemis Road is 25 mph, observation of this speed will be and is strictly
enforced. The Owner reserves the right to refuse admittance to any driver(s) who repeatedly
fail to comply with requests to reduce speed. Owner is to be billed based on a flat rate per
cubic yard of Biosolids, and 28 cubic yards per truck. This dollar amount will be the
determining basis of bid for this contract. Bulk hauling shall constitute a volume of 700
cubic yards or more.

During the months of November through March, Owner has an approved snow and ice
permit, and can store Biosolids at the facility and contact Contractor when bulk hauling is
required. As an alternate option, Owner will require a fixed cost to daily haul per cubic yard
to a landfill or designated field if needed during the winter months as deemed necessary by
Owner. Also as an alternate option, Owner will also require a fixed cost to daily haul per
cubic yard to a designated field or landfill during the summer months that fields may not be
available and the thirty (30) day stockpile rule would be exceeded for the hauler. These
alternates will not be taken into consideration in determining the lowest cost proposal, and
are only to be defined in a contract in the event those services are needed.

Weather permitting, the Contractor shall begin removal of Biosolids from Owner’s facility
within seven (7) calendar days after receiving notice from Owner for Bulk Hauling.

Contractor shall notify Owner a minimum of 48 hours prior to moving equipment onto the
Owner’s facility for bulk hauling events and shall provide twenty-four (24) hours notice if
not able to provide trailers required for daily hauling due to circumstances outside reasonable
control of the Contractor.

Page | 1



1.3 Contractor shall provide the necessary labor and equipment to safely and efficiently load and
transport said Biosolids away from the Owner’s facility. The Contractor shall bear all costs
related to the removal and hauling of sludge.

1.4 Transportation of the Biosolids from the Owner’s facility to the land application site or to
the sanitary landfill is entirely the Contractor’s responsibility. It shall be the Contractor’s
responsibility to contact any road authorities whose jurisdiction the roads fall under, obtain
their requirements for hauling over their roads and permits, if required.

1.5 The Contractor shall maintain the interior of the hauling vehicle in such a
manner as to prevent build-up Biosolids that would limit the amount of sludge being hauled.
In addition, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to monitor the load of each truck to insure
loading within legal weight limits.

1.6 The Contractor shall receive Owner’s Biosolids in all weather conditions,
whenever the Biosolids are made available and shall be responsible for all problems related
to proper handling and transportation. It shall be the full responsibility of the Contractor to
make whatever adjustments, provisions, etc. as may be necessary to satisfy this contract.
These adjustments shall include, but not be limited to provisions for inclement or freezing
weather, additional trucks or storage sites.

1.7 Contractor shall provide the Owner with a duplicate copy of the load sheet
which details the date of removal, the time the truck left the Owner’s facility, the truck
number, the driver’s name, total number of cubic yards of Biosolids loaded, and the
destination of the Biosolids. Contractor will follow Owner’s requirements on chain of
custody.

1.8 Contractor shall provide the necessary labor and equipment to properly apply
the Biosolids to approved land application sites at agronomic rates in accordance with all
applicable federal, state, and local rules and regulations. Applications of Biosolids shall
conform to 40 CFR Part 503 Regulations, IEPA Regulations Part 391 and the Owner’s Land
Application Permit.

1.9 The Contractor shall be responsible for locating, receiving permission and
obtaining any necessary permits to apply Biosolids to suitable farmland application sites.
Application and storage sites shall meet the requirements for land application sites in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations for the use and disposal of
Biosolids.

1.10The Contractor shall use trailers with gaskets to prevent leakage of Biosolids onto roadways.
The Contractor shall provide for the prompt clean up of any spill from Contractor or
subcontractor’s equipment, or shall reimburse Owner for any and all costs associated with
the cleaning up of spills that are cleaned up by Owner.

1.11 In the event of a spill or regulatory problem involving Biosolids from the
Owner, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Owner.

Page | 2



1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

The Contractor shall be responsible for controlling odors at the off-site storage
and disposal sites in accordance with state and local regulations.

The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his
employees and permitted subcontractors and shall not employ for services any unfit person
or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him/her.

Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations, and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on performance of the work,
and shall promptly notify the Owner if the specifications are at variance therewith.

Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his
employees, permitted subcontractors, and their agents and employees, and other permitted
persons performing any of the work under contract with the Contractor.

Contractor shall complete any required federal, and/or state waste disposal sheets as required
by the USEPA or the IEPA relative to the beneficial use of the Biosolids. The Contractor
shall maintain the records during the life of this agreement and shall provide the records to
the Owner on a monthly basis.

Contractor shall be responsible for all required soil fertility analyses associated with the land
application of the Owner’s Biosolids including pH and necessary pH adjustments.
Contractor shall supply Owner with copies of the analysis.

Contractor shall be responsible for all costs associated with any pH adjustment needed to the
soil where Owner’s Biosolids is to be applied.

Contractor shall allow Owner to inspect any and all proposed land application sites for
application of Owner’s Biosolids and allow Owner to monitor, photograph or videotape daily
operations with respect to the application of the Owner’s Biosolids.

Contractor shall be responsible for submitting required reports to IEPA and Owner on a
monthly basis. Reports should include but not be limited to the following information: Dates
and volumes of when Biosolids hauled, land applied and stored off site. Site information
such as soil analysis, pH requirements, location, map, updated agronomic rates, cumulative
loading and a signed user form for each site.

The Contractor shall have a minimum of five (5) years experience in hauling and land
application of Biosolids and shall include at least three (3) references, preferably from other
local municipalities.

1.22 Contractor shall supply Owner with a copy of the Illinois Commerce Commission

Authority Permit allowing the Contractor to haul Biosolids.

1.23 The Contractor shall include copies of any Regulatory Agency citations,

Page | 3



2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

2.6

3.1

32

violations, investigations, inquiries, etc. relating to the hauling, application, and/or follow-
up procedures necessary for the agronomic application of Biosolids for the past five (5)
years, to include final disposition of same.

ARTICLE TWO
OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Owner shall insure the Contractor and its employees, agents or independent contractors
reasonable access to and from the wastewater treatment facilities as scheduled by Owner’s
operations personnel.

Owner shall provide Contractor with copies of all applicable permits or approvals obtained
from regulatory agencies.

Owner shall maintain good quality stabilized, dewatered Biosolids that are acceptable for land
application and meets minimum treatment criteria and pathogen reduction requirements for
Class B Biosolids as defined by 40 CFR Part 503 regulations.

Owner shall be responsible for any and all analyses the Biosolids prior to removal. Owner
shall be responsible for any additional testing that federal, state or local regulatory agencies
may require.

By signing this Agreement, Owner certifies that none of the Biosolids provided to the
Contractor shall constitute hazardous waste under federal, state or local laws. Owner further
certifies that it will not combine or mix hazardous waste with the Biosolids that is to be
provided under this Agreement.

It shall be the Owner’s responsibility to provide dewatered Biosolids at approximately 18%
dry solids to the Contractor.

ARTICLE THREE
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT

The work to be performed under this Agreement shall commence on May 1, 2018 and will
end on April 30, 2021.

Owner may terminate this Agreement for convenience of Owner if it is determined that
termination is in the Owner’s best interest. Owner shall not be required to provide any reason
for its desire to terminate. Any termination for cause that is ultimately held unjustified by a
Court of competent jurisdiction shall be automatically deemed a termination for convenience
of the Owner. Upon such termination, contract recovery, if any, shall be limited to the
amounts of Biosolids removed, but not yet paid for. Where Contractor’s services have been
terminated for convenience of Owner, the termination shall not affect any rights or remedies
Owner may have against the Contractor then existing or which may thereafter occur. Any

Page | 4



33

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

retention of payment of money due Contractor will not release Contractor from any other
liability hereunder.

Termination by Owner having been explicitly contemplated by the parties hereto,
notice of election to terminate shall take the following form:

NOTICE OF TERMINATION

This is to notify you that the Owner has elected to

cancel and terminate, and does hereby cancel and

terminate, effective ,

20___, the following written agreement entered into

with you, all in accordance with the provisions

thereof.  Digested and Undigested Municipal Biosolids Removal,
Transportation and Disposal Agreement

between Glenbard Wastewater Authority (Owner) and

(Contractor)

Dated

Notice of termination shall be by service of the above by person, by mail or by fax from the
Owner to the Contractor.

When Owner deems it necessary or desirable, any Notice of Termination may
provide for immediate termination or may provide up to thirty (30) days notice of termination.

Notices served by certified mail are presumed to be received by the party to whom they are
addressed four (4) days after mailing of said notice. Faxed correspondence will be considered
received within one (1) hour.

ARTICLE FOUR
METHOD OF PAYMENT
PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR

Methods of Payment for Services of Contractor: For removal, transportation and disposal of
Owner’s Biosolids at the price(s) bid for each year of the three year agreement. Owner does
not guarantee any minimum amount during the term of this Agreement. However, Owner
estimates approximately 12,000 cubic yards of Biosolids of about 18% dry solids content per
year (refer to Section II. for details).

4.2 Contractor shall submit statements to Owner based upon the total number of cubic yards of

4.3

Biosolids removed according to the load sheets prepared at the time of removal. Contractor
shall follow Owner’s protocol for loads removed from the site. Owner shall make prompt
payment in response to Contractor’s statements, in the manner required by the Illinois
Government Prompt Payment Act.

Other Provisions Concerning Payment:

Page | 5



4.3.1 If Owner fails to make any payment due Contractor for services and

432

433

expenses within sixty (60) days after receipt of Contractor’s bill therefor,
Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days written notice to Owner, suspend
services under this Agreement until Contractor has been paid in full all amounts
due for services.

In the event of termination by Owner under paragraph 3.3, payments due Contractor
for services rendered shall constitute total payment.

The Owner and Contractor shall agree beforehand on the volume of Biosolids
which constitutes a full trailer or given volume for both daily and bulk hauling
before commencing hauling, and use that figure for billing purposes.

ARTICLE FIVE
INSURANCE PROVISIONS

5.1 Contractor shall procure and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents,
representatives, employees or subcontractors.

5.2 Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

521

522

523

Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001
(current ed.)/and/or Owners and Contractors Protective Liability policy with the
Owner stated as named insured; and

Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (current ed.) covering
Automobile Liability, code 1 “any auto” and endorsement CA 0019 (current ed.)
changes in Business Auto and Truckers coverage forms — Insured Contract; and

Workers” Compensation as required by the Labor Code of the State of
Illinois and Employers’ Liability Insurance.

5.3 Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, insurance
with conditions as shown below:

5.3.1

532

Commercial General Liability and Property Damage Insurance. This

insurance shall protect the Contractor from claims of bodily injury and

property damage which may arise because of the nature of the work from operations
under this Agreement in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for
bodily injury each occurrence, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for property
damage each occurrence and Two Million ($2,000,000.00) Dollars aggregate
period.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. This insurance shall

Page | 6



cover owned, hired and other non-owned automobiles and shall protect the
Contractor from claims for bodily injury or property damage which may arise from
the use of motor vehicles engaged in various operation under this Agreement. The
automobile insurance shall provide for a minimum combined single limit of One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).

533 Worker’'s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance.  Worker’s
Compensation insurance shall protect all persons employed by the Contractor in
carrying out the work under this Agreement in limits as required by the Labor Code
of the State of Illinois, and Employer’s Liability Insurance shall protect all persons
employed by the Contractor in carrying out the work contemplated by the
Agreement in an amount of at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).

5.3.4  Excess Liability Insurance: At the Contractor’s option, primary limits may be less
than required above with an excess liability (umbrella) policy providing the
additional limits needed. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided it,
combined with primary policies, provides the insurance coverages herein required
and that the excess liability minimum amounts equal or exceed Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00) per occurrence and Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) in the

aggregate.

5.3.5 Environmental Liability Insurance required in the amount of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000).

5.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Owner.
At the option of the Owner, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or
self-insured retentions as respects the Owner, its officials and employees; or the Contractor
shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation, claim
administration and defense expenses of Owner.

5.5 Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
5.5.1 General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

a. The Owner, its officials, employees and agents are to be covered as insureds as
respects: liability arising out of activities performed by oron behalf of the
Contractor; products and completed operations of the Contractor; premises owned,
leased or used by the Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed
by the Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope
of protection afforded to the Owner, its officials, employees or agents.

b.  The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary as respects the Owner, its
officials, employees and agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the

Page | 7



5.6

Owner, its officials, employees or agents shall be excess of Contractor’s insurance
and shall not contribute to it.

c.  Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage provided to the Owner, its officials, employees, or agents.

d.  Coverage shall state that Contactor’s insurance shall apply separately toeach
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the
limits of the insurer’s liability.

5.5.2 Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability Coverages: The insurer shall
agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the Owner, its officials, employees
or agents for losses arising from work performed by Contractor for the Owner.

5.5.3 Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state coverage
shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limts except
after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested,
has been given to the Owner.

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no less than B+.

5.7 Contractor shall furnish the Owner with certificates of insurance naming Glenbard Wastewater

5.8

59

Authority as additional insureds with original endorsements affecting coverage required by
this clause as required by Owner. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy
are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The
Owner reserves the right to request full certified copies of the insurance policies. This
Ceritificate of Insurance shall be delivered to Owner prior to the start of Contractor’s work.

Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insured under its policies or shall furnish
separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for
subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

Nothwithstanding the foregoing insurance requirements, to the fullest extent permitted by law
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its agents, and employees from
and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including but not limited to attorney’s
fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided that any such claim,
damage, loss or expense, (1) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to
injury to, loss of or destruction of tangible property, including the Biosolids disposed of
pursuant to this Agreement, and including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) is caused
in whole or in part by any intentional, willful or negligent act or omission of the Contractor,
any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for
whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a
party indemnified hereunder. Such obligations shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or
otherwise reduce any other obligation of indemnity which otherwise would exist as to any
party or person described in this paragraph. In any and all claims against the Owner or any
other agents or employees by any employee of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone
directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be

Page | 8



6.1

6.2

7.1

liable, the indemnification obligation under this paragraph shall not be limited in any way by
any limtation on the amount or type of damage, compensation or benefits payable by or for
the Contractor or any subcontractor under Worker’s or Workmen’s Compensation Acts,
Disability Benefit Acts or other Employee Benefit Acts.

ARTICLE SIX
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois; venue shall be in DuPage
County.

The Contractor may not assign any of its obligations under this contract and any
subcontractors or agent which Contractor wishes to utilize must be approved in writing by the
Owner.

ARTICLE SEVEN
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety
precautions and programs in connection with the removal, transportation and programs in
connection with the removal, transportation and land application of the Biosolids. The
Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all
reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss of (1) his employees and Owner’s
employees or other persons who may be affected thereby, (2) all of his materials and
equipment incorporated therein (3) other property at the site or adjacent thereto; he shall give
all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of
any public authority on the safety of the persons and property and their protection from
damage, injury or loss. Contractor shall promptly remedy all damage or loss to any property
caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable including any person
indemnified herein. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to his
obligations under Article Five above.

Page | 9



ARTICLE EIGHT
TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

8.1 If the Contractor defaults or persistently fails or neglects to remove Owner’s Biosolids in
accordance with the contract documents or fails to perform any provision of the contract, the
Owner, after written notice to the Contractor and without prejudice to any other remedy he
may have, and without a thirty (30) day notice, may terminate this Agreement

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER: GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
Glen Ellyn, Illinois

Chairperson Date
Executive Oversight Committee

CONTRACTOR:

(Authorized Representative) Date:

Page | 10



SECTION 5.4

APPROVAL OF DIGESTER
CLEANING DISPOSAL OF
MUNICIPAL SLUDGE
CONTRACT



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: David Goodalis, Operations Superintendent

DATE: March 2, 2018

RE: Request for Authorization
Digester Cleaning and Disposal of Municipal Biosolids

During the month of February, GWA placed an advertisement for bid Digester Cleaning and
Disposal of Municipal Biosolids at the main Glenbard plant. This contract will consist of
removing remaining contents of digester number two and cleaning the digester. Due to the
potential of odors being created due to the work, the Authority has provided for a $5,000
incentive if the work is to be completed prior to March 26, 2018. Also, the Authority has the
right to stop the work and terminate the contract if the work is not completed by April 6, 2018.

At the bid opening date on February 23, 2018 at 12:00pm, there were eleven registered plan
holders. At the bid opening GWA received four (4) bid packets. The results are as follows:

2018 Digeser Cleaning and Disposal of Municipal Sludge
Bid Opening: February 23, 2018 12:00pm
Glenbard Wastewater Authority, 945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, IL 60137
Company/contact info Per Gallon Hauling Rate {$/gallon) Estimated Hauling {Based on 200,000 Gal) | Labor Rate for Removal of Material {$/hour) Total Estimated Cost
Stewards Spreading £0.100 $20,000.00 $699.00 $59,552.00
Synagro $0.399 $79,800,00 $1,958.33 $170,699.67
Dahm Enterprises £0.490 $98,000.00 $398.50 Not Able To Estimate
Telum $0.063 $12,460.00 $299.00 $75,250.00
Midwest Injection No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
Mermell Bros, No Bid Na Bid No Bid NoBid
Ace Pipe Cleaning No Bid No Bid No Bid NoBid




After review of all the required documents, Stewarts Spreading was the lowest responsive,
responsible bidder with bid amount of a hauling rate of $0.10 per gallon of liquid sludge and
$699.00 per hour of labor (with an estimated 48 hours of work), for a total estimated cost of
$53,552.00. Stewart Spreading is a recognized company that has a satisfactory reputation and
has worked for the Authority in the past. The total value of the contract dollar amount will be
dependent on the number of gallons that are hauled and actual quantity of labor hours.

GWA recommends the award of Digester Cleaning and Disposal of Municipal Sludge to
Stewarts Spreading with a hauling rate of $0.10 gallon of liquid sludge and $699.00 per hour
of labor. GWA also requests approval to award a $5,000 stipend if the project is completed
prior to March 26, 2018. This contract was budgeted at $65,000 in the CY2018 Approved Budget,
Fund 40-580150 Plant Equipment Rehabilitation.



1.2

1.3

1.4

L5

1.6

1.7

1.8

SECTION L
CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS

ARTICLE ONE
CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Contractor shall remove remnant biosolids, liquid, grit, and debris (BLGD) resulting from
wastewater treatment at the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (“Owner”) treatment facility
located at 945 Bemis Road in Glen Ellyn, Illinois (“Biosolids™) on the following basis
throughout the time period of this contract:

Contractor shall be responsible for removal of an estimated 200,000 gallons of BLGD,
grit, grease and debris from Owners No.2 anaerobic digester.

Contractor shall notify Owner a minimum of 48 hours prior to moving equipment onto
the Owner’s facility for cleaning or hauling.

The speed limit on Bemis Road is 25 mph, observation of this speed will be and is strictly
enforced. The Owner reserves the right to refuse admittance to any driver(s) who
repeatedly fail to comply with requests to reduce speed.

Contractor shall provide the necessary labor and equipment to safely and efficiently load
and transport said materials away from the Owner’s facility. The Contractor shall bear all
costs related to the removal and hauling of the materials.

Transportation of BLGD and collateral material from the Owner’s facility to a land
application site or to a sanitary landfill is entirely the Contractor’s responsibility. It shall
be the Contractor’s responsibility to contact any road authorities whose jurisdiction the
roads fall under and obtain their requirements for hauling over their roads and permits, if
required.

The Contractor shall maintain the interior of hauling vehicles in such a manner as to
prevent limiting the amount of material being hauled. In addition, it is the Contractor’s
responsibility to monitor the load of each truck to insure loading within legal weight
limits.

The Contractor shall receive content of Owner’s No. 2 digester in all weather conditions,
and shall be responsible for all problems related to proper handling and transportation. It
shall be the full responsibility of the Contractor to make whatever adjustments,



1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

provisions, etc. as may be necessary to satisfy this contract. These adjustments shall
include, but not be limited to provisions for inclement or freezing weather, additional
trucks or storage sites.

Contractor shall provide the Owner with a duplicate copy of the load sheet which details
the date of removal, the time the truck left the Owner’s facility, the truck number, the
driver’s name, total number of gallons loaded, and the destination of the material.
Contractor will follow Owner’s requirements on chain of custody.

If material is to be land applied, Contractor shall provide the necessary labor and
equipment to properly apply the BLGD to approved land application sites at agronomic
rates in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local rules and regulations.
Applications of BLGD shall conform to 40 CFR Part 503 Regulations, IEPA Regulations
Part 391 and the Owner’s Land Application Permit.

The Contractor shall be responsible for locating, receiving permission and obtaining any
necessary permits to apply BLGD to suitable landfill sites. Application and storage sites
shall meet the requirements for land application sites in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local regulations for the use and disposal of Biosolids.

The Contractor shall use tankers with gaskets to prevent leakage of material onto
roadways. The Contractor shall provide for the prompt cleanup of any spill from
Contractor or subcontractor’s equipment, or shall reimburse Owner for any and all costs
associated with the cleaning up of spills that are cleaned up by Owner.

In the event of a spill or regulatory problem involving materials from the Owner, the
Contractor shall promptly notify the Owner.

The Contractor shall be responsible for controlling odors at the off-site storage and
disposal sites in accordance with state and local regulations.

The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his
employees and permitted subcontractors and shall not employ for services any unfit
person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him/her.

Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations,
and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on performance of the work, and shall
promptly notify the Owner if the specifications are at variance therewith.



1.17

1.18

L.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees,
permitted subcontractors, and their agents and employees, and other permitted persons
performing any of the work under contract with the Contractor.

Contractor shall complete any required federal, and/or state waste disposal sheets as
required by the USEPA or the IEPA relative to the beneficial use of the BLGD. The
Contractor shall maintain the records for five (5) years after completion of the work
required by this Agreement and shall provide the records to the Owner upon the request
of Owner’s Executive Director.

Contractor shall be responsible for all required fertility analyses associated with the land
application of the Owner’s BLGD, including pH and necessary pH adjustments.
Contractor shall supply Owner with copies of the analysis.

Contractor shall be responsible for all pumps, equipment and hoses needed for the
cleaning.

Contractor shall be responsible for all mobilization of personnel and equipment needed
for the cleaning.

Contractor shall be responsible for submitting required reports to IEPA and Owner.
Reports should include but not be limited to the following information: Dates and
volumes of when BLGD hauled, land applied and stored off site. Site information such as
location, map, and a signed user form for each site.

The Contractor shall have a minimum of five (5) years’ experience in hauling and land
application of BLGD and shall include at least three (3) references, preferably from other
local municipalities.

Contractor shall supply Owner with a copy of the Illinois Commerce Commission
Authority Permit allowing the Contractor to haul BLGD.

The Contractor shall include copies of any regulatory agency citations, violations,
investigations, inquiries, etc. relating to the hauling, application, and/or follow-up
procedures necessary for the land fill application of BLGD for the past five (5) years, to
include final disposition of same.

The contractor will provide certificates of confined space entry of personnel, and provide
all safety Equipment for confined space entries.



2.1

2.2

23

24

3.1

32

33

34

ARTICLE TWO
OWNER'’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Owner shall insure the Contractor and its employees, agents or independent
contractors reasonable access to and from the wastewater treatment facilities as scheduled
by Owner’s operations personnel.

Owner shall provide Contractor with copies of all applicable permits or approvals
obtained from regulatory agencies.

Owner shall be responsible for any and all required analyses BLGD prior to removal.
Owner shall be responsible for any additional testing that federal, state or local regulatory
agencies may require.

By signing this Agreement, Owner certifies that none of the materials provided to the
Contractor shall constitute hazardous waste under federal, state or local laws. Owner
further certifies that it will not combine or mix hazardous waste with the BLGD provided
under this Agreement.

ARTICLE THREE
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT

The work to be performed under this Agreement shall commence after March 26, 2018
and will end by April 9, 2018.

A $5,000 incentive will be offered to the contractor if the work is completed prior to
March 26, 2018.

Owner may terminate this Agreement for convenience of Owner if it is determined that
termination is in the Owner’s best interest. Owner shall not be required to provide any
reason for its desire to terminate. Any termination for cause that is ultimately held
unjustified by a Court of competent jurisdiction shall be automatically deemed a
termination for convenience of the Owner. Upon such termination, contract recovery, if
any, shall be limited to the amounts of BLGD removed, but not yet paid for. Where
Contractor’s services have been terminated for convenience of Owner, the termination
shall not affect any rights or remedies Owner may have against the Contractor then
existing or which may thereafter occur. Any retention of payment of money due
Contractor will not release Contractor from any other liability hereunder.

Termination by Owner having been explicitly contemplated by the parties hereto, notice
of election to terminate shall take the following form:

NOTICE OF TERMINATION

This is to notify you that the Owner has elected to
cancel and terminate, and does hereby cancel and



35

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

42

terminate, effective ,

20 , the following written agreement entered into
with you, all in accordance with the provisions
thereof:

Cleaning and Disposal of Municiapl Sludge Agreement
between Glenbard Wastewater Authority (Owner) and
(Contractor)

Dated

Notice of termination shall be by service of the above by person, by mail or by fax from
the Owner to the Contractor.

When Owner deems it necessary or desirable, any Notice of Termination may provide for
immediate termination.

The work must be completed by April 9, 2018, otherwise the contract may be terminated
by the Owner, at the Owners discretion. Termination shall follow the same procedures as
described in sections 3.3 — 3.6.

Notices served by certified mail are presumed to be received by the party to whom they
are addressed four (4) days after mailing of said notice. Faxed correspondence will be
considered received within one (1) hour.

ARTICLE FOUR
METHOD OF PAYMENT
PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR

Methods of Payment for Services of Contractor: For removal, transportation and disposal
of Owner’s Biosolids at the price(s) bid. Owner does not guarantee any minimum or
maximum amount during the term of this Agreement. However, Owner estimates
approximately 200,000 gallons of material.

Contractor shall submit statements to Owner based upon the total gallons of materials
removed according to the load sheets prepared at the time of removal. Contractor shall
follow Owner’s protocol for loads removed from the site. Owner shall make prompt
payment in response to Contractor’s statements, in the manner required by the Illinois
Government Prompt Payment Act.

Other Provisions Concerning Payment:

4.3.1 1If Owner fails to make any payment due Contractor for services and expenses
within sixty (60) days after receipt of Contractor’s bill therefor, Contractor may,
after giving seven (7) days written notice to Owner, suspend services under this
Agreement until Contractor has been paid in full all amounts due for services.

43.2 In the event of termination by Owner under paragraph 3.3, payments due
Contractor for services rendered shall constitute total payment.



433

The Owner and Contractor shall agree beforehand on the gallons of Biosolids
which constitutes a full trailer or given volume for both daily and bulk hauling
before commencing hauling, and use that figure for billing purposes.

ARTICLE FIVE
INSURANCE PROVISIONS

5.1 Contractor shall procure and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents,
representatives, employees or subcontractors.

5.2 Minimum Scope of Insurance
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

521

522

523

Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG
0001 (current ed.)/and/or Owners and Contractors Protective Liability policy with
the Owner stated as named insured; and

Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (current ed.) covering
Automobile Liability, code 1 “any auto” and endorsement CA 0019 (current ed.)
changes in Business Auto and Truckers coverage forms — Insured Contract; and

Workers” Compensation as required by the Labor Code of the State of
Illinois and Employers’ Liability Insurance.

5.3 Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, insurance
with conditions as shown below:

53.1

532

533

Commercial General Liability and Property Damage Insurance. This

insurance shall protect the Contractor from claims of bodily injury and

property damage which may arise because of the nature of the work from
operations under this Agreement in the amount of One Million Dollars
(81,000,000.00) for bodily injury each occurrence, One Million Dollars
(81,000,000.00) for property damage each occurrence and Two Million
($2,000,000.00) Dollars aggregate period.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. This insurance shall

cover owned, hired and other non-owned automobiles and shall protect the
Contractor from claims for bodily injury or property damage which may arise
from the use of motor vehicles engaged in various operation under this
Agreement. The automobile insurance shall provide for a minimum combined
single limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).

Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance.  Worker’s
Compensation insurance shall protect all persons employed by the Contractor in
carrying out the work under this Agreement in limits as required by the Labor



Code of the State of Illinois, and Employer’s Liability Insurance shall protect all
persons employed by the Contractor in carrying out the work contemplated by the
Agreement in an amount of at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).

5.3.4 Excess Liability Insurance: At the Contractor’s option, primary limits may be
less than required above with an excess liability (umbrella) policy providing the
additional limits needed. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided it
combined with primary policies, provides the insurance coverages herein required
and that the excess liability minimum amounts equal or exceed Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence and Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00)
in the aggregate.

5.3.5 Environmental Liability Insurance required in the amount of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000).

5.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Owner.
At the option of the Owner, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or
self-insured retentions as respects the Owner, its officials and employees; or the Contractor
shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation, claim
administration and defense expenses of Owner.

5.5 Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
5.5.1 General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

a. The Owner, its officials, employees and agents are to be covered as insureds as
respects: liability arising out of activities performed by oron behalf of the
Contractor; products and completed operations of the Contractor; premises
owned, leased or used by the Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by the Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on
the scope of protection afforded to the Owner, its officials, employees or agents.

b.  The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary as respects the Owner, its
officials, employees and agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
the Owner, its officials, employees or agents shall be excess of Contractor’s
insurance and shall not contribute to it.

¢.  Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage provided to the Owner, its officials, employees, or agents.

d.  Coverage shall state that Contactor’s insurance shall apply separately toeach
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the
limits of the insurer’s liability.



5.5.2 Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability Coverages: The insurer shall
agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the Owner, its officials, employees
or agents for losses arising from work performed by Contractor for the Owner.

5.5.3  Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state coverage
shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limts except
after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the Owner.

5.6 Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no less than B+.

5.7

Contractor shall furnish the Owner with certificates of insurance naming Glenbard
Wastewater Authority as additional insureds with original endorsements affecting coverage
required by this clause as required by Owner. The certificates and endorsements for each
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on
its behalf. The Owner reserves the right to request full certified copies of the insurance
policies. This Ceritificate of Insurance shall be delivered to Owner prior to the start of
Contractor’s work.

5.7 Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insured under its policies or shall furnish

5.8

separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for
subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

Nothwithstanding the foregoing insurance requirements, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its agents, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including but not limited to
attorney’s fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided that
any such claim, damage, loss or expense, (1) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness,
disease or death, or to injury to, loss of or destruction of tangible property, including the
Biosolids disposed of pursuant to this Agreement, and including the loss of use resulting
therefrom, and (2) is caused in whole or in part by any intentional, willful or negligent act or
omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by
any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or
not it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligations shall not be
construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other obligation of indemnity which
otherwise would exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. In any and all
claims against the Owner or any other agents or employees by any employee of the
Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this
paragraph shall not be limited in any way by any limtation on the amount or type of damage,
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any subcontractor under
Worker’s or Workmen’s Compensation Acts, Disability Benefit Acts or other Employee
Benefit Acts.

ARTICLE SIX
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS



6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois; venue shall be in
DuPage County.

The Contractor may not assign any of its obligations under this contract and any
subcontractors or agent which Contractor wishes to utilize must be approved in writing
by the Owner.

ARTICLE SEVEN
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety
precautions and programs in connection with the removal, transportation and programs in
connection with the removal, transportation, disposal, and land application of the BLGD.
The Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide
all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss of (1) his employees and
Owner’s employees or other persons who may be affected thereby, (2) all of his materials
and equipment incorporated therein (3) other property at the site or adjacent thereto; he
shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations
and orders of any public authority on the safety of the persons and property and their
protection from damage, injury or loss. Contractor shall promptly remedy all damage or
loss to any property caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any subcontractor, or
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they
may be liable including any person indemnified herein. The foregoing obligations of the
Contractor are in addition to his obligations under Article Five above.

ARTICLE EIGHT
TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

If the Contractor defaults or persistently fails or neglects to remove Owner’s BLGD in
accordance with the contract documents or fails to perform any provision of the contract,
the Owner, after written notice to the Contractor and without prejudice to any other
remedy he may have, and without a thirty (30) day notice, may terminate this Agreement

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER: GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

Glen Ellyn, Illinois

Chairperson Date
Executive Oversight Committee



CONTRACTOR:

(Authorized Representative) Date:



ARTICLE NINE

CONTRACTOR’S BID

DIGESTER CLEANING

AND

DISPOSAL OF MUNCIPAL SLUDGE

To: Glenbard Wastewater Authority

Bidof Stewart Spreading, INC. (an INDIVIDUAL),
(a PARTNERSHIP), (a CORPORATION), (a LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY) duly
organized under the laws of the State of Illinois.

The undersigned having read and considered the terms and conditions of the Contract
Documents for the Digester Cleaning and Disposal of Municipal Sludge for the Glenbard
Wastewater Authority, and being familiar with local conditions affecting the cost of work, does
hereby offer to furnish all labor, equipment, materials, tools, insurance, bonds, supervision, and
all other items necessary to provide the service as specified: Removal, Transportation and
Disposal of Glenbard Wastewater Authority’s BLGD from Digester No. 2. Basis of Bid will be
determined by Daily Hauling Rate and labor rate as a total cost.

1. Per Gallon Hauling Rate
(Approximately 200,000 gallons)

$0.10 per gallon

2. Labor Rate for Removal of Material $699.00 per hour

Digester Cleaning and Municipal Sludge Bid Package | 17



ESTIMATED TOTAI, AMOUNT OF CONTRACT

Fifty-Three Thousand, Five Hundred, Fifty-Two Dollars

(amount written in words)

$53.552.00

(amount written in figures)

By: Hoal M‘-’—W February 22, 2018

Authorized Representative Date

Address: Stewart Spreading, INC.

3870 N. Route 71

Sheridan, Illincis 60551

Digester Cleaning and Municipal Sludge Bid Package | 18



SECTION 5.5

APPROVAL OF PAYMENT
TO FOREST PRESERVE
DISTRICT OF DUPAGE

COUNTY



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE, Executive DirectorW

DATE: March?2,2018

RE: Request to Reimburse Village of Lombard for Surveying for
Forest Preserve of DuPage County Land Swap

In April 2016, the Village of Lombard was notified that an easement agreement for property adjacent
to the Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) facility with the DuPage County Forest Preserve District
had expired. The property was subject to an easement agreement dating back to 1966 for the property
just south of the Combined Sewer Overflow facility on Hill Avenue. The Village of Lombard
obtained use of the property for the treatment of sanitary sewerage via a 50-year easement agreement.

Village of Lombard staff has been actively working with the DuPage County Forest Preserve District
that would allow for continued use of the District's property for the Combined Sewer Overflow plant.
The property is used for storage following treatment at the CSO facility and is 9.5 acres in size. The
Village of Lombard and District have agreed to the continued use of the property via a ninety-nine
(99) year non-exclusive easement. Per District policy, the Village of Lombard is responsible for
paying fair market for the acreage, which is valued at $15,000 per acre. The total cost for the
easement is $142,500 and will be paid for by the Glenbard Wastewater Authority. The Easement
Agreement will be adopted by the Village of Lombard Board by a Resolution authorizing the Village
of Lombard President and Village of Lombard Clerk to execute the agreement.

Authority Staff recommends that the EOC approve payment to the Forest Preserve District of DuPage
County for the amount of $142,500. This amount will be taken out of the designated amount in
CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40 Capital, for the purposes of Property Acquisition.



SUBMITTED BY:

Legistar #180074
DISTRICT 1

VILLAGE OF LCMBARD
REQUEST FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION
For Inclusion on Board Agenda

Resolution or Ordinance (Biue) ____ Waiver of First Requesied
Recommendations of Boards, Commissions & Committees (Green)
Other Business (Pink)

PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Scoit Niehaus, Village Manager

tebruary 5, 2018 BOT DATE: February 15, 2018

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND
VILLAGE CLERK TO EXECUTE AN EASEMENT AGREEMENT

Carl Goldsmith, Director of Public Works ?j

BACKGROUND/POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

The resolution authorizes the execution of a nineiy-nine (99) year easement for the use of
property owned by the Forest Preserve District of DuPage County to be used in conjunction with
the operation of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority sanitary treatment facility.

FiSCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE

Review (as necessary):

Village Auomey X

Date

Finarnice Director X

Village Manager X

Date

Date




February 2, 2018

TO: Village President and Board of Trustees

THROUGH: Scott Niehaus, Village Manager

FROM: Carl Goldsmith, Director of Public Works 4

SUBJECT: Easement Agreement between the Village of Lombard and the Forest

Preserve District of DuPage County

Background
In April 2016, the Village of Lombard was notified that an easement agreement for property

adjacent to the Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) facility with the DuPage County Forest
Preserve District had expired. The property was subject to an easement agreement dating back to
1966 for the property just south of the Combined Sewer Overflow facility on Hill Avenue, The
Village obtained use of the property for the treatment of sanitary sewerage via a S0 year
easement agreement.

Village staff has been actively working with the DuPage County Forest Preserve District that
would allow for continued use of the District’s property for the Combined Sewer Overflow plant.
The property is used for storage following treatment at the CSO facility and is 9.5 acres in size.
The Village and District have agreed to the continued use of the property via a ninety-nine (99)
year non-exclusive easement. Per District policy, the Village is responsible for paying fair-
market for the acreage, which is valued at $15,000 per acre. The total cost for the easement is
$142,500 and will be paid for by the Glenbard Wastewater Authority.  The Easement
Agreement will be adopted by the Village Board by a Resolution authorizing the Village
President and Village Clerk to execute the agreement.

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Village President and Board of Trustees approve A RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND VILLAGE CLERK TO EXECUTE AN
FASEMENT AGREEMENT




RESOLUTION
R

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND
VILLAGE CLERK TO EXECUTE AN EASEMENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Lombard prepared a
document regarding the granting of an easement for the use of property in conjunction
with the operation of a wastewater treatment facility as attached hereto, marked Exhibit
"A" and made part hereof (the “Agreement™); and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities deem it to be in the best interests of the
Village of Lombard to approve said Agreement:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LOMBARD, DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
as follows:

SECTION 1: That the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby
approved.

SECTION 2: That the Village President and the Village Clerk be and hereby are
authorized and directed to execute the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, as well
as any and all other documents necessary to carry out the provisions of said Agreement.

Adopted this day of , 2018, pursuant to a roll call vote as
follows:

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Approved by me this day of , 2018,

Keith Giagnorio
Village President
ATTEST:

Sharon Kuderna
Village Clerk



Prepared by: Forest Preserve
District of DuPage County
Return to: Village of Lombard
C/0 Village Manager

255 E. Wilson Street
Lombard, IL 60148

VACANT LAND West of I-355 and
South of Crescent Boulevard in
Lombard, Illinois

P.LN.: 05-12-404-026 & 05-12-404-027

AN EASEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE OPERATION
AND MAINTENANCE OF A SANITARY TREATMENT FACILITY
WITHIN THE EAST BRANCH RIVERWAY FOREST PRESERVE

THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”) is made and
entered into this day of » 2018, by and between the Forest Preserve District of
DuPage County, a body politic and corporate (hereinafter referred to as the "FOREST PRESERVE
DISTRICT") and the Village of Lombard, a municipal corporation (hereinafier referred to as
“LOMBARD”). The FOREST PRESER VE DISTRICT and LOMBARD are sometimes referred herein
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT owns a certain 9.5 +/- acre property within
the East Branch Riverway Forest Preserve (hereinafter referred to as the “District Property”); and

WHEREAS, the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT granted an easement to LOMBARD on
March 15, 1966 for the purpose of operating a sanitary treatment facility on a portion of the District
Property, which easement has now expired; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Glen Ellyn and LOMBARD jointly established, and are members of,
the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “GWA”), which is charged with the
responsibility of treating and processing wastewater for the Village of Glen Ellyn and LOMBARD and
unincorporated portions of DuPage County; and

WHEREAS, the GWA operates a sanitary treatment facility on the District Property, and the
GWA has determined that the sanitary treatment facility on the District Property is an integral part of the
GWA'’s responsibilities in regard to treating and processing wastewater; and

WHEREAS, LOMBARD requests the granting of a new easement on the District Property for
the operation and maintenance of the sanitary treatment facility; and

Easement Agreement — Lombard Sanitary 1 Easement # X-650-002E
Treatment Facility



WHEREAS, the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT and LOMBARD are municipalities as
defined in Section 1(c) of the Local Government Property Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 605/ 1(c) (hereinafter
“Transfer Act”); and

WHEREAS, Section 2 of the Transfer Act authorizes transfers of real estate, or interests therein,
between municipalities for any public purpose upon such terms as are agreed to by the corporate
authorities of the respective municipalities; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2 of the Transfer Act, LOMBARD, pursuant to a duly
passed ordinance, has determined that it is necessary to acquire an easement for a sanitary treatment
facility over the entire District Property; and

WHEREAS, the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT has determined that it is reasonable,
necessary and in the public interest and welfare to grant LOMBARD an easement for the sanitary
treatment facility, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing preambles and the promises, terms and
conditions set forth herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1.0 INCORPORATION OF RECITALS
1.1 The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement.

2.0 EASEMENT GRANTED

2.1  The FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT hereby grants a non-exclusive easement to
LOMBARD for the operation and maintenance of a sanitary treatment facility within
that portion of East Branch Riverway Forest Preserve legally described on Exhibit “A”
and depicted on Exhibit “B”, both being attached hereto and incorporated herein
(hereinafter referred to as the “Easement Premises™) and on the terms and conditions as
provided for in this Agreement. The easement granted herein shall expire ninety-nine
(99) years from the date of execution of this Agreement.

22  LOMBARD shall notify the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT no less than six (6)
months prior to any construction project within the Easement Premises in accordance
with the notice provisions in Section 7.0 below. LOMBARD shall make any
independent contractor accessing the Easement Premises aware of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

2.3 The FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT reserves the right to make any use of the
Easement Premises, whether on, above or below its surface, for any lawful purpose,
except that any structure or use shall not unreasonably interfere with the easement
granted by this Agreement, the GWA’s sanitary treatment facility on the Easement
Premises, or the treatment and processing or wastewater by the GWA on the Easement
Premises. In this regard, the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT shall notify the
VILLAGE no less than six (6) months prior to any construction project within the
Easement Premises, including, but not limited to, the construction of the FOREST
PRESERVE DISTRICT’S proposed East Branch Bicycle Trail, in accordance with the
notice provisions in Section 7.0 below.

Easement Agreement — Lombard Sanitary 2 Easement # X-650-002E
Treatment Facility



3.0 FEES AND COSTS

3.1

3.2

LOMBARD shall pay the fees as provided for in this Agreement. The easement fee to
be paid by LOMBARD to the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT for the granting of the
easement shall be based upon the market value of the Easement Premises in accordance
with the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT’S Easement and License Ordinance (No. 96-
096). The fee for the easement is $142,500.00, which is based on $15,000 per acre
(815,000 X 9.5 acres = $142,500.00). The easement fee shall be paid to the FOREST
PRESERVE DISTRICT prior to the execution of this Agreement by the FOREST
PRESERVE DISTRICT.

LOMBARD acknowledges that this Agreement is contingent upon the FOREST
PRESERVE DISTRICT receiving the fees outlined above.

40 RESTORATION

4.1

If LOMBARD damages the natural areas within the Easement Premises, LOMBARD
shall restore all damaged areas according to the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT’S
specifications. IFLOMBARD fails to properly restore the Easement Premises within 30
days of service of the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT’S written demand for the
restoration work, the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT shall have the right to take such
action as it deems necessary to perform the restoration or corrective work, which shall
include the authority to (a) perform the work with its own personnel and/or; (b) engage
the services of an independent contractor to perform the work. LOMBARD shall
reimburse the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT for costs associated with said
restoration or comective work within 30 days of service of the FOREST PRESERVE
DISTRICT’s written demand for payment.

50 INDEMNIFICATION

5.1

To the extent permitted by law, LOMBARD shall defend, save, and hold harmless the
FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents
from any and all claims, liabilities, causes of action, losses and damages that may at any
time arise or be claimed by any person or entity as a result of bodily injury, sickness,
death or property damage, or as a result of any other claim or suit of any nature
whatsoever, allegedly arising out of or in any manner connected with the operation and
maintenance of the sanitary treatment facility, when such bodily injury, sickness, death,
property damage or other claim is allegedly caused by a negligent or intentional act or
omission on the part of LOMBARD or its contractors, subcontractors, engineers,
consultants, employees, or agents. In the event any person or entity obtains a judgment
or settlement against the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT or any of its elected officials,
officers, employees or agents, by reason of any negligent or intentional act or omission
on the part of LOMBARD or its contractors, subcontractors, consultants, employees or
agents, LOMBARD shall promptly, to the extent allowed by law, indemnify the
FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT or the elected official, officer, employee or agent, as
the case may be, in the amount of said judgment or settlement and for all costs and

Easement Agreement — Lombard Sanitary 3 Easement # X-650-002E
Treatment Facility



5.2

53

54

N5

expenses related thereto, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney and expert
witness fees,

The obligation on the part of LOMBARD to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the
FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

LOMBARD shall require each contractor who performs any work on the Easement
Premises, to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT
to the same extent as required of LOMBARD under Section 5.0, and LOMBARD shall
include in all of its contracts a statement expressly declaring the FOREST PRESERVE
DISTRICT to be a third-party beneficiary of the indemnification provision.
LOMBARD shall promptly pay all costs and expenses relating to any and all work
within the Easement Premises and shall not allow any liens on FOREST PRESERVE
DISTRICT property as a result of the work. To the extent permitted by law,
LOMBARD shall defend, indemnify and hold the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT
harmless from any and all liens, costs and expenses arising from any work performed on
the Easement Premises or related to the opcration and maintenance of the sanitary
treatment facility.

Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to be, nor shall operate as, a wavier by
LOMBARD of the rights, defenses and immunities afforded under the Local
Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act.

6.0 BREACH OF AGREEMENT

6.1

6.2

6.3

If a Party reasonably believes that a breach of this Agreement has occurred or is
occurring, the Party shall serve written notice thereof upon the Party committing or
permitting such breach to occur, specifying in detail the breach and the facts supporting
such claim. The Party alleged to have committed the breach shall have 30 days within
which to cure the violation. If the Party in violation is LOMBARD, and LOMBARD
fails to cure the breach within the 30-day period, the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT
may pursue monetary damages or specific performance provided that the 30-day cure
period shall be extended for a reasonable time if LOMBARD has undertaken to cure the
breach within the 30-day period and continues to diligently and in good faith to
complete the corrective action. Given the importance of the sanitary treatment facility
to the public, remedies available to the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT do not and
shall not include termination of this Agreement.

Action by either Party to enforce this Agreement shall be without prejudice to the
exercise of any other rights provided herein or by law or in equity to remedy a breach of
this Agreement, subject to the terms of the preceding Subsection 6.1.

A waiver by either Party of any breach of one or more of the terms of this Agreement on
the part of the other Party shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent or other breach
of the same or other term, nor shall the failure on the part of a Party to require exact, full
and complete compliance with any of the terms contained herein be construed as
changing the terms of this Agreement or estopping a Party from enforcing full
compliance with the provisions set forth herein. No delay, failure or omission of a Party
to exercise any right, power, privilege or option arising from a breach shall impair any
right, privilege or option, or be construed as a waiver or acquiescence in such breach or

Easement Agreement — Lombard Sanitary 4 Easement # X-650-002E
Treatment Facility



as a relinquishment of any right. No option, right, power, remedy or privilege of the
Parties shall be construed as being exhausted by the exercise thereof in one or more
instances. The rights, power, privileges and remedies given the Parties under this
Agreement and by law shall be cumulative.

7.0 NOTICES

7.1

All notices required to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing
and either served by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, properly
addressed with the postage prepaid and deposited in the United States mail. Notices
served upon the FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT shall be directed to the Executive
Director, Forest Preserve District of DuPage County, P.O. Box 5000, Wheaton, IL
60189-5000. Notices served upon LOMBARD shall be directed to the Village Manager,
Village of Lombard, 255 E. Wilson Avenue, Lombard, IL 60148. Notices served by
mail shall be effective upon receipt as verified by the United States Postal Service, by
personal delivery and/or FedEx/UPS. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, any
notice by a Party alleging a breach of this Agreement shall be either served by certified
or registered mail as set forth above. Either Party may designate a new location for
service of notices by serving notice of the change in accordance with the requirements of
this paragraph

8.0 MISCELLANEOUS TERMS

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6
8.7

All rights, title and privileges herein granted for the Easement Premises, including all
benefits and burdens, shall run for the term of ninety-nine (99) years and shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective successors
and assigns.

The FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT hereby reserves the right to use, or permit to be
used, the Easement Premises in any manner that will not prevent or materially interfere
with the exercise by LOMBARD of the rights granted herein.

If any Party initiates any legal proceeding or action, whether at law or in equity, to
enforce any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party (as determined by the
court) shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and expenses incurred in
connection with said proceeding or action, including, but not limited to, reasonable
expert witness and attorney fees.

LOMBARD shall be responsible for recording this Agreement, at its expense, in the
Office of the Recorder of Deeds, DuPage County, and for providing the FOREST
PRESERVE DISTRICT with a recorded copy.

The provisions set forth herein represent the entire agreement between the Parties and
supersede any previous oral or written agreements, as it is the intent of the Parties to
provide for a complete integration within the terms of this Agreement. No provision
may be modified in any respect unless such modification is in writing, duly approved
and signed by all Parties.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tilinois.
This Agreement shall be executed in duplicate, and each Party shall retain a fully
executed original, both of which shall be deemed to be one Agreement.

Easement Agreement — Lombard Sanitary 5 Easement # X-650-002E
Treatment Facility



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement, with the last date of
execution hereof to be inserted on page 1 hereof,

FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT OF VILLAGE OF LOMBARD
DU PAGE COUNTY
BY: BY:

Joseph Cantore, President Keith Giagnorio, President
ATTEST: ATTEST:

Judith Malahy, Secretary Sharon Kuderna, Village Clerk

DATE: Date:
Easement Agreement — Lombard Sanitary 6 Easement # X-650-002E

Treatment Facility



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PARCEL 1:

LOT 1 IN FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT I-355 ASSESSMENT PLAT NO. 2 OF PART
OF THE SOUTHEAST % OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED FEBRUARY 28, 2008 AS DOCUMENT R2008-031313, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P..N.: 05-12-404-026

PARCEL 2:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST % OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH,
RANGE 10 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST % OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE SOUTH ALONG
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 12 FOR A DISTANCE OF 1070.8 FEET, TO A
POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE MEYER SHAPOTKIN PROPERTY;
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID PROPERTY LINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE
OF 87 DEGREES .35 MINUTES TO THE RIGHT WITH A PROLONGATION OF LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE FOR A DISTANCE OF 53.1 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE STATE BOND ISSUE ROUTE NO. 53 FOR A
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING WESTERLY ON THE LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE TO A POINT IN THE CENTERLINE OF THE EAST BRANCH
OF THE DUPAGE RIVER IN ITS PRESENT COURSE; THENCE SOUTHERLY
ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF SAID RIER TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE
OF NICHOLAS SURGE'S ESTATE PROPERTY; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID
PROPERTY LINE TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF STATE BOND ISSUE ROUTE 53 WHICH POINT IS 56.3 FEET WEST OF
THE OF THE EAST LINE OF THE AFORESAID SECTION 12; THENCE NORTHERLY
ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE BOND ISSUE ROUTE
NO. 53 FOR A DISTANCE OF 1147.7 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING EXCEPT THAT PART TAKEN BY ILLINOIS STATE TOLL HIGHWAY
AUTHORITY FOR INTERSTATE 1-355 PER QUITCLAIM DEED RECORDED AUGUST
19, 2005 AS DOCUMENT R2005-180812, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P.LN.: 05-12-404-027

EXHIBIT “A”



East Branch Riverway - Easement Agreement Depiction

T . p— ‘ ] — I
/ \ Churchill " RESCENT BLVE. »f:__*’jf%:;»f:;omno
/ T =y e UL
P il
- /" —t " . -~

- s
// - 5_ 5 " g
LY n
& Nl
LAY 2
S

AN »
e wiLLowsT
T T T
z —
m ) e e
"
1
e " HICKORY ST _
P.LN.s: [
05-12-404-026 —_
05-12-404-027 o
9.55 Acres T
- R E:
<
g /L 3
N |
= / o
W e .
g -
' - —
o W ~——GRARLESIN —
5 ElEn
.- 4 o
/ DuPage County Overview 7/ T T L -
ﬁ»"-""""c% N
vy WA 0 150 300 600
5 & [: FPD Bounds e Foct w E
P . Land Preservation Department
DU PAGE Easement Premises P 8

EXHIBIT "B"



SECTION 6.0

PROPOSED POLICY FOR
GWA ENGINEERING
SHORTLIST



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE /M

DATE: March?2, 2018

RE: Request for Approval
Standard Operating Policy for Contracting Professional Services

Historically, GWA has generally solicited professional services using a “shortlist” process, by
which the Authority retained five to six professional firms on its list of engineering firms that
previously submitted qualifications. Prior to the professional services being retained for a
project, the Authority would request proposals, along with specific qualifications, only from
these shortlisted firms. The shortlist would be updated from time to time based on firm’s
qualifications or amount of work performed with the Authority.

In December 2016 the Village of Glen Ellyn, the Authority’s lead agency, issued an updated
purchasing policy that is inconsistent with the Authority’s past method of using shortlisted firms.
The new purchasing policy places constraints on the Authority that are inappropriate for a
wastewater treatment facility. Due to the highly technical nature of the treatment plant, the
uniqueness of any particular wastewater facility, and benefit of familiarity, it would be in the
best interest of the Authority to reinstate the shortlist process after formal evaluation.

Together with the TAC, Authority staff drafted the attached standard operating policy in regards
to contracting professional services. Main highlights are that the Authority will revisit the
shortlist every three years to ensure that firms on the list remain qualified and interested in
working with the Authority. The policy also states that prices from professional firms will not be
requested until a specific firm is selected for a particular professional service, as is directed by
state and federal statute and the ethical standards of licensed engineers. This policy was reviewed
and approved by the Authority’s attorney for legal purposes.

The Authority requests that the EOC approve the Standard Operating Policy for Contracting
Professional Service so that it may formally take effect.



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

Guidelines for Contracting Professional Services
Purpose:
To establish a procedure for selecting professional service firms for contracts.

Procedure:

1. General Selection Criteria

Any firm selected for professional engineering engagement must be fully capable of
meeting or exceeding the work plan and special requirements for the individual
assignment. Not all engineers are equally qualified to work in all environments, and
some firms demonstrate, through their actual project experience and achievement,
exceptional performance. Generally, the more complex the assignment, the higher the
prerequisite of past record of exceptional performance and achievement in closely related
projects is needed. In working through the selection methodology, emphasis will be
given not only to the firm’s record, but also assigned personnel in the firm who will be
responsible for the actual work performed. The individual assignments are often the
deciding factor in selecting the right team for the task. Finally, their ability to be fully
analytic, observant and totally responsive to client needs is an essential prerequisite in the
selection process.

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority (Authority) has established a qualifications based
selection process that is consistent with the procedures and guidelines established by the
Illinois Local Government Professional Services Selection Act (50 LCS 510), the Ilinois
Architectural, Engineering, and Land Surveying Qualifications Based Selection Act (30
ILCS 535), the federal Selection of Architects and Engineers statute (40 USC 1101 et
seq.; “Brooks Act” Pub. L 92-582), and the Code of Ethics of the National Society of
Professional Engineers.

2. Selection Process
The Glenbard Wastewater Authority (Authority) does not select professional services
solely or primarily on the basis of fee. Pricing is requested under separate cover from
proposals, and is only requested after the firms are fully pre-qualified and the Most
Qualified Firm for the particular project has been determined to handle the work. At that
time, the proposed costs may be negotiated.

The Authority will seek experienced consultants with a proven record of competent

performance matching the scope of work. Newer firms and those with less focused
comparable experience will be given consideration on lower profile projects.

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

Short List Process

Engineering firms may submit Statements of Qualifications to the Authority at any time.
These statements will be retained and considered during the triennial short list process.
The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) shall review the submitted Statements of
Qualifications from firms interested in working for the Authority and will determine the
firms that will receive formal Requests for Qualifications.

The staff will review the submitted qualifications and rank firms based upon the
submitted material. The number of firms that will be placed on the Authority’s short-list
for engineering services will depend upon the projected project load for the three-year
period. In most instances, a minimum of six (6) firms will be short-listed.

The Authority will request proposals from the shortlisted firms for specific projects. The
technical proposals of these firms will be assed utilizing a Technical Review Committee
(TRC) in a stepwise approach to first review and score the Technical Proposal. The
Authority will evaluate the submittals and determine the most qualified firm for the
specific project. The Project Engineer will make the final recommendation to the
Executive Oversight Committee to select a firm based upon the qualifications, proposal,
TRC input, and other evaluations. An agreement will be submitted for approval in
accordance with the Village of Glen Ellyn’s Purchasing Manual.

Professional Services Selection Scenarios - There are several ways to group selection
scenarios based on infrastructure type, specialty services, and procurement of new
services or continuing relationship engagements.

A. Continuing relationship engagements involve those projects typically relied upon
when a long term, multi-year engagement is necessary. State and Federal project
funding through phases 1, 2, and 3 would be one example. Provision of SCADA and
Information Technology infrastructure updates, which recur regularly for design and
installation services within the same fiscal year, is also a candidate for a continuing
relationship. Engineering firms that have successfully performed a variety of work
for the Authority in specific areas of competence, such as SCADA & Information
Technology, Flow Metering, electrical, or wastewater treatment, are other examples.
Such firms develop familiarity with the Authority’s systems that are beneficial to rely
upon rather than start a new “learning curve” with another firm. These selections are
based upon the quality and value of services rendered and ability to continue to
perform at the same level and capacity.

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

B. New Assignment Procurement — A Request for Qualifications and Proposal is
requested by the Authority from short listed firms in considering new engineering
work, large and small. The focus on prequalification and successful client experience
in similar and related projects is a very important factor.

C. Procurement of Services — Professional engagement of engineers is not “bid”, but
rather selected from proposals based on qualifications. The following is a general
procedure for the procurement of services.

i. Within the Capital Project Budget, Authority staff and the TAC will
forecast the contract engineering planned and the basis of selection and
shall engage in the short-list process every 3 yrs.

ii. The Executive Oversight Committee (EOC) will accept or modify the
engineering selection plan when they review the recommendation.

iii. Throughout the year, contracts will be presented and executed
following established procedures and protocols.

D. If the Authority is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm which is
most preferred, then negotiations with that firm will be terminated and negotiations
will be commenced with the firm that is next preferred.

3. Compensation
The Authority prefers a fee structure that does not have a maximum guaranteed payment,
but does establish a maximum fee which will be charged to the Authority. The Authority
utilizes a “multiple of labor with a Not-To-Exceed Maximum” for engineering
agreements.  Following the tendering of pricing, a comparison of other related
engagements is used to determine both the percentage of fee required and the relationship
of that fee to the complexity of the assignment to verify the reasonableness of the fee.

Generally recognized publications, such as the “A/E Procurement Information Packet for
Municipal Wastewater Treatment Projects Funded by the Clean Water Fund”, prepared
jointly by the Wisconsin DNR and the Wisconsin Association of Consulting Engineers,
the “USDA Engineering Fees for Professional Engineering Services As a Percentage of
Net Construction Costs,” or “IEPA SRF Project History’s” can provide information in
comparing where any proposal rest to the market patterns for specific types of work
pertaining specifically to wastewater treatment. Prior Authority projects also provide a
specific history for comparison. Staff reviews a comparison of the pricing proposed and
the level of work effort provided, often as a percentage of the projected construction
costs. Finally, references are checked, usually with other municipal agencies, to examine
work performance history.

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



SECTION 7.0

CONTRACT APPROVAL -
STRAND ASSOCIATES,
INC. -2018 ELECTRICAL
SERVICE DISTRIBUTION
SYSTEM



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE /]

DATE: March?2, 2018

RE: Request for Approval
Design Engineering Services pertaining to the Electrical Service, Backup, and
Redundancy and Site Lighting Project

In November 2017 Authority staff developed and sent out a request for qualifications and
technical proposals to our six shortlisted professional consulting firms for Design Engineering
Services pertaining to the Electrical Service, Backup, and Redundancy and Site Lighting Project.
The due date for the proposals was January 31, 2018.

Previous studies have identified the Authority’s existing electrical power distribution system to
be lacking several redundancy factors, the ability to properly maintain and monitor the system,
and other deficiencies related to plant processes. Also, the existing system is nearing 40 years
old, beyond its useful life, and evidence of its age is noticeable. The Authority has experienced
four major electrical outages in the past 24 months, which points to a clear need for system
rehabilitation and replacements.

Although in previous years capital budgets the design had been scheduled to occur in 2019 with
construction in 2020, during planning for budget year CY2018 this project was moved up due to
the recent failures.

The Authority received four sets of qualifications and technical proposals in response to the
RFQ/RFP that was sent out, at which point staff performed an initial review, and narrowed it
down to two firms to invite for formal interviews. A member of the TAC, as well as Authority
staff, participated in the interviews, and after a process of evaluation and elimination selected
Strand Associates to perform the design work.

After the firm was selected, the sealed cost proposal from Strand Associates was opened and
costs were negotiated. It was determined the original proposed cost of $143,000 was already
thoroughly reduced due to Strand’s knowledge of efforts known to complete the design;
therefore, no additional reduction in costs could be further realized. This number was also
significantly below the $250,000 amount previously identified in the 2013 Facility Plan for these
design services. However, the fee was able to be negotiated from being a lump sum fee to a time
and material cost, and not to exceed $143,000. Therefore, if the entire scope is not used during
design, some cost savings may be realized at the end of design. Also, a $2,500 additional fee



was offered as option to include procurement services. The Authority feels this option is
valuable, as it can offer the Authority the option to select and purchase certain equipment prior to
bid opening, which would result in cost savings due to reduced markups and construction
duration. The approximate savings using procurement services are estimated to be 10% - 15%
off the equipment and contractor costs. Another benefit realized from being able to procure
equipment prior to the bid opening would be a reduction in project duration. Much of the
equipment has lengthy lead times, therefore the ability to purchase it ahead of time would allow
manufacturers to begin producing the equipment, while other aspects of the project begin.

Therefore, it is recommended the EOC award Strand Associates the 2018 Electrical Service,
Backup, and Redundancy and Site Lighting Project Design Engineering Services in the amount
not to exceed $145,500, which includes the design services with an option to award an additional
not to exceed $2,500 for procurement services. This amount will be taken out of the designated
amount in CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40 Capital, which has a $250,000 budget number
currently.



Joliet, Il 60431
(P) 815-744-4200

STRAND (F) 815 744-4215

ASSOCIATES®

V| Strand Associates, Inc?
1170 South Houbolt Road
|

AGREEMENT FOR TECHNICAL SERVICES

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
AND
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.®

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of , 20 , between the
Glenbard Wastewater Authority, hereinafter referred to as OWNER, located at 945 Bemis Road,
Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137, and Strand Associates, Inc.®, hereinafter referred to as ENGINEER. This
Agreement shall be in accordance with the following elements.

Scope of Services

Services to be provided under this Agreement can be described as engineering, scientific, computer-aided
design drafting, clerical, and administrative activities performed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and subsequently issued Task Orders. Prior to ENGINEER’s engagement
by OWNER, a mutually agreeable Task Order document shall be developed and executed by both parties.
The Task Order will include Project Information, a detailed Scope of Services, Compensation, and
Schedule. The general form of the Task Order shall be in accordance with the enclosed Task Order
No. 18-01.

Service Elements Not Included

The following services are not included under this Agreement. If such services are required, they will be
provided as noted in each subsequently issued task order.

1. Additional and Extended Services: Any services during construction made necessary by:

Work damaged by fire or other cause during construction.

A significant amount of defective or neglected work of any contractor,
Prolongation of the time of the construction contract.

Default by contractor under the construction contract.

oo

2. Additional OWNER-required Site Visits and/or Meetings: Additional OWNER-required site

visits or meetings.

3. Archaeological or Botanical Investigations: ENGINEER will assist OWNER in engaging the
services of an archaeologist or botanist, if required, to perform the field investigations necessary
for agency review.

4, Bidding- and Construction-Related Services: Any services involved in performing bidding- and
construction-related services.

5. Drawings and Specifications: Final design services including drawings and specifications.

AJR:dfeRAMAD\D: \Agr MA\Glenbard Wi Austh\TSA 2018VAgr\1278.055. TSA docx

Arizona | Ilinois | Indiana | Kentucky | Ohio | Texas | Wisconsin www.strand.com



Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Page 2
March 1, 2018

6. Flood Studies: Any services involved in performing flood and floodway studies.

7. Geotechnical Engineering: Geotechnical engineering information, if required, shall be provided
through OWNER and OWNER’s geotechnical consultant, ENGINEER will assist OWNER with
defining initial scope of geotechnical information that is required to allow OWNER to procure
geotechnical engineering services.

8. Land and Easement Surveys/Procurement: Any services of this type including, but not limited
to, a record search, field work, preparation of legal descriptions, or assistance to OWNER for
securing land rights necessary for siting sanitary sewer, tanks, and appurtenances.

9. Preparation for and/or Appearance in Litigation on Behalf of OWNER: Any services related to
litigation.

10. Review of Product Substitutions or Means, Method, Technigue, Sequence, or Procedure
Substitutions Proposed by Contractor: The terms of the construction Contract call for the
construction contractor to reimburse OWNER for ENGINEER’s cost for evaluating substitute
products, means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction. ENGINEER’s cost
for such evaluations is not included.

11. Revising Designs, Drawings, Specifications, and Documents: Any services required after these

items have been previously approved by state or federal regulatory agencies, because of a change
in the project scope or where such revisions are necessary to comply with changed state and
federal regulations that are put in force after Services have been partially completed.

12, Services Furnished During Readvertisement for Bids, if Ordered by OWNER: Any services of
this type if a contract is not awarded pursuant to the original bids.

13, Services Related to Buried Wastes and Contamination: Should buried solid, liquid, or potentially
hazardous wastes or subsurface or soil contamination be uncovered at the site, follow-up
investigations may be required to identify the nature and extent of such wastes or subsurface soil
or groundwater contamination and to determine appropriate methods for managing of such
wastes or contamination and for follow-up monitoring.

Compensation

OWNER shall compensate ENGINEER for Services indicated in each subsequently issued Task Order
for a lump sum or for an estimated fee on an hourly rate basis plus expenses.

Expenses incurred such as those for travel, meals, printing, postage, copies, computer, electronic
communication, and long distance telephone calls will be billed at actual cost plus ten percent.

Only sales taxes or other taxes on Services that are in effect at the time this Agreement is executed are
included in the Compensation. If the tax laws are subsequently changed by legislation during the life of
this Agreement, this Agreement will be adjusted to reflect the net change.

The lump sum or estimated fee for the Services is based on wage scale/hourly billing rates, adjusted
annually on July 1, that anticipates the Services will be completed as indicated. Should the completion

AJRdf\R\MAD\Documents\Agresments\G\Glenbard Wastewater Auth\TSA 201 8\Agr\1278.055. TSA.docx

www.strand.com



Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Page 3
March [, 2018

time be extended, it may be cause for an adjustment in the lump sum or estimated fee that reflects any
wage scale adjustments made.

The lump sum or estimated fee will not be exceeded without prior notice to and agreement by OWNER
but may be adjusted for time delays, time extensions, amendments, or changes in the Scope of Services.
Any adjustments will be negotiated based on ENGINEER's increase or decrease in costs caused by
delays, extensions, amendments, or changes.

Schedule

Services will begin upon execution of this Agreement, which is anticipated on April 2, 2018. This
Agreement will terminate two years following its execution. The schedule for individual tasks will be
included on each subsequently issued Task Order.

Standard of Care

The Standard of Care for all Services performed or furnished by ENGINEER under this Agreement will
be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of ENGINEER s profession practicing under similar
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. ENGINEER makes no warranties, express or
implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with ENGINEER’s Services.

OWNER’s Responsibilities

1. Assist ENGINEER by placing at ENGINEER s disposal all available information pertinent to
the Task Order-specified project including previous reports, previous drawings and
specifications, and any other data relative to the scope of the Task Order-specified project.

2. Furnish to ENGINEER, as required by ENGINEER for performance of Services as part of this
Agreement, data prepared by or services of others obtained or prepared by OWNER relative to
the scope of the Task Order-specified project, such as soil borings, probings and subsurface
explorations, and laboratory tests and inspections of samples, all of which ENGINEER may rely
upon in performing Services under this Agreement.

3. Provide access to the site as required for ENGINEER to perform Task Order-specified project
Services under this Agreement.

4. Guarantee access to and make all provisions for ENGINEER to enter upon public and private
lands as required for ENGINEER to perform Task Order-specified project Services under this
Agreement,

5, Examine all reports, sketches, estimates, special provisions, drawings, and other documents

presented by ENGINEER and render, in writing, decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable
time so as not to delay the performance of ENGINEER.

6. Provide all legal services as may be required for the development of the Task Order-specified
project.
AR dfRAMADD \Agr \G\Glenbard Auth\TSA 2018\Agn\1278.055. TSA doex

www.strand.com



Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Page 4
March 1, 2018

7. Retain the services of a soils consultant to provide any necessary geotechnical evaluation and
recommendations.
8. Pay all permit and plan review fees payable to regulatory agencies.

Opinion of Probable Cost

Any opinions of probable cost prepared by ENGINEER are supplied for general guidance of OWNER
only. ENGINEER has no control over competitive bidding or market conditions and cannot guarantee
the accuracy of such opinions as compared to contract bids or actual costs to OWNER.

Observation Services

In furnishing observation services, ENGINEER’s efforts will be directed toward determining for
OWNER that the completed project will, in general, conform to the Contract Documents; but
ENGINEER will not supervise, direct, or have control over the contractor’s work and will not be
responsible for the contractor’s construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, or
health and safety precautions or programs, or for the contractor’s failure to perform the construction work
in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Payment Requests

ENGINEER’s review of Payment Requests from contractor(s) will not impose responsibility to determine
that title to any of the work has passed to OWNER free and clear of any liens, claims, or other encumbrances.
Any such service by ENGINEER will be provided through an amendment to this Agreement.

Changes

1. OWNER may make changes within the general scope of this Agreement in the Services to be
performed. If such changes cause an increase or decrease in ENGINEER’s cost or time required
for performance of any Services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment will be made
and this Agreement will be modified in writing accordingly.

2. No services for which additional compensation will be charged by ENGINEER will be furnished
without the written authorization of OWNER. The fee established herein will not be exceeded
without agreement by OWNER but may be adjusted for time delays, time extensions,
amendments, or changes in the Scope of Services.

3. If there is 2 modification of federal, state, or local agency requirements relating to the Services
to be performed under this Agreement subsequent to the date of execution of this Agreement,

the increased or decreased cost of performance of the Services provided for in this Agreement
will be reflected in an appropriate modification of this Agreement.

Extension of Services

This Agreement may be extended for additional Services upon OWNER’s authorization. Extension of
Services will be provided for a lump sum or an hourly rate plus expenses.

AJRdfe\RAMADAD S\Agr \MG\Glenbard W Auth\TSA 2018\Agr\1278.055. TSA.docx

www.sirand.com



Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Page 5
March 1, 2018

Payment

OWNER shall make monthly payments to ENGINEER for Services performed in the preceding month
based upon monthly invoices. Nonpayment 30 days after the date of receipt of invoice may, at
ENGINEER s option, result in assessment of a 1 percent per month carrying charge on the unpaid balance.

Nonpayment 45 days after the date of receipt of invoice may, at ENGINEER’s option, result in
suspension of Services upon five calendar days’ notice to OWNER. ENGINEER will have no liability
to OWNER, and OWNER agrees to make no claim for any delay or damage as a result of such suspension
caused by any breach of this Agreement by OWNER. Upon receipt of payment in full of all outstanding
sums due from OWNER, or curing of such other breach which caused ENGINEER to suspend Services,
ENGINEER will resume Services and there will be an equitable adjustment to the remaining project
schedule and compensation as a result of the suspension.

Data Provided by Others

ENGINEER is not responsible for the quality or accuracy of data nor for the methods used in the
acquisition or development of any such data where such data is provided by or through OWNER,
contractor, or others to ENGINEER and where ENGINEER’s Services are to be based upon such data.
Such data includes, but is not limited to, soil borings, groundwater data, chemical analyses, geotechnical
testing, reports, calculations, designs, drawings, specifications, record drawings, contractor’s marked-up
drawings, and topographical surveys.

Termination

This Agreement may be terminated with cause in whole or in part in writing by either party subject to a
two-week notice and the right of the party being terminated to meet and discuss the termination before
the termination takes place. ENGINEER will be paid for all completed or obligated Services up to the
date of termination.

Third-Party Beneficiaries

Nothing contained in this Agreement creates a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor
of a third party against either OWNER or ENGINEER. ENGINEER s Services under this Agreement are
being performed solely for OWNER’s benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim against
ENGINEER because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of Services hereunder.
OWNER and ENGINEER agree to require a similar provision in all contracts with contractors,
subcontractors, subconsultants, vendors, and other entities involved in the Task Order-specified project
to carry out the intent of this provision.

Dispute Resolution

Except as may be otherwise provided in this Agreement, all claims, counterclaims, disputes, and other
matters in question between OWNER and ENGINEER arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the
breach thereof will be decided first by mediation, if the parties mutually agree, or with a bench trial in a
court of competent jurisdiction within the State of Wisconsin.

AJR:dfe\R\MADAD: \A AG\Glenbard W Ath\TSA 201 \AgA1278,055. TSA.docx

www.strand.com



Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Page 6
March 1, 2018

Terms and Conditions
The terms and conditions of this Agreement and subsequently issued Task Orders will apply to the

Services defined in the Scope of Services. OWNER-supplied purchase order is for processing payment
only; terms and conditions on the purchase order shall not apply to these Services.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement,

ENGINEER: OWNER:

STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
Matthew S. Richards Date Mark Franz, Manager Date
Corporate Secretary Village of Glen Ellyn

AJR:df\R\MAD\Documents\Agreements\G\Glenbard Wastewater Auti\TSA_201 8\AgN\1278.055. TSA.docx

www.strand.com



SECTION 8.0

APPROVAL OF HIGH
STRENGTH WASTE
OPERATING
PROCEDURES AND
REVOKE MORATORIUM
PLACED ON RECEIVING
HIGH STRENGTH WASTE



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE, Executive Director

DATE: March?2, 2018

RE: Approval of High Strength Waste Standard Operating Procedures
Revoke Moratorium on Receiving of High Strength Wastes

Authority staff has put together a draft Standard Operating Procedures in relation to accepting high
strength waste, co-digesting the high strength waste with our municipal sludge, and other related
operational procedures. Environmental Resources Coordinator, Laurie Frieders, authored the original
draft of the document and operational, laboratory, and administrative staff all met to discuss it at
greater lengths. Authority staff visited a neighboring facility, the Downers Grove Sanitary District,
who has been successfully receiving High Strength Wastes and Co-Digesting and obtained
information on their procedures in order to obtain further insight, which also contributed to the
attached documents.

The Authority’s consulting engineer, Baxter & Woodman, also participated by providing the basis of
design from the original CHP/High Strength Waste Receiving station and provided review of the final
version to ensure calculations were done correctly. This document was further reviewed by the TAC,
Village Administrators, and members of the Public as well. The draft document, along with a FAQ
document that Village Communications staff helped review, were shared with Authority email
subscribers (generally neighbors), as well as posted on the Authority’s website.

Based on the thorough investigations and time spent putting together the Standard Operating
Procedures, the Authority requests the EOC approve the procedures, and allow the revocation of the
moratorium placed on receiving High Strength Wastes. Authority and Village of Glen Ellyn staff still
intend to meet with a concerned neighbor, but providing there are no major modifications made to the
procedures, Authority staff recommends moving forward with accepting High Strength Wastes by
April 1, 2018. At that time, the Authority will begin to solicit haulers to bring in the materials.

If the EOC wishes to discuss this further prior to approval, as an alternate option, the Authority would
request the EOC approve moving forward with accepting High Strength Wastes by a May 1, 2018
date in lieu of the recommended April 1, 2018 date. Further updates could then be provided at the
regularly scheduled April 8, 2018 EOC meeting.



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

HIGH STRENGTH WASTE RECEIVING

Date Approved: Approved By:

PURPOSE: A guide to qualify proposed digester feedstock and to safely and effectively accept the
feedstock and process it for the purposes of co-generation. It is important to note that this is a biological
process, and that while defining strict operating procedures, the possibility of an upset condition cannot
be eliminated — only reduced. Staff shall not be held liable for an upset condition as long as these
procedures are followed.

SCOPE: This Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) covers all aspects of receiving High Strength Waste
{HSW). and is broken down into sections as detailed below.

Itis desirable to use a single source hauler for delivery of high strength waste to the Authority so
that greater control of delivery amounts and accountability of delivered materials can be had.
However, as market changes may necessitate using more than one hauler or changing the sole
hauler, included in this SOP is the process of qualifying additional feedstock and suppliers.

Part ] Staff Responsible: Environmental Resources Coordinator

Qualification of Feedstock

1. HSW hauler will provide a complete description of the waste characteristics, including the
following:
a. Waste type and origin. Type description to include general industry (food, medical, etc.)

b. A Laboratory analysis of the proposed feedstock waste must be submitted and reviewed. The
hauler may provide the analysis from an independent laboratory or it may be analyzed by the
Glenbard Wastewater Authority (GWA) laboratory staff at the hauler’s sole expense.

. The analysis must contain the following parameters and be within the ranges indicated.

Parameter Minimum Maximum
COoD 30,000 N/A

pH 3 8

%VSS 60% 100%

Sulfites 0 350 mg/L

Volatile Fatty Acids Informational Purposes Only/No Limit

2. The Environmental Resources Coordinator (ERC) is responsible for reviewing the data provided
and accepting or declining the feedstock based on the established range of parameters.
3. The ERC may decline feedstock that meets the analysis criteria when there are other concerns,

such as consistency or other risk factors.
4. The Executive Director has the final approval or disapproval in all instances. The Authority has the
right to refuse any feedstock or hauler at any time




Part 2 Staff Responsible: Environmental Resources Coordinator

Hauler Qualification

Prior to delivering feedstock, proposed haulers must complete a permit application/contract
agreement with GWA.

2. Haulers must provide proof of insurance with the following minimum coverage:

A. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance covering personal injury, bodily injury, property
damage, and contractual liability in the amount of One Million Dollars (51,000,000) for each
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate per policy period;

B. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering personal injury, bodily injury and
Property damage with a minimum combined limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).

C. Worker’s Compensation insurance in the minimum amounts required by statute.

3. A certificate or certificates of insurance naming THE AUTHORITY, the Village of Lombard and the
Village of Glen Ellyn as additional insured parties. The certificate or certificates shall reflect the
above coverages and shall be in effect at all times. Updated certificates of insurance shall be
submitted annually to the Authority.

4. Haulers must provide a “renders license” or sign an affidavit certifying they only transport
material agreed upon.

5. The ERC s responsible for reviewing the information submitted and recommending that the
hauler be approved or disapproved.

6. The Executive Director has the final approval or disapproval in all instances.

Part 3 Staff Responsible: Operations Department

Feedstock Receiving Back-Up Staff: ERC

1. The ERC should make all efforts possible to schedule deliveries ahead of time, and convey this
schedule to Operations on a daily basis or as mutually convenient.

2. Haulers must stop at gate and push button to announce arrival and open the gate.

3. Amember of the Operations Department will meet the hauler at the receiving station to unlock it.

4. Prior to unlocking the station to commence discharge, the operator must check the daily log to
ensure that there is capacity and the maximum volume of waste received will not be exceeded by
the acceptance of the load. The criteria for the maximum volume of waste allowed to receive will
be found in Schedule A of these SOP’s.

5. The hauler is to provide a completed manifest for the load.

6. The hauler must fill out the label on a GWA provided sample container and use the container to
grab a sample of the load as it is discharging.

7. Sample jars are to be provided by the Authority with labels.

8. The sample is to be placed in the small refrigerator that is located near the desk in the garage of
the press building (Building P).

9. A member of the Operations Department will observe the discharge to check for possible
contaminants.

10. Should the load appear to be contaminated, the operator must stop the hauler from discharging
anymore of the suspect load.

11. When the discharge is complete, the operator will re-lock the station.

12. Once the maximum amount of HSW is received for that day, the operator must communicate this
to the ERC and the administrative secretary in order to divert any further loads.

13. Deliveries will only be received when full time staff is present, i.e. M-F 7am-4pm, excluding

holidays.




Part 4 Staff Responsible: Operations/Laboratory

Processing of HSW Samples

1.

At the end of each day, a member of the Operations Department is to collect all load sample
bottles from the digester in Building P, ensure they are labeled properly, and place them in the
laboratory refrigerator in the designated area.

Laboratory staff is to ensure that if there are multiple haulers throughout a month that the
random samples reflect each of the haulers.

If the Authority is to receive loads from multiple haulers, the results of these random samples will
be entered into OPS works in the HSW worksheet.

All samples are to be saved for thirty (30) days, and at the end of the thirty (30) day period
composited and analyzed for total solids and volatile solids.

The results of this composited sample are to be entered into OPS works on the Digester Volatile
Acids worksheet and used to calculate the amount of volatile solids being sent to the digester.
This will be used to determine if an appropriate amount of HSW is being sent to the digesters and
will be evaluated monthly, or if/when a new waste stream is introduced.

Laboratory staff is to take a sample of the digester three times a week (Monday, Wednesday, and
Friday) at consistent times and analyze it for the acids to alkalinity ratio. This data is to be
recorded in the “Volatile Acids Binder,” as well as the Digester Volatile Acids worksheet in the
database management software (currently OPS Works).

The Laboratory Services Coordinator and/or Operations Superintendent is responsible for
reporting any changes to the acids to alkalinity ratio outside above 0.15 to the Operations
Superintendent and Executive Director immediately, and feeding of High Strength Waste to the
digester will immediately be ceased. In this event, more frequent digester sampling will be taken
as needed to more closely monitor the health of the digester and ensure upset conditions are not
occurring. This range has been determined based on existing data from extended time periods
when the Authority’s digesters are operating without issue.

If the acids to alkalinity ratio range exceeds allowable limits, and/or the acids go above 200 mg/L,
in a 24-hour period, feeding of High Strength Waste to the digester will immediately be ceased.
In this event, more frequent digester sampling will be taken as needed to more closely monitor
the health of the digester and ensure upset conditions are not occurring.

In the event of any upset conditions, the collected samples may be analyzed to determine if any
potential containments were introduced via the high strength waste loads. Investigative work
would be performed based on the type of upset condition that occurred, and if any unusual or
suspect loads were received.

Part 5 Staff Responsible: Executive Director/ Operations Department

HSW Daily Loading

1.

The Executive Director shall work with the Authority consultants to determine the maximum daily
HSW volume that may be received, and that may be transferred to the digesters.

The determination of allowable volume to be transferred to the digesters will be made based on
volatile solids loading bases, volume of storage available in the digesters, an acceptable feed rate
to the digesters and resultant, empirical digester process testing.

The determination of allowable volume to be received will be made based on the volume of HSW
allowed to be transferred to the digesters, the volume of storage available, and acceptable feed
rates to the digesters in accordance with calculations defined in the attached “Schedule A.”
These calculations will be reviewed periodically for potential adjustment based on:

(a) Changes in the volatile solids loading base.




(b) Changes in equipment or process changes.

(c) Changes in the normal range of the volatile acids to alkalinity ratio.

The HSW Transfer pump to the digesters will be programmed to cease operating when the
maximum allowable volume determined in Schedule A has been transferred to the digesters.

The HWS Transfer Pump (gallons per minute and duration) shall be programmed to pump at a
consistent rate throughout the day according to calculations determined on Schedule A

The Authority, along with its consultants, have determined the maximum volumes of HSW
allowed to be received and transferred to the digesters are defined in the attached Schedule A.
These calculations are to be reviewed periodically and subject to change

Daily transfer rates to the digesters shall be in accordance with Schedule A in order to reduce the

potential of a biological upset.




suojes £0T'9% |B10L sjueL jo swnjop

b - mmNHm {Auel 3583} Z JaquinN yuel
134 219N 1017
- ReE (ue 352M) T Jaquinp yueL
@84 21qnd> 790's
sanpede) jue) afesols DOI/MSH
Aeq 194 suajjes EYTZT (j=aidh)
SA %96 '8 SL %8 1B MSH JO SLLN|OA |BUOHIPPY
1234 21gn) 0Z6'v61 {Z 78 T s1015981() SWIN|OA BIOL
AeQ Ja3d 1834 91GND PUBSNOY] 124 SA $O SpUnay 00t ey Juipeo 9juediQ 3|qeMO|lY
nun Aguenp

Kpede) uipeay sA 23 T sia3598|a

UIA[5I9Y 95Ea1D 13 S[10 'S1E4/915e My [ISUans YIiH

{2%09-%0% 51 38uel [ewIOU s33e3S TT dOW) % 615 onpay SA
{sheq ST-QT ueyl ssa| ou s8I1EI5 TT JOW) sheq oz 8wl uonuaaQ Jeysadig
. MSH
Aeq td suojien DEVES Buipn|du 513353310 Aewild 03 BWNIOA [RI0)
Aeq Jad suojjen EPTZT (t=a1dAL)
SA %96 '3 SL %8 12 MSH 4O SWN[OA |euohiippy
. MSH) sisem yidusaig
Ao Jed A spunod BLLL Y31H J0 _.__o_unwmv_n_ 404 Ep__umnmu |euolippy
Ae(] 13d SA spunod T6Y6T Ayvede) Buipeo sa
AeQ 124 1984 2/GN7) PUBSNOY] U3d SA JO SPUNOY 00T 23y Sujpeo auedio ajqemo||y
(P/EN/SA a1} AoQ 424 3334 2iqND pupsnoy | Jad spios 313p1oA fo SPUNOY 0OP-00T si aBuoi a0 Bujppoj junbio 133536Ip 21G0I3DUD paxiu A|a3ajduwos b ‘spupjd JuawDas| 4210M335DM jodidjuniy Jo sUojoiadO (TT JOW) TT "ON 32139014 fo [onUD 343 Jad
Ae( J2d 1924 JIGND PUBSNOY | 184 SA 4O SPUNOY 09 a1y 3ujpeo] suedio
Aeq Jad SA spunag YILTT ajey uipeo Ja3saliq Alewid Juaun)
suo|jes 000°8SH'T
1834 219N 026'¢6T 518588(0 AJewajig Jo awnjop
wn Amuenp
(duewlopad Supspa) sarey Jupeoy Jaisadig
1984 219n3 £50°5t
. 000'€E8'T $1935981@ J0 3wn|oA JeI0]
les 000'sLE J93s881(] Atepuooas g 183588)0
5] 000'525 13153310 ARwi 17 J8ysaBiq
|eo 00D‘€E6 J335981g Adewild T Jaisadiq
nn Aguenp
sawn(oa

PIBATIOE S1SeM pue s9pnjs

ewilid L30q SA12391 7 pue T $I515351Q "J315351P Paleajun PUE PoXILIUN € S| ¢ 9159010 -S1015adip MEWid 93¢ g 73 T 5J935081Q) 51915991 J1GoIaeuy

Aeq Jad suojlen £82'65 ajesmoly Aeq 124 suo||e9 000'06 sjeamol4
% Yar4 UGIIBIIUSIUO) S| % IR% uoRenUIILD) SPIOS
AeQ Jad SA spunag PTLTT uoonpold (SA) SPIIOS 3|1EIOA Aeq 18d SA spunog 00 UoRINPO.d (SA) SPIIOS 3JNEIOA
Aep uad (51} spi|os |e3o1 spunog 887'VT uoNpold a8pn|s (B30 L Aep Jad (S1) spijos |eyo[ spunog oOv'ZE uodNpPoOIY 33pn|s |eyoL
syun Apuenp syun Anuenp

uonInpolg 28pn[s

V aInpayos




S11-06 %001

88 %SL

88 %08

(Aep 3od suores (0g‘Q1 = IoJSULI], SWN[OA [2I0]) Aep o LTy %67

Jo 1moy £1043 soynut ¢ 10§ (wdB6~) %001-%sL 18 9e1adQ [[eys dwng Jofsuel] MSH SE-ST %S|

s15€q AJINOY U® UO J30/U0 Pa[oAd 3q [[im dumd oy $a11100[9A JULINOOS Joy31y 10] mof[e 07-81 %01

03 19p10 ut ‘adid ayy ut sagex0[q Sunesio 01 suoid Sureq (DO Af[eroadss) MSH 03 suQg 6-¢ %S
U (BurpeoT 1u9019g 0ALI( 2[qELIEA ) Poadg duing

Iag suo[en : : :

uoneRd( dumg s19)sasi(] O], 19JSUBL], ASH

"UIDID 2]GD]IDAD 23DA0IS IYDUL 0] 43P0 UL 2UdY] JO Junown 23pridosddp up 40f PaONPa.L 40 PaIVY 2q [J1A SILIAL]DP “ANIVO SIUINJOA SSIIXD JT

JWIN[OA 9[qe[IRAY
1210, 343 3q 0} FUIUIEWNY SWNJOA [8)0L, oy ul Sunjnsax ‘Aepung A[ejerdwos pandwo aq pinosm yue) 3uIp[oY aY} ‘A[}OBXD PIMO[[OJ ST [NPIYDS J] - 4

SJUOWISIOUT UO[[RS (Q)°S UI 9q JSNul sYue) JuIp[oY] 0} PAPPE SWN[OA ‘SUO[[ES (0(°S SUISq JOUE) M SH [EI1dAT € 0 an] - %

#+E01°9F £06°S¢ £01°6T €0£°67 €0S°€C €0LLE £06°11 $[UB], SUIP[OH UL SUIUIEWISY SWINJOA YUB],
008°01 008°01 008°01 008°01 008°01 008°01 008°01 $19)S931(] 0} PILIRJSULLL, SWN[OA MSH
0 0 000°ST 000°S1 000°ST 000°S1 000°ST +SYUR, SUIP[OH] OJUI PAAIOOTY SWN[OA MSH
€06°SE €01°ST €0€°6C7 €0S°cE €OL'LE €06°'11 €01°9% HEIS 01 9[qe[IeAY SWN[OA MSH
Aepung Aepimeg AepL sy, ABPSOUPI M Aepsony, ABDUOIN

3MPaYdS AT [6o1dA]L




(%09-%0% St 83ue jewisou 533838 TT JO)
(sA2Q ST-0T uey) sse| ou s31E3s TT JOW)

UIAI333Y 9SeAI5) 13 "SI0 'S1B4/91SEM (1FUSS USIH

{P/£24/5A qi) Apq@ 124 1334 21gn) pupsnoyy iz SPIjos afi3ejoA fo spunod pop-00T SI aBupa a)o1 buipoo] Jupbio J2§s3B1p s1qolapup paxius Aja33)

PSIEANIE 935eM puE s3pn[s

Aeq 134 suojjen
%
ABQ J8g SA spunag
Aep sad (51) spifos [e3a spunoyd
syun

BWLId 410q SAIR33 T PUE T SI315931Q “1915351p pojesqun pue Paxiluun € 51 § 1915991Q "S1915391p

L8T'6S ajesmold

LT uonenuaaue) spljos
YILTT uofionpold (SA) SPIOS Bl13RloA
887°¥T uopaNpoLd 33pnjs [e30)
Apuenp

uGnoNpoid s9pnis

V aInpayos

suojjes €019t |e30L $jue) jo wnjap
suojjeny 6ET'8
1994 21900 Tor'T (3uey 1se3} 7 Jequiny juel
suoj|en v98°LE
199421975 90's {uel 1saM) T Joquinn yue)
sanpede) yuey 3324015 DOI/MSH
(1eatdA) )
Aeq 134 suojjen £PTTT
SA %96 '8 SL %B 38 MSH JO SWN[OA |EUClIpPY
1984 219N 026°v6T {z 73 T s12159310) SWn|OA JEIOL
AeQ 18d 3984 QNI PUBSNOY| 134 SA JO SPUNOY 00T 83ey BujpeoT 3juedlQ a|qemojly
wun Apuenp
Aypede) 3ujpeol sA 73 T siaasadiq
% 6L'TS uoRNPaY SA
sheq woe 3w uopuslaq Jeisadlq
. MSH
Aeq sad suojjen 0EVTL Buipn|au) 512359810 AlBLWILIG 03 BWN|OA (€10)
. {les1dAL)
Aegad suoilen Erer SA %96 8 SL %8 38 MSH 40 BWN|OA |eUCIUPPY
. (MSH) 23sem Yduang
#0251 spuncg Eee YBIH Jo uonses)q 104 Audede) [euonippy
Aeq 124 §A spunog T6V'6T faoede) Sutpeo sp
Ae( 19 182 21qND PUESNOYL J3d SA 4O SPUNCY falo}4 ajey Suipeot 3uedig ajqemo||y
b ‘spupyd i M 1Ry Jo stioiinsado (TT JOW) TT 0N 29132014 fo jonuow ay) 134
AeQ J2d 3894 21GN PUBSNOY] 13d SA 4O SPUnay 09 s1ey Suipeo uedin
Aeq 184 SA spunog Y1211 21ey Bulpec J93s98)q Aewiag Juauny
suojjen 000'85Y'T
1924 219n) 026°¥6T s13)5881q AlEwW|14 JO BWwNjoA
wn Ayuenp
{asuewiopag Funspqg) sajey Sujpeot sa3saBig
3984 31qn) £50°GYZ
s 000'eE8T s12353810 JO FWNJOA [el0),
e 000'6/€ 183598)q Adepuoaas g 495881
jeD 000'52S 18359810 Atewid :7 se3sadlq
[125] 000'cE6 19359810 Atewipd :1 18358819
wn Apuenp
sawnjop

Aeq Ja4 suojjeg
%
AeQ Jad SA spunod
Aep Jad (51) spjos |30 spunog
sun

ewiid 31€ ¢ 13 T sJo15001Q) S1915991Q JIGOI9EuyY

000°06 ajesmoly
£y UORBIIUIILOCT SPIIOS
00€'vT uopanpo.d (SA) spilos apejon
[l 443 uoanpoid a3pnjs [e30L
Anueny




S11-06 %001
88 %SL
= %05
(Aep 3od sUOT[ES 008°0 | = JoFSueLL, SWNIOA [210T) AP o LTy %ST
JO 1oy L1040 seynurw ¢ Jof (wdB06~) %001-%s . 1€ eresadQ [reys dwng Iajsues], mSH e e
SIseq Aoy ue uo 3Jo/uo pajakd aq [[is dwnd oY) ‘SONT0[OA 3uLnoss 1ay31y 103 mo[[e 07-31 s
01 19pJ0 ut ‘adid oy3 wt safeyoo0[q Sunesis 0y suoxd Suraq (DO AJre1oadss) M SH 01 angg o< e

INUIA
134 suoj[en (BUIPEOT U013 SAL( 2[qELIEA) Paadg duwing

uoperdd) dulng SI9)5381(J O L, 19JSUEL], AASH

UIDBD 2]qDIIDAD 23DA0]S 2YDUL 0F 42O Ul PUAL] JO JunowD o1p1idoddy up AQf paompad 40 pajIvy 2 [[IM SLIDAI[P UNID0 SHUN]OA SSPIXD J]

SUINJOA S[qe[leAy
[€10], 9y} 99 0} SUIUTRWISY SWN[OA [2J0 Y} UI Sun[nsax ‘Aepung A[230[dwios pendwo oq pnom yue) 3uIp[oy 2y} ‘A[10BXS PAMO[[0] ST S[NPaYDS J] - "

SjUSWAIOUL UO[[e3 ()(°G Ul 9q ISU SYUe) FUIP|OY O} PIPPE SWINJOA SUO[

183 000°s Sutoq Jayue} M\SH [eo1dA) € o) angg -

#x€01°9% £06°S¢ €01°ST £0€°6T €0S°€E €0L°LE €06°T1 S ue ] SUIP]OH Ul SUIUTEWSY SWN[OA YUE],
008°01 008°01 008°01 008°0T 008°01 008°01 008°01 $1915931(] 01 PALIRJSURL], SWN[OA MSH
0 0 000°C1 000°C1 000°S1 000°S1 000°ST +SYUe], SUIPIOH OJUI POALROSY SWN[OA MSH
€06°S€ €01°6T €0€°6C €0S°CE €0LLE €06°T1 €01°9% HEIS 0 S[qe[leAy awnoA MSH
Aepung Aepinjeg AepL1y sy, ABpsaupap\ Aepson], KePUON

3MPAYdS A[EQ [B10A T,




Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

High Strength Waste Operating Procedure
Frequently Asked Questions

Glenbard Wastewater Authority
January 2018

About:

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority located in Glen Ellyn, llinois is an agency formed in
1977 between the Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn via an intergovernmental
agreement. Its mission is to operate and maintain municipal wastewater treatment
facilities, protect public health, and protect the environment, for approximately 109,000
residents and businesses in the Lombard, Glen Ellyn, Valley View/Butterfield and Glen
Ellyn Heights service areas. (www.gbww.org/about-us)

In 2017, the facility began processing High Strength Waste, including fats, oils and
greases. The below FAQ contains information about the benefits and procedures
involved in the processing these materials.

1. What is High Strength Waste (HSW) and Fats, Oils, Greases (FOG)?
High strength waste (HSW) can be defined as wastewater that has more impurities in it
than levels found in domestic wastewater, which is wastewater generated in homes.
While this is a general definition, Glenbard Wastewater Authority (GWA) accepts only
HSW that is generated during food processing or preparing. This includes waste such as
grease laden water generated by restaurant dishwashing, sugar and grease laden water
from the recycling of expired soda pop, salad dressing and other food products as well
as clean up water from food manufacturing such as candy.

Fats, oils and greases (FOG) are a specific type of high strength waste. It is generated
by restaurants during the preparation and clean-up of meals. Restaurants are required to
have a grease trap to remove the grease from dishwashing water to keep it out of the
sewers. Grease traps then must be pumped out from time to time and the material (food
particles, oil and grease) properly disposed of. FOG is a desired high strength waste
because it provides lots of energy over a long period versus sugar wastewater that
provides high energy for short periods of time. This can be compared to how the human
body reacts to sugar versus protein.

2. Why does GWA want to accept HSW, including FOG?
The wastewater treatment process uses large amounts of electricity. It accounts for a
significant percent of our operating costs. Just like for homeowners, rising utility costs
are a concern. GWA is constantly looking for ways to be energy efficient. A by-product of

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



wastewater treatment is methane gas. GWA has upgraded parts of the treatment system
to be able to capture this gas and use it to generate energy to run the plant. However,
the domestic wastewater coming into the plant from the area businesses and homes is
not enough to generate all the energy GWA needs to operate. By accepting HSW and
FOG, GWA will be able to generate a larger portion of the energy it needs to run.

The more energy GWA can produce, the less it has to pay for it. In addition to producing
energy, the process generates heat. This heat is also captured and used in the process
instead of depending on natural gas boilers for heat. This further reduces utility costs for
GWA. Additionally, it allows budget money to be shifted to fund much needed upgrades
to aging equipment and helps contain sewer rates for all users of the system.

This process is a “green” initiative and helps preserve the environment. It keeps HSW
and FOG from ending up in a landfill and turns it into renewable energy. It also reduces
the carbon footprint GWA creates since a larger portion of the treatment process would
be run by the renewable energy.

. How is HSW turned into energy?

Wastewater treatment at GWA is hugely dependent on micro-organisms or “bugs”. The
bugs are in large covered tanks called digesters. The HSW is pumped into these tanks
as food for the bugs. The bugs eat the grease, food particles, and sugars in the HSW
and produce methane gas. The methane gas is then captured and processed through
engines to generate electricity.

. Why is the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (GWA) deciding to take in HSW and
FOG again?

After the biological upset during late summer/early fall of 2017, a temporary moratorium
was placed on the acceptance of these materials, with the anticipation of accepting it
again after thorough investigation to ensure proper handling and addition of the material.
Accepting HSW/FOG will allow GWA to produce more bio-gas (a natural bi-product of
wastewater treatment), which in turn will allow for the generation of more renewable
energy to use on site. Since our mission is to both protect public health and preserve
the environment, this is a method of saving costs, protect the public health, and being
green to help preserve the environment. The cost savings realized will assist GWA in
paying for future improvements, which will result in less costs for GWA customers.

. How did GWA put together the Standard Operating Procedures?

GWA had initially reached out to members of the public to attempt to form an Ad-Hoc
committee, but only had one volunteer, and unfortunately could not put together a proper
committee. Therefore, GWA performed in depth research on proper methods of
receiving and adding the material to our own waste, and formulated it into a document.
GWA staff also visited a neighboring wastewater treatment plant who is currently, and
successfully, accepting HSW/FOG. Procedures that have worked successfully for this
other facility were included in GWA'’s policy.

- What kind of preventative measures do the Standard Operating Procedure
include?

GWA will thoroughly vet haulers before allowing them to bring material in, as well as
thoroughly analyzing the nature of the material they propose to haul in to ensure it is a



suitable product. Once GWA has deemed a hauler and their material acceptable, the
hauler will be issued a permit, along with a copy of the standard operating procedures.
The hauler will also be required to provide a “renders license,” or sign an affidavit, which
states they will only bring in material that was agreed upon. The volume will be carefully
controlled and each delivery will be inspected by GWA staff with a sample taken from
each load.

7. What caused the offensive odor in August and what is GWA doing to try and

prevent it from happening again?

Plain and simple, the bugs were overfed. This caused a chain reaction and the treatment
system got upset; much like when you overeat or eat something that does not agree with
you. The treatment process was still working, but since it was upset it produced more
hydrogen sulfide than normal. Human noses are extremely sensitive to the smell of
hydrogen sulfide, so even though the odors were potent, the levels contained in the air
were non-hazardous. GWA took air samples during this time period, and although the
odors were detectable by the human nose, the levels of hydrogen sulfide in the air at the
plant were too low to even register in the measuring devices.

8. What has GWA done to prevent an upset from occurring again?
The entire process has been thoroughly reviewed by GWA staff and consulting
engineers and the following improvements have been made:

* An additional pump was added to be able to continuously feed the digesters with
the HSW, where previously a single pump was being shared between two
separate steps of the process. This allows GWA to feed the bacteria with more
consistency instead of the “feast or famine” method from having only a single

pump.

+ GWA staff visited a neighboring wastewater treatment plant who is currently, and
successfully, accepting HSW/FOG. Procedures that have worked successfully
for this other facility were included in GWA'’s procedures.

* The calculations regarding how much HSW could be safely added were reviewed
and revised. That data collected from the 10 months of successfully accepting
this waste were included.

+ While GWA had a process in place to accept the HSW, the policy was reviewed,
refined and formalized in a standard operating procedure document. Safeguards
have been incorporated into this document to ensure limits on accepting HSW
are regulated closely. Click here to review GWA's full SOP for HSW Receiving.

* Additional laboratory tests will be done on the HSW in order to best determine
how much food the bugs are receiving; similar to knowing the calories in your
food and staying within a certain number of calories per day to not put on weight.

9. How will GWA know if a biological upset is going to happen again?
Whether or not GWA accepts HSW/FOG, the possibility of an upset always exists, as
this is a biological process much like human digestion. Just like every person has
different tolerances and is prone to digestive upsets, GWA’s digesters have the potential



10.

of being upset even just from the normal domestic wastewater stream coming from our
residents. However, as part of the standard operating procedures, GWA will be
monitoring the biological health of the digesters much closer. The procedures define a
set of published standards on digester health, and GWA have set those standards to be
even more conservative than what is recommended. If it's noticed the health of the
digester is approaching the limits of those standards, we can immediately begin taking
preventative measures in order to attempt to stop an upset from occurring.

Who should we contact for further information regarding this process?

You can always contact Matt Streicher, GWA’s Executive Director, with any questions.
He can be reached by phone at 630-790-1901x126, or via email at
mstreicher@gbww.org. GWA is always open to providing tours as well if you would like
to come see the process first hand, and learn more about wastewater treatment. During
off hours, you can always call our main number at 630-790-1901, and be connected to
an operator on call.



SECTION 9.0

APPROVAL OF
AMENDMENT TO
EXISTING ENGINEERING
SERVICES FOR RJN
GROUP - INSTALLATION
AND ANALYSIS OF GLEN
OAK LIFT STATION
MAGMETER



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE

DATE: March2, 2018

RE: Request for Approval
Amendment to Existing Engineering Services
Installation and Analysis of the Glen Oak Lift Station Magmeter

In late 2017 the Village of Glen Ellyn officially annexed an area just West of the DuPage River
along Hill Avenue. Although unincorporated, this area was previously serviced by Village of
Lombard water and sewer. The sewer flow from this area goes to the Glen Oak Lift Station,
where it is pumped via force main into a Village of Lombard sewer just upstream of the
Authority’s North Regional Interceptor, where it’s flow was metered along with the sewer it
discharged into. Since the area is now incorporated into Glen Ellyn, a need arose to separate the
metered flow coming from the force main, as it is needed for Village of Glen Ellyn flow billing
purposes. An evaluation was performed and it was determined that installing a Magnetic Meter
(Magmeter) in the force main was the most suitable method to monitor the flow due to the
characteristics of the collection system in that location.

Since the Authority is already in an existing contract with RIN Group for flow monitoring and
RIN owns the rest of the Authority meters, a design-build proposal was requested. As part of the
design-build contract, the Authority will be purchasing the Magmeter, as RJN Group will not
provide a lease for one due to the complexities of the meter and the inability to use it at any other
locations. The particular Magmeter was chosen because the Authority already owns and
maintains close to a dozen other meters that are the same model. Therefore, GWA already has
spare parts on hand, are familiar with maintaining them, and can incorporate them into our
existing preventative maintenance program properly.

This proposal has been reviewed by both Authority and Village of Glen Ellyn staff, as the Glen
Oak Lift Station is owned by the Village, but the Authority will own the meter and be
responsible for monitoring and reporting the flow.

It is recommended the EOC award RIN Group, Inc. the Amendment to the Existing Engineering
Services to include the Installation and Analysis of the Glen Oak Lift Station Magmeter in the
amount not to exceed $45,000. The amount includes a contingency that may not be used, and
also includes in the increase in the Authority’s monthly flow monitoring fees, so it is all
inclusive. This amount will be taken out of the Infrastructure Improvement budget, 40-580140, in
the CY2018 Approved Budget.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
AMENDMENT NO. 1
For
2017-2019 Flow Monitoring Services
With
RJN GROUP. INC.

In accordance with the AGREEMENT for 2017-2019 Flow Monitoring Services dated November 28,
2016, between the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (hereinafter called OWNER) and RJN GROUP,
INC. (hereinafter called ENGINEER), OWNER hereby authorizes ENGINEER to proceed with the

following services:
SECTION 1 - PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Under the AGREEMENT, the OWNER retained RIN Group to provide flow monitoring services.
The Project included flow meter installation, maintenance and data analysis. It has since been
determined that an additional magmeter should be added to the flow monitoring network.

SECTION 2 - SCOPE

2.1 The ENGINEER shall provide the services and indicated in Exhibit A “Scope of Services”,
which is hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement.

SECTION 3 - TIME OF SERVICE

3.1 ENGINEER will proceed with providing the services set forth herein immediately upon
execution of this Authorization.

SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION

4.1 OWNER shall compensate ENGINEER for providing these additional services a total sum
not-to-exceed $45,000, as further described in Exhibit A. The total not-to-exceed cost for all services

under this Agreement is $392,364.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and Agreements herein contained, the Owner and
ENGINEER stipulate and agree that the Agreement for 2017-2019 Flow Monitoring Services dated
November 28, 2016, is hereby amended as described in Exhibits A attached hereto and made part of

this agreement.

All other provisions of the original Agreement remain in full force and effect.

R1605-CAC-R1 Page 1 of 2



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
AMENDMENT NO. 1
For
2017-2019 Flow Monitoring Services
With
RJN GROUP. INC,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed this
day of ,

AUTHORIZED BY:

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

ACCEPTED BY:
RIN GROUP, INC.

By: %Z&a@/] 7 %,V
Name: /17/(//{ N /‘/oémﬂ
Tide: _S€nlon Vice /Zt"fu«é’nf

Date: 1////y

Exhibit A — RJN Proposal dated February 28, 2018, including Scope of Services, Schedule and
Proposed Fee

END OF AMENDMENT

R1605-CAC-R1 Page 2 of 2



.rjn.com
r J n EXHIBIT A o

A0 yeerrs

February 28, 2018

Mr. Matt Streicher, P.E.
Assistant Director/Civil Engineer
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
21Ws51 Bemis Road

Glen Ellyn, lllinois 60137-6469

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO EXISTING ENGINEERING SERVICES
INSTALLATION AND ANALYIS OF THE GLEN OAK LIFT STATION MAGMETER

Dear Mr. Streicher:

RIN Group, Inc. (RIN) is pleased to submit this proposal to the Glenbard Wastewater Authority
(GWA) for the installation and data analysis of the Glen Oak Lift Station magmeter. RIN will hire
and oversee a contractor for the installation and startup services of an ABB Magmeter that will
measure the flow through the force main leaving the Glen Oak Lift Station.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The GWA has 16 RIN owned and operated flow meters installed throughout various locations
within the GWA’s interceptor and tributary system. Currently, RJN maintains the meters, analyzed
the data on a monthly basis, and submits a volumetric summary of the flow at each site.

The area tributary to and the Glen Oak lift station (Figure 1) has recently changed ownership from
unincorporated to the Village of Glen Ellyn (Glen Ellyn). With this change, Glen Ellyn and GWA is
looking to measure the flow from the lift station and incorporate the totals into the monthly
summaries that RIN provides to GWA.

PROJECT APPROACH

Upon inspection, RIN determined that the best way to monitor the lift station flows is to install a
magmeter in the existing vault at the lift station site. With this proposal, RN will hire the contractor
to furnish and install an ABB magmeter and install a telemetry unit to host the data from the
magmeter. The ABB magmeter was chosen because GWA currently owns and operates several of
the same brand within their treatment plant. in addition to installation, RJN will review the data

200 West Front Stre

et = Wheaton, lllinois 60187 * 630.682.4700



rjn

Page 2
Mr. Matt Streicher, P.E.
February 2018

from the lift station, advise the GWA on any possible maintenance issues, and incorporate monthly
summaries of the data into the existing monthly submittal.

{nstallation

RIN will be using the contractor Dahme Mechanical Industries, Inc. (Dahme) to complete the
installation of the magmeter work. Dahme will complete the installation process in two days as
follows:

Day 1 - Manhole vault preparation to be completed. l_
Dahme will need to grind some of the existing bench
out from around the forcemain to create room for
the ABB magmeter. The Glen Oak lift station can
remain in service for this work.

- Day 2 - Cutiin work and installation of the ABB
Process Master magmeter will be completed. During
this time, the lift station will need to be turned off-
line and a vactor truck will be needed to remediate the lift station’s incoming flows. GWA
has offered a vactor truck and operator for this phase of the work. RJN will also install the
telemetry unit that will send the flow data to the RJN server for data hosting and analysis.

Flow Meter: GWA is requesting the installation of technology similar to that
which they already maintain at their treatment plant. The chosen magmeter ' ?,‘}
is the ABB Process Master magmeter. This meter will measure the flow rate ¢
W
.

through the force main and send the data to the RIN telemetry unit.

Data Maintenance & Handling

RJN will maintain the data link required for remotely uploading the data from the installed meters.
Experienced data analysts will collect, consolidate, process, and perform a cursory review for data
continuity and quality throughout the project. The data will be made available online to the GWA
and Glen Ellyn for viewing via Telog Web Portal.



rjn

Page 3

Mr. Matt Streicher, P.E.
February 2018

Data Reporting

On a monthly basis, RIN will continue to provide a summary report of all the open channel flow
meter data and include the newly installed magmeter data into the summary.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES

Our proposed scope of services is outlined as follows:

10.

1.

Purchase the ABB Process Master magmeter for installation on the Glen Oak Lift Station
forcemain.

Remove existing ultrasonic meter and transmitter.

Install and setup the magmeter for accurate flow meter data collection using existing
electrical connections.

Install and setup a telemetry unit for RJN data transmittal and hosting. Provide the data
on the existing web module for viewing by GWA and Glen Ellyn.

Analyze the magmeter data on a weekly basis to ensure proper functionality
Report any problem in the data to the GWA for maintenance.

Summarize the daily flow totals and submit to GWA on a monthly basis with the existing
16 open channel meter summaries.

Incorporate the magmeter data into the annual data analysis and report that is part of the
existing agreement with GWA.

Provide project management services for the duration of the project.

Provide subcontractor management services for the installation and initial setup of the
magmeter,

Attend up to one additional meeting with the GWA.,



rjn

Page 4
Mr. Matt Streicher, P.E.
February 2018

Contingency:

1. Provide services to the GWA on a time a material basis to allow for unforeseen
circumstances such as (but not limited to):

a. Addition work due to unforeseen construction issues;
b. Bonds, insurance, easements;
¢. Other work required for completion of the installation.

ITEMS REQUESTED FROM AUTHORITY
We request the following items from the GWA:
1. Access to Glen Oak Lift Station control panel and vault.
2. Avactor truck and operator for the day of the magmeter installation.
SCHEDULE
Once all contracts and are signed, the installation will be completed within 10 weeks.
PROPOSED FEE

This scope of services will be provided for based on the fee table below.

Phase # Task Quantity Units Cost/Unit| TOTAL
5000 Planning and Project Management 1 LS S 5,000 | $ 5,000
5001 Meter Purcahse, Install, and Setup 1 LS $ 25,000 | 525,000
SUBTOTAL $30,000

6001 | Contingency [ 1 | tam  [s so00]s 5,000
SUBTOTAL  $35,000

2001 | Manthy Charge (addition to existing $9,649) | 20 |Meter*Month] $ 500 | $10,000
TOTAL $ 45,000

The amendment will require a new phase worth 335,000 for installation and contingency. It is likely
that most of the contingency will not be used. The amendment will also require the monthly fee



-~

i

Page 5
Mr. Matt Streicher, P.E.
February 2018

for flow monitoring services to be increased by $500 per month, which brings the total to $10,149
per month, in order to add the magmeter data to the review and reporting process.

It is our pleasure to submit this proposal to the Clenbard Wastewater Authority. Please feel free
to contact Tom at (630) 414-1965 if you would like to discuss this proposal in detail. We are looking
forward to the opportunity to begin working with the Authority on this important project.

Sincerely,

RJN Group, Inc.
M ichol M. Sony s 7%/\(36;/&54.

Michael N. Young, P.E. Thomas J. Romza, P.E.
Principal Project Manager

Attachments



rjn

Page 6
Mr. Matt Streicher, P.E.
February 2018

FIGURE 1
GLEN OAK LIFT STATION

T NIt i Glen Dt Lift Sistion == Sanitary Force Main Glonbard Wastewater Suthority
Jncondy Figure 1 - Glon Ouk Lift Station
Tk Lt et b £ Baritsry Manhsole ~~g~~ Sanitary Gravity Main Februacy 2018




SECTION 10.0

DISCUSSION



SECTION 10.1
FACILITY IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT - UPDATE



sseuonelg dumg mey 10J wWaIsAg UONUIIRY Yliey e
SPPJA SUOIIDIUUO)) Ser) [einjeN SUIUIPWY e
dmyrelg 121 YSI( JIeH 1seq e

SunLsN DOH XN 03 1011 pajeddiiuy MIOAA e
UOIJeWLIOjU] I0J S3sanbay ot
S[ePIuIgNg TIT o
pPa[[eIsuy ur] M AN 2Inssaid YSIH e
1aurens MdN MaN Jo uonje[eisuj e
SI9I JSI(] JIeH Iseq 1oj uonyeredaid e
gulfesg/3unsejqpueg 11 JeH seq o
uontour( surdid 2L JJeH Iseq e
uonijours(J Io3[1{ pueg JjleH ISey e

SunedA DO ISe 20UIg pa[duIo)) JIOM e

epdn 123s/o.







T2g :(6107/61/11) UO[dWO)) [eul (U Surureway sAe(y

‘:b_ﬁ—ECU Juadiadg S3E(] O, wuuu_nu.f—: juada g 2J8(T O] _.u.a__u._c‘.;: __.:._CE._C.

Hiuow _.,__._r_.. _.._.u.uwn:»:_ junoung S1B(] O] P221OAL] U324 SIE(] O], PRAIOAL] JUNOLLLY — muogy s “u_.,.u_e.;r: JUTIOLLT/ p—

gi-ue( Li-aa(] LI-AON] L= L1-dag Li-Gnyy Li-1h| Li-un| Li-Aepy Li-ady Li-1epl L1-gay Li-uef 91-39(] QI-AON]

a __Lﬂi_ __, |-
;_
_
_ |
4

suppely 414

000 0001

000 000'TY

ooo‘ooe'ts

ooo‘ooo'ts

0oo'000'SY

000/000'0%

ouo‘ooa'ly

goo'o00’'es




ue(

Lr-0aQ L1-A0N L1120 L1-dag

L-Sny Lr-n[ Lr-un| L1-Rey

L1-1dy Li-tepy

L1-gag

Li-

ue[

91-33(J

31e o] SIOH T YMD) e

SINOH Y VMO

OT-AON]

91130
|

g1-dag

[ele ]

00°0S

00'001

oo oSt

00°00T

00'0ST

00°'00€

00"0S¢

oooob




SECTION 11.0

OTHER BUSINESS



SECTION 11.1

TECHNICAL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE UPDATES



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

GWA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting Agenda
January 24, 2018 12:00pm
Meeting Start @11:50am
1. CHP (HSW) SOP Draft Review
a. Technical Summary
Mr. Streicher summarized all the aspects of the SOP, as well as the calculations used in order to
determine acceptable amounts. In summary, GWA will approach the acceptance of HSW very
cautiously, and calculations were performed using very conservative amounts. Mr. Streicher
believes GWA’s system can handle much greater loads, but would like to demonstrate the
effectiveness of a proper SOP. The TAC stated that these SOP’s should be included with the
conditions of the permits issued to HSW Haulers so they are aware of the procedures as well.
b. Public Qutreach Strategies

Managers Franz and Neuhaus contributed to how to communicate the draft SOP with the public.
Mr. Streicher has been directed to put together a “F.A.Q.” in order to better relay some of the
public concerns, since not all members of the public may understand the SOP’s. It was stated that
GWA shall post the SOP’s and FAQ’s on the website and send out a mass email to all those on the
mailing list stating that it has been posted, and ask for review and any input. Also, since Mr. John
Arnish had suggested the idea of public input on HSW receiving, Mr. Streicher has been directed
to contact Mr. Arnish directly for any input on the SOP’s. Ms. Bonnie Buckley was the sole
individual who volunteered for the Ad-Hoc Committee, so it was also stated that Mr. Streicher
shall share the SOP’s with her for any input as well. After public comments are received, any
input that is compatible with the operation will be inserted into the SOP, at which point it will be
brought to the EOC for formal approval. Any members of the public that disagree with
reinstating the acceptance of HSW altogether are welcome to attend the EOC meeting to voice
their opinion. After EOC approval, the final document will again be posted on GWA’s website,
and Mr. Streicher will share it with the EPA, and the Village Managers will share it with local
representatives, congress members, and school districts who were all involved with the upset.
The intent is to “close the loop” on the 2017 Digester Upset.

2. FIP Update
a. East Half Filter Construction Update
b. Change Order Status
i. Discussion of imminent +/- $200k change order
1. Transformer Sequencing Work ($123k)
2. New Conduit (50% split)
3. MCC
4. Concrete Effluent Structure elevation increase — NO CHARGE
¢. Resubmittal Fees - $5,150
d. ERS Submittals
i. Expected by End of Week
Mr. Streicher updated the TAC on the above activities in relation to the FIP. No other significant
updates were provided other than what is in writing.

3. Proposed Policy for GWA Engineering Shortlist — For EOC Approval 2/8/18
Public Work Directors Hansen and Goldsmith relayed onto the Village Managers that they are in support of
the shortlist document that the TAC worked to put together. Manager Franz requested a copy be sent to
him for further review. It is anticipated the EOC will be in favor of approving the policy.

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



4.

5.

6.

Other Business

a. Vacant Positions
i. Project Engineer — Advertisements
Mr. Streicher updated the TAC that the job has been posted on several sites, and
requested the Public Work directors participate in the interview process. Mr. Streicher
said he intends for the GWA superintendents to also participate in the interview process
since this position will work with oll departments.
ii. Maintenance | — Interviews
Mr. Streicher updated the TAC that first round interviews were performed on 1/23, and
there were two candidates that are being asked back for a second interview. The second
interview will consist of more of a field interview to better gauge the candidates
mechanical aptitude.
b. Sludge Hauling Contract —January 26 Bid Opening
No discussion beyond written update
c. Digester Cleaning Bid Advertisement — February 23 Bid Opening
Mr. Streicher stated that this was not brought before the TAC because GWA wanted to get the
bid advertisement out in time for the proposed bid opening date. Since the work is prone to
creating additional odors, the intention is to perform the work prior to spring weather, and before
GWA starts accepting any HSW. Mr. Streicher also informed the TAC that, per Director Hansen’s
idea, an incentive was included if the work is completed early, in an effort to encourage
contractors to perform the work in a timely manner. The TAC was in favor of the incentive
d. New Hill Avenue Flow Meter
i. RIN Proposal
No updates
e. Budget Amendments
i. Screw Pump Covers
ii. Budget Error
Mr. Streicher has relayed budget questions on to Finance Director Coyle, per the TAC’s
recommendation
f.  Purchasing Authority
No discussion
Old Business
a. Pretreatment Ordinance Status
The Village of Glen Ellyn’s attorney is currently reviewing the ordinance
b. GWA Property Swap
Director Goldsmith provided an update stating that the Forest Preserve is no longer willing to sell
the property, and that a 99-year lease agreement is being offered, and reviewed. Director
Goldsmith has updated the EOC on this item
¢. House demo
No Discussion
d. Discussion pertaining to future development of IGA Language for
GWA Interceptor vs Village’s Collection Systems start and stop points.
i. VGE - Chidester vs St. Charles Rd. Lift Station
iil. VOL—L22 vs Junction Chamber
iii. CSO Regulators and lines between the regulators to the facility
iv. Any others that can be added
Director Goldsmith stated the VOL staff is reviewing items, and their GIS Specialist is to meet with
Mr. Streicher to go over some jurisdictional differences between GWA and VOL’s GIS databases
Adjourn

Meeting adjourned @1:15pm



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

GWA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting Minutes
February 26, 2018 3:00pm

1. FIP Update
a. East Half Filter Construction Update
Mr. Streicher stated that it appears the contractor is still on schedule for an April 1, 2018 startup
date of the new filters.
b. Change Order Status
Mr. Streicher updated the TAC that he is frustrated with the contractor’s inability to provide
information on time, or share relevant information. This change order will see an increase due to
the amount of time that has passed since it was originally brought to the Authority. The
Authority relayed onto the contractor that it would wait for additional changes before presenting
everything to the EQC, and the contractor never stated that there would be any penalties for
waiting or that there was any sense of urgency to get these items approved. Approximately two
weeks ago it was brought the Authority’s attention that now there will be price adders due to the
amount of time that has passed since the original quotes were received. The Authority was not
aware of this, and is very frustrated. The TAC discussed options, but realized without eliminating
this portion of the project, we had no choice
i. Changer Order Number 4 being prepared for March 8, 2018 EOC Meeting. It
1. Transformer Sequencing Work ($123k)
2. Filter Building Lighting Conduit (50% split)
The Authority has still not received this information, but it is supposed to be
supplied prior to the EOC agenda packet going out. Once received, Mr.
Streicher will share it with the TAC.
3. MCCRevisions
The price escalations due to time that has passed will be incorporated into this
item, however the Authority has STILL not received what those exact costs are.
Once received, Mr. Streicher will share it with the TAC.
4, Air Handler Unit Revisions — NO COST
5. Concrete Effluent Structure elevation increase — NO COST
c. ERS Submittals
These still have not been received.

2. Award of new Sludge Hauling Contract — For EOC Approval 3/8/18
The TAC is in agreement to recommend award to Syangro at the EOC meeting

3. Award of Design Services for Electrical Grid Rehabilitation/improvements — For EOC Approval 3/8/18
Mr. Streicher described his negotiations with Strand Associated, and that he was able to get the fee to be a
T&M/Not to exceed, instead of a lump sum amount. Also, Mr. Streicher described he would like to include
recommendation for approval of assistance with the procurement services, which was another 52,500.
The cost and time savings from procuring equipment would outweigh the cost for the services. The TAC is
in agreement to award the contract to Strand at the EOC meeting

4. Proposed Policy for GWA Engineering Shortlist — For EOC Approval 3/8/18
TAC has already reviewed and approved of the policy — and recommends its approval at the EOC meeting.

5. Admin Building HYAC RFQ/RFP
Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that he is preparing a RFQ/RFP for design services for this project that he
will be sending out soon. The RFQ/RFP follows the same format as the other RFQ/RFP’s that were recently
sent out. The TAC had no questions or comments, and approved moving forward with sending out the
RFQ/RFP

6. Other Business

a.

Discussion regarding upcoming televising work
Mr. Streicher stated that his desire would be to perform a higher-level inspection of the
interceptors this year, as they are nearing 40 years old, and to the best of his knowledge — no in-
depth inspection has ever been performed. This more detailed survey would include sonar and
LIDAR surveys to determine the pipes structural integrity, rather than typical televising where a
camera is simply sent down the pipe. Director Goldsmith stated that Lombard is preparing to
send out a bid for the same type of work for their large diameter sewers, and that Glenbard can
tag onto that RFP. Director Goldsmith will provide the documents for Mr. Streicher to review, and
Mr. Streicher will provide Lombard it’s asset information. Mr. Streicher then let out a big sigh of
relief, as this eliminated a tremendous amount of work for him.
Vacant Positions
i. Project Engineer
The Authority only received two applicants for this position, however will be proceeding
with interviewing both candidates. If neither seem like a good fit, options will be
evaluated from there.
ii. Maintenance | Hiring
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that the selected candidate declined the position since he
was offered a promotion at his current job. Mr. Streicher stated he will discuss with
GWA’s Maintenance Superintendent to see if there were any other applicant’s worth
interviewing, and if not, we would decide how to move forward and advise the TAC.
Digester Cleaning Bid Advertisement — February 23 Bid Opening
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that he regretted not reviewing the bid documents in more detail,
as they were released in manner that left much room for interpretation by the contractors, and
bid results could be interpreted in a couple of ways. Mr. Streicher consulted with GWA’s legal
consul, and was advised to award the bid to Stewart Spreading. Since Stewart is a reputable firm,
had the lowest overall estimated cost, and legal consul suggested it — the TAC was in agreement
with awarding them the contract at the EOC meeting.
New Hill Avenue Flow Meter
i. RJN Proposal
No updates at this time

7. Old Business

d.

Pretreatment Ordinance Status
The Village of Glen Ellyn Public Works staff has reviewed this and it is now being reviewed by the
Village attorney.
GWA Property Swap
Director Hansen stated the VOGE is now interested again in selling the triangular piece of
property it owns near the Maryknoll Subdivision, and requested if Director Goldsmith could
inquire with the Forest preserve to see if they are still interested, and if it would lower the cost of
the easement purchase at the CSO facility. Otherwise, Mr. Streicher has prepared a memo
requesting the EOC to approve the purchase of the easement.
House demo
No update
Formalize TAC Resolution by EOC per legal recommendation
Not Discussed
Discussion pertaining to future development of IGA Language for
GWA Interceptor vs Village’s Collection Systems start and stop points.
i. VGE —Chidester vs St. Charles Rd. Lift Station

ii. VOL-L22 vs Junction Chamber

iii. CSO Regulators and lines between the regulators to the facility

iv. Any others that can be added



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

Not Discussed

Additional business not on agenda, but was discussed: The Forest Preserve District has approached
Director Hansen in regards to an Easement that it had with the Village of Glen Ellyn for what is now the
North Regional Interceptor, near Churchill woods. The easement has expired, and would like to renew it,
but needs further survey work done. It was discussed with GWA’s attorney and the Village of Glen Ellyn,
and it was recommended that the Village of Glen Ellyn would proceed with renewing the easement,
however GWA will pay all associated costs since it is related to GWA’s interceptor. The Village of Glen
Ellyn is working with a professional surveyor on another project, so they have requested that surveyor
perform the work, and will retain their services. Mr. Streicher agreed to provide whatever information he
has that would be of assistance. Mr. Streicher also stated that he believes a good portion of the
interceptor is now in public right of way, and the easement may have been from before St. Charles Road
was 4 lanes, and only 2. However, he believes portions of the interceptor are still in Forest Preserve
Property.

Adjourn

Meeting Adjourned at approximately 3:56pm

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



SECITON 11.2

PENDING AGENDA ITEMS



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

21W551 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

2018 Pending EOC Agenda Items

Proijects

Date

Status

Electrical Service $250,000 March
Distribution System
Design Engineering
Facility Plan/Odor $150,000 April
Control Study
Roof Rehabilitation $75,000 Ma
Telephone System $40,000 April
Replacement
UV Building AHU $40,000 March (Did not Underway
Replacement require EOC
Approval)
SCADA & LAN Server, $80,000 April/May
Firewall Replacement
Plant Fiber Testing & $30,000 On Hold
Repairs
HSW Improvements $25,000 TBD
Modifications

Admin. Chiller, Coil, Air $75,000 May
Handler, & Duct Design
Digester Cleaning $65,000 March
CHP Siloxane and $75,000 July
Hydrogen Sulfide Media
Replacement
Moyno Pumps (10) $25,000 As Needed
Spare Parts
Televising & Cleaning of $100,000 May
NRI & SRI

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow




Glenbard Wastewater Authority

21W551 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

Gravity Thickener $40,000 August/September
Bridge & Mechanism
Painting
CSO Grit Chamber $30,000 August
Rehabilitation
SRI Pump Station $50,000 TBD
Concrete Linin
*Godwin 4” Trailer $24,000 June
Mounted Pump
Forest Preserve Land $150,000 TBD Under
Swap & Surveying DCFPD
Costs review
Pretreatment | - April Under
Ordinance Village
Recommendation Legal
Review

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow




SECTION 12.0
NEXT EOC MEETING
THURSDAY
APRIL 12, 2018

AT 8:00 A.M.



